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OVERVIEW

China East Education Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are a leading provider in
the vocational training education in China. Our business focuses
on providing innovative vocational training education to students
to increase their employability in the ever-changing employment
market, as well as supporting China’s evolving workforce
requirements driven by its sustained economic growth, urbanization
and industrial upgrade.

Our vocational training education mainly covers four industry
sectors, namely, culinary arts, information technology and internet
technology, auto services as well as fashion & beauty. We
serve these four industry sectors under seven renowned school
brands, namely New East Culinary Education, Omick Education
of Western Cuisine and Pastry, Cuisine Academy, Xinhua Internet
Technology Education, Wisezone Data Technology Education,
Wontone Automotive Education and On-mind Fashion & Beauty
Education. As of 31 December 2022, we operated 244 schools
and centers with 142,765 average number of students enrolled and
customers registered for the year ended 31 December 2022. Our
comprehensive nationwide school network covers almost all of the
provinces in mainland China and Hong Kong.

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ ERAHEERER QT

BE

FERTBEERERABA(F2E]) K
HfB AR (i REm]) B EAELH
ERGEHERMED - RANEBETER
SARHANMEBREREHS - KMER
BEGETEHZ LR ETHP A EEE
N UXFEFEFENEEIRE - A
L REEFTRMEROTE RN EE P

BB EREHBE T ERENETEE
B B REERMN  EERM R EHMAR
o ABEgEERERESE - RMAREERM
FZERMEBIFRSZEHE - BoKFE
BAEEHE ERBMR - HESHKHE -
EEEFEDTALBIIEM BBABEHE
MBS FHEMEEHRS) ETRERZEE
FTEEE - i E2022F12A31H » HME
BRLARTER KL - HZE2022%12 A 31
AIEFEMFEEIALREPFMRAR
#142,765 AR o B EE B 2B ER
WS BRMRBEAM KN EDREE o



Our brands
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CuIinary‘
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Comprehensive cuisine training programs

including eight Chinese regional cuisines and providing specialized culinary training

western culinary skills OB BRSNS
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Information technology & internet technology training
providing a wide range of information technology and internet
technology related courses
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XINHUA COMPUTER EDUCATION

w AESEN

WONTONE AUTOMOTIVE EDUCATION

Auto-related skills practical training

focusing on providing practical training on

auto repair skills and other auto services
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High-quality western style catering education
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Fashion & beauty skills training
focusing on cultivating high skills
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Customized catering experience centers
providing customized catering experience
services to customers who are interested in
cooking or who plan to establish their own
businesses in the catering industry
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Data technology education
cultivating professional data
technology engineers
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on-mind fashion & beauty education

fashion & beauty professionals
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Note 1:  Average number of students enrolled/customers registered for the year ended 31 December 2022
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The following chart sets forth the information of our seven school

brands as of or for the year ended 31 December 2022:

Segments
i

Culinary Arts
TR

Information Technology and
Internet Technology

ES UWELE

Auto Services

RERK
Fashion & Beauty
RHEE

TOTAL

ait

Brands

i

New East

wRA

Omick

Cuisine Academy

FRER

Owmick

ERiR &S

® __ -
EK TR
= CUISINE ACADEMY —
weEEasil

Xinhua Internet )// %ﬁ ERRHE

Wisezone
EZEZER

Wontone
-3

On-mind

XINHUA COMPUTER EDUCATION

WISEZONZ= =525 "

w ABSENS

WONTONE AUTOMOTIVE EDUCATION

C BEEUHNILAE
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Average number of

students enrolled/

customers

No. of schools/  registered for the
centers in year ended
operation as of 31 December 2022
31 December 2022 EZ20226F
#2022 12A318
12A318 I35
Eghm P AR/
28/408A EFEMAY
77 60,209

46 4,453

20 972

38 41,947

21 431

39 33,898

3 855

244 142,765
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We were established in Hefei, Anhui Province.

1988 EecesE P el EE AR -
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We established Anhui Xinhua Education to consolidate all

our schools under a single entity. 4 ______ 2004

PRI T REIELE - BROTEBREA

The number of our schools in operation reached 27. Anhui
Xinhua Computer institute obtained the ISO 9001: 2000
quality management system certification. Langjie
Technology was recognizad as a high and new technology
enterprise by the Beijing Municipal Science & Technology
Commission for a period of two years.
BERABREEBEER 27 B - RETEEKIEBRER
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The number of our schools in operation reached 40. Anhui
Xinhua Computer Institute was appointed by the Ministry
of Human Resources and Social Security of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") (the “Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security”) to organize the
“Developing Talent with New Skills for China New Project”
and “Four New Talent Development Plan”.
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The number of our schools in operation reached 71, and
we expanded our business to Hong Kong.
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The number of our schools in operation reached 126. We
founded Cuisine Academy to provide customized
catering experience to customers who are interested in
cooking or plan to establish their own businesses in the
catering industry.
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As of 31 December 2020, we operated 206 schools in
mainland China and Hong Kong, and have successfully
issued the first batch of certificates of third-party
evaluation certification institutions for vocational skill
levels in China.
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As of 31 December 2022, the number of our schools and
centers in operation reached 244 including 77 schools
under New East Culinary Education, 46 schools under
Omick Education of Western Cuisine and Pastry, 20
centers under Cuisine Academy, 38 schools under
Xinhua Internet Technology Education, 21 schools under
Wisezone Data Technology Education, 39 schools under
Wontone Automotive Education and 3 school under
On-mind Fashion & Beauty Education.
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We started to offer automobile repair and
maintenance training programs under our newly

> established Wontone Automotive Education

brand.
BAIFATERTR L M ER TR A AR TR
FREBHHEIEIRTE ©

Wontone Automotive Education was awarded
“National Model Vocational Training Group in
Automobile Industry” by China Association of
Automobile Culture and China Auto Talent
Training Project Committee.
ERAEHERPEAERE D
BAABEBRIRZEGTA [2BEIETET
BHHEE] -

New East Culinary Education was elected as a
standing council member of the China
Hospitality Association in the first election of the
fourth council meeting of the China Hospitality
Association.
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The number of our schools in operation reached
90. We founded Omick Education of Western
Cusine and Pastry to offer high-quality
western-style catering education.
BERERREEIET) 00 AT o FZBUKSFR
EEHE REEEEEHE -

In June 2019, the Company was listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). As of 31
December 2019, the number of our schools in
operation reached 177.

2019 F 6 A - ARREREMARZHAER
A ((BRFT) FRED < HE 20195 12 7
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As of 31 December 2021, the number of our
schools and centers in operation reached 231
including 72 schools under New East Culinary
Education, 45 schools under Omick Education
of Western Cuisine and Pastry, 20 centers under
Cuisine Academy, 33 schools under Xinhua
Internet Technology Education, 22 schools
under Wisezone Data Technology Education, 38
schools under Wontone Automotive Education
and 1 school under On-mind Fashion & Beauty
Education.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Revenue WA

Gross profit e

Profit before taxation A&
Net profit for the year FRER
Adjusted net profit @ EEEeal

Adjusted EBITDA @

Net assets BEFE
Total assets BEE

m Adjusted net profit was derived from the net profit for the year
excluding the effect of (i) non-cash share-based payment expenses;
and (ii) the net foreign exchange gains/losses. This is not Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards measure. For details, please
refer to the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Financial Review — Adjusted Net Profit and adjusted EBITDA” in this

report.

@ Adjusted EBITDA was derived from the adjusted net profit for the
year excluding finance costs, income tax expenses, and depreciation
expenses. This is not Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
measure. For details, please refer to the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Financial Review — Adjusted Net Profit and

Adjusted EBITDA” in this report.

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ FEIRAHBERERAF
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Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE
2022 2021
2022F 20214F
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AR¥EBEET) (AR¥BAE&T

3,819 4,140
1,891 2,112
498 469
367 302
266 432
1,189 1,380

As at

i

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
20224F 20214
12A31H 12H31H
(RMB miillion) (RMB million)
(AE¥EERL) (ARBEBEE&ED)
5,699 5,739
9,473 9,636
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”)
of the Company, | hereby present the annual report of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

OVERVIEW

Year 2022 is a year in which the Group responded positively
and adhered to high-quality development. Oriented by excellent
vocational education, the Group endeavoured at all levels to
overcome the impact of the pandemic, changing market and
intensified competition by focusing on the goal of the year. All
divisions and institutions effectively implementing various strategic
plans, thereby maintaining a steady business development and
achieving favorable economic and social benefits.

REVIEW OF RESULTS

1. For the year ended 31 December 2022, with the Group’s
operating efficiency affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, its
main operating revenue was RMB3,819 million, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 7.7% as compared to year 2021.
Net profit of the year was approximately RMB367 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 21.3% as compared
to year 2021; the adjusted net profit of the year was RMB266
million, representing a year on-year decrease of 38.4%
as compared to year 2021. The number of new students
enrolled was 134,347, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 12.9% as compared to year 2021.

2. The average number of students enrolled nationwide in 2022
was approximately 143,000; 13 new schools, including
Zhaotong New East and Changsha On-mind, recruited
students and commenced operation, achieving nationwide
coverage by bringing the total number of institutions
nationwide to 244, with 3 institutions at the preparation stage,
including Qingdao Wontone and Zhengzhou On-mind.
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The Group’s strategy of developing regional centres was
continuously boosted. Phase | project of Chengdu Vocational
Education Industrial Park and Shandong Vocational Education
Industrial Park with a total area of 150,000 square meters
were officially put into use, while another 260,000 square
meters are under construction. The construction of Phase
| project of Guiyang Vocational Education Industrial Park
covering an area of 248 mu has been started. The Group
succeeded in the auction of the land for Henan Vocational
Education Industrial Park, and the Phase | project with an
coverage of 238 mu is about to start construction. The
construction of Hefei Vocational Education City Project has
been steadily advanced, and the total number of students at
three institutions in Hefei has exceeded 25,000.

In year 2022, four institutions, namely Sichuan Xinhua,
Hainan New East, Jiangxi Wontone and Chengdu Wontone
were upgraded to senior technical schools, and three new
technical schools were added, bringing the Group’s total
number of secondary technical schools to 46 and among that
senior technical schools to 11. During the year, the Group
was awarded 6 master studios at provincial and municipal
levels, accumulating the total number to 37, and received
1,028 awards in major competitions such as the Qualifiers of
World Skills Competition, National Vocational Competence
Competition for Vocational School Teachers, Adobe Certified
Professional and 3D Design Show.

LOOKING AHEAD

We will consolidate our position as a pioneer in the industry,
enhance our brand recognition and influence, further
expand our market share, strengthen the foundation of
skills training, expand the scale of enrolment, accelerate the
pace of development of the senior technical section, raise
the level of schooling, continue to develop new professions
and products, accelerate the development of emerging
businesses, expand revenue growth, pay more attention
to the accuracy of our network placement, improve the
construction of multiple recruitment channels, strengthen
media and traffic cooperation, improve the efficiency of
our consultation process, increase marketing benefits and
expand marketing increment through multiple measures,
complete the preparation for institution development as
scheduled, push forward the construction of regional centres
so as to achieve intensive development.

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ ERAHEERER QT
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2. We will improve teaching quality and teaching management
standards, improve the teaching management system and
process control, build a team of high-quality teachers and
teaching management personnel, improve the teaching
quality assurance system, further complete the construction
of R&D system and professional system, grasp the
opportunity of industrial structure reform and skilled talents
upgrading, continue to practice and innovate the college-
enterprise cooperation model, and explore more effective
experiences in talent cultivation, professional co-construction
and industrial institution construction.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude
to the parents of our students, the shareholders, and all sectors
of society for their trust and support and to all employees and the
management teams for their contribution and dedication. With full
confidence in the future, we will continue to improve schooling
quality, perform social responsibility and increase operating benefits
with the goal of high-quality development to cultivate more high-
quality skilled talents for the society and the industry and create
greater value for shareholders.

China East Education Holdings Limited
Wu Wei
Chairman of the Board
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We have a leading position in vocational training education segment
in China. Moreover, we also have a leading position in China in
providing vocational training education in three segments, namely,
culinary arts, information technology and internet technology, as
well as auto services. Headquartered in Hefei, Anhui province,
we have established a nationwide school network consisting of
244 schools and centers in operation as of 31 December 2022,
covering almost all of the provinces in mainland China and Hong
Kong. We operate our business and establish our schools and
centers under seven renowned school brands, namely, New East
Culinary Education, Omick Education of Western Cuisine and
Pastry, Cuisine Academy, Xinhua Internet Technology Education,
Wisezone Data Technology Education, Wontone Automotive
Education and On-mind Fashion & Beauty Education.

We are a pioneer in providing vocational training education in China
in culinary arts, information technology and internet technology,
as well as auto services. These industry sectors are areas in
China where there is significant unmet demand for vocational
training education to bridge the supply and demand gap between
employers and students. Our primary goal is to provide students
with solid knowledge and practical skills in their chosen profession
that are tailored to the needs of employers with a view to increasing
graduates’ employability and their average compensation levels.

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ ERAHEERER QT
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OUR BUSINESS SEGMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, we operated 244 vocational education

institutions under the following brand names:

Segments and Brands

72 BB K%

CULINARY ARTS
RELR M

New East Culinary Education
(“New East”)

MR REHHE
([#RA])

Omick Education of Western
Cuisine and Pastry (“Omick”)

BUK T EHE
(M&kFD)

Cuisine Academy

S XL

No. of
schools/
centers

28/
hOBE

7

7

46

46

20

20

E S Pl

M2022F 12 A 31 B HMEUT B2
BTHEE 244 FTEL B HIE -

Description

#

=

New East Culinary Education has been providing comprehensive
culinary training programs to students who pursue a career in
becoming professional chefs. We teach our students the cooking
traditions and practices of diversified Chinese cuisines, including
the well-known and widely recognized eight regional cuisines
in China, supported by an integration of classic Chinese and
Western culinary skills. Each of our schools under New East
Culinary Education offers various culinary training programs with
different program lengths to meet students’ differentiated learning
focuses and demands.

MR ZEHEHE —ERERNASBEFMN S ERHE R E A
FIRRIE - WPIBIRBETHETEERIERRE ZEE (B
REIME R EZRAIR KM HER) AR ERR T LHEZ
EEREE - TR RHEHBETSMERBEHTARERROHSE
TEIEIIEREE - LUmEBETRNEBEHMEL -

Omick Education of Western Cuisine and Pastry offers high-
quality western style catering education, which is committed to
providing specialized culinary training to students with a focus on
western pastry and western food. We offer a variety of courses,
including baking, desserts, western cuisines, bartending and
barista training.

BORAANAEHEREREEANERHE IR RBLER
HLUATRRAMEE AEMEETATI - RORESERE - 218
R - FHE  TRE - B MNBERDIE o

Cuisine Academy has been providing customized catering
experience services to customers who are interested in cooking
or who plan to establish their own businesses in the catering
industry. Cuisine Academy primarily providing customers with
customized catering experience programs.

ERBHR A ZHRBEBSENERTERLECHRANE
FPREMAGTHZERRIRE - EKRBREIBARPIRHALAR]
FRETRERRARAZ -

Annual Report 2022 ¢ —Z = —FFIf
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Segments and Brands No. of
schools/
centers

g1/

DEBR ROEE

INFORMATION

TECHNOLOGY AND

INTERNET TECHNOLOGY

E R R BB A8l

Xinhua Internet Technology 38

Education (“Xinhua Internet”)

MESKHE 38
([FrEEE )
Wisezone Data Technology 21

Education (“Wisezone”)

FEETRERDTAAHIIEM 21
([#EEER)

AUTO SERVICES
R

Wontone Automotive Education 39
(“Wontone”)

ERAEHE 39
(188l

Description

i

Xinhua Internet Technology Education provides, information
technology and internet technology-related training programs.
We provide a wide range of information technology and internet
technology-related training to students with different course
lengths.

TE B MHE RS BRI R BB R TR R BRI o BAPIm
BA R —ZKIE BRI R EBERMTEEEN - 25T RRIZ
R REIRIE o

Wisezone Data Technology Education primarily provides short-
term information technology and internet technology programs
to junior college and university students who have possessed the
basic knowledge and seek to further develop relevant practical
skills. By cooperating with a number of technology enterprises
and higher education institutions, we train professional data
technology engineers.

EEERDTAA FIIEM = E R0 B EEW MBI S 0E — 1R
FHERA B B R AR E 4 oA B A R MHE ST R BB ARl
HIZRIE - MBS REMCENSSEHERBSIE  RIMEER
F BB BT TIZAD -

Wontone Automotive Education focuses on providing hands-on
auto repair skill training as well as practical training of other auto
services, such as automobile commerce.
BBAEHE R IR R TER SR AR TER B E M E
RIS EF

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ ERAHEERER QT
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Segments and Brands

2 &P B2 hE

FASHION AND BEAUTY

On-mind Fashion & Beauty
Education (“On-mind”)

B2 HEEHE (HEH))

No. of  Description
schools/
centers
g1/
ROEE Rt
3 On-mind Fashion & Beauty Education focuses on cultivating high

skills fashion and beauty professionals.

3 BEHHHEEHE R INERSRERHEEAL -

SUMMARY OF OUR OPERATING DATA

The following table sets forth the number of new students

enrollments/new customers registered under each segment and
brand for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021:

Segments and Brands

WK

CULINARY ARTS
ZEHE M
New East

R

New Students Enroliment®/
New Customers Registered®
FEI AR/
FEFEMAZ

Long-term

RERE
- One to less than two years
——SEREMFUT
- Two to less than three years
—MEUNE=FUT
- Three years

Short-term
RHERE

Subtotal
et

TR E2022F 22021412318 1
FERESOBEREEDHOIEIAKXS
FEFFEMAS

Change
25
Year ended 31 December Increase/
BZE12A3ALEE (Decrease)
2022 2021
20225 20214 0/ (H)
27,090 31,224 (13.2%)
1,952 2,892 (32.5%)
8,951 15,264 (41.4%)
16,187 13,068 23.9%
24,151 31,023 (22.2%)
51,241 62,247 (17.7%)

Annual Report 2022 « ZZE==F £
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Segments and Brands

PBRmE

Omick
BUR®

Cuisine Academy

EY3

CULINARY ARTS
RELE

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

AND INTERNET TECHNOLOGY

=R R BB AR

Xinhua Internet
HEEH

Wisezone
#EBR

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

AND INTERNET TECHNOLOGY

EERMK ERARM

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ ERAHEERER QT

New Students Enrollment®/
New Customers Registered®
FEI AR,/
FEFEMAE

Long-term

RERE
- One to less than two years
——FLAEMEFAT

Short-term
RHRE

Subtotal
INeF

Short-term
HERE

Subtotal
Nt

Long-term

RERE
- One to less than two years
——FRERFUAT
- Two to less than three years
—MERE=FUT
- Three years

-=fF
Short-term
RHERE
Subtotal
/J\‘EH-

Short-term
RHERE

Subtotal
’J‘-ELI'

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2022
20224

1,128

10,592

11,720

9,189

72,150

23,437

1,986

2,991

18,460

3,141

26,578

3,027

29,605

2021
20214

1,161

15,648

16,809

13,980

93,036

23,307

1,338

5,517

16,452

3,762

27,069

4,073

31,142

Change
-]
Increase/
(Decrease)

i,/ (H2)

(2.8%)

(32.3%)

(30.3%)

(34.3%)

(22.4%)

0.6%
48.4%
(45.8%)

12.2%

(16.5%)

(1.8%)

(25.7%)

(4.9%)
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Segments and Brands

WK

AUTO SERVICES
RS

Wontone
=il

AUTO SERVICES
RERE

FASHION AND BEAUTY
EIEES S
On-mind

B2

FASHION AND BEAUTY
IDES S

THE GROUP
TEE

THE GROUP
AEE

New Students Enroliment/
New Customers Registered®
R AR,/
FEFEMAZ

Long-term

RERE
- One to less than two years
——FAEMEFEAT
- Two to less than three years
—MEUNE=ZFUT
- Three years
-=fF

Short-term

FRHRE

Subtotal
’J‘-ELI'

Long-term

RERRE
- One to less than two years
——FLAEMFUT
- Two to less than three years
—MERE=FUAT
- Three years

—=%F

Short-term
HERE

Subtotal
INEF

Long-term

REIRIZ
- One to less than two years
——FAEMFUT
- Two to less than three years
—MEURE=FUT
— Three years

Short-term
HHERE

Total
At

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A318LLEE
2022
20224

17,490
1,361
1,516

14,613

13,593

31,083

351

39

17

295

1,158

1,509

69,496
6,466
13,475

49,555

64,851

134,347

2021
20214

15,817
1,012
2,083

12,722

13,021

28,838

3156

316

928

1,243

71,824
6,403
22,864

42,557

82,435

154,259

Change
-]
Increase/
(Decrease)

i,/ (H2)

10.6%

34.5%
(27.2%)

14.9%

4.4%

7.8%

11.4%
N/A
g
N/A
i
(6.3%)

24.8%

21.4%

(3.2%)
1.0%
41.1%)

16.4%

(21.3%)

(12.9%)
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Notes:

(1) New students enrollment represents the total number of students
newly enrolled at our operating schools in a certain period. We use
new students enrollment to reflect our ability of student recruitment

and the popularity of our programs.

(2)  Number of new customers registered represents the total number
of new customers attending our customized catering experience
programs of Cuisine Academy.

The following table sets forth the average number of students
enrolled and customers registered under each segment and brand

for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021:

Segments and Brands

PERmE

CULINARY ARTS
REREM

New East

HRA

Average Number of
Students Enrolled™/
Customers Registered®
T AR,/
EFTZMmAHe

Long-term

RERE
- One to less than two years
——FUAEMFUT
- Two to less than three years
—MEUNE=ZFUT
- Three years

Short-term
RHERE

Subtotal
/J\‘EH-

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ ERAHEERER QT
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BT -

(1) FEIIARER R E IR R IR 2 EER
FIEAEAIR o AT AR R R
BB 2ENE D RRIENZEDRE
B

@ HEPEMABIEZINERELALAR R
RERRRENNE, AR -

TRSINE E20224 2021512 A31H
I FERED IR MBS D HFHEIA
NEEFEMAL

Change
28
Year ended 31 December Increase/
HBZ12A31ALEE (Decrease)
2022 2021
20224 20214F  #h0,/ (D)
55,608 58,951 (6.7%)
2,396 3,542 (32.4%)
25,406 32,342 (21.4%)
27,806 23,067 20.5%
4,601 5,266 (12.6%)
60,209 64,217 (6.2%)
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Segments and Brands

D ER

Omick

Cuisine Academy

E/RE N

CULINARY ARTS
RERM

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
AND INTERNET TECHNOLOGY
BERMR AR

Xinhua Internet
FEEK

Wisezone
EEER

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
AND INTERNET TECHNOLOGY
BRRMR AR

Average Number of

Students Enrolled"/ Year ended 31 December
Customers Registered®? BZ12A31ALLEE
T AR,/ 2022 2021
EFEMmAH® 20224 20214
Long-term
RERIE
- One to less than two years 1,434 1,125
——F L EMELT
Short-term 3,019 5,060
LIS
Subtotal 4,453 6,185
Pt
Short-term 972 1,376
REHIRE
Subtotal 65,634 71,778
Pt
Long-term 41,096 42,480
REBRE
- One to less than two years 1,609 1,631
——FLEMELT
- Two to less than three years 8,370 13,451
—MELE=ZFUT
- Three years 31,117 27,398
—=fF
Short-term 851 590
AR
Subtotal 41,947 43,070
et
Short-term 431 833
ySEIENES
Subtotal 42,378 43,903
Pt

Change
28
Increase/
(Decrease)

#m/ (B)

27.5%

(40.3%)

(28.0%)

(29.4%)

(8.6%)

(3.3%)
(1.3%)
(37.8%)

13.6%

44.2%

(2.6%)

(48.3%)

(3.5%)

Annual Report 2022 « ZZE==F £



A\

Management Discussion and Analysis &2 E 1w EL 5 47

Segments and Brands

D IR

AUTO SERVICES
AERE
Wontone

s

AUTO SERVICES
RER

FASHION AND BEAUTY
LIS
On-mind

B2

FASHION AND BEAUTY

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ ERAHEERER QT

Average Number of
Students Enrolled/
Customers Registered®?
T AR,/
EFEMAZ®

Long-term

RERRE
- One to less than two years
——FUNEMFUT
- Two to less than three years
—MERE=FUAT
- Three years

—-=%F

Short-term
KHIRE

Subtotal
Pt

Long-term

RERE
- One to less than two years
——FEUERFUAT
- Two to less than three years
—MERE=FUAT
- Three years

Short-term
ySEESE

Subtotal
Nt

Year ended 31 December

BZ128310LEE

2022
2022%F

31,855

1,519

3,573

26,763

2,043

33,898

498

19

471

357

855

2021
20214

26,186

1,363

4,885

19,938

2,002

28,188

254

254

242

496

Change
28
Increase/
(Decrease)

#m/ (B)

21.6%
11.4%
(26.9%)

34.2%

2.0%

20.3%

96.1%

N/A
NEH

N/A
TEm

86.4%

47.5%

72.4%
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Average Number of
Students Enrolled®/
Customers Registered®?

TR,

DR mE EFEMAH®
THE GROUP Long-term
5B RERE
- One to less than two years
——SEREMFUT
- Two to less than three years
—MEANE=FUT
- Three years
Short-term
HRE
THE GROUP TOTAL
L] ast
Notes:

1)

As our schools provide various vocational training education
programs during a year and the course length and the program
commencement date varies for our different long-term and short-
term programs, we believe that the average number of students
enrolled is a measure that is comparable to that of our competitors
and therefore can fairly present our ranking and market position in
the industry. Our average number of students enrolled for a year is
only an approximation of the average number of students enrolled
during a certain year, representing the sum of the number of students
enrolled at our operating schools at the end of each month divided by
the number of months during such year, without taking into account
any transfer or withdrawal.

Our average number of customers registered for a year represents
the sum of the number of customers registered at Cuisine Academy
at the end of each month divided by the number of months during
such year, without taking into account any withdrawal. The courses
for one month or shorter are regarded as one-month programs for
the purpose of calculation.

Change

25

Year ended 31 December Increase/
BE12A3ALEE (Decrease)

2022 2021
2022 20214 i/ (HA)
130,491 128,996 1.2%
6,977 7,661 (8.9%)
37,357 50,678 (26.3%)
86,157 70,657 21.9%
12,274 15,369 (20.1%)
142,765 144,365 (1.1%)
PE -

BRE PSRN FERRH S BRERE
HEREATRRARE BRIZHRIZE
ERFARBHHEMER  BRMRA
FEEIIARAIEREBFE FHEITHR
BEtE - A E AT AT R FIRAITE
WEBE R RIS AL o« FRRFEFIIA
RIEREEFAFEIAROE - 35
BB ESERNEA ARBIAREE
B 4B FNRR A B BE S H F 10 B (N ET AT
MEEFRBNER)

FANFHEPEMABEERERRE
ARAENEPEMABANER LB REF
B ADE (T REMERENER © B
HREENER B —EAREEMHR
REE—EARIE -

Annual Report 2022 « ZZE==F £
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Tuition Fees/Service Fees

The following table sets forth ranges of our tuition fee and service
fee rate under each segment and brand for the years ended 31

December 2022 and 2021:

Segments and Brands
PR

CULINARY ARTS
REEH T

New East

RS

Omick

ShA S
@\/\E{

Cuisine Academy®

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
AND INTERNET TECHNOLOGY

15 B E T & BB 483 1l

Xinhua Internet

LB

Wisezone

EEER

Program®

ES

Long-term

REIRIZ

Short-term®@

2 HARRIZ®

Long-term

REIRIZ

Short-term®@

2 HRRRIZO

Customized catering
experience program

FLAGTHIZ SRR BRI

Long-term
REIRZ
Short-term®@
2 HARRIZ®
Short-term®@
SEEE SELL)

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ ERAHEERER QT
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BE RBE

TREYEZE2022F x2021F12A31H 1E
FESHENLGBENEE NIRSEHE

Tuition/Service fee

2E REE
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE
2022 2021
2022%F 20214

(RMByper year for long-term programs,
RMB/per program for short-term programs)
(REGRIZEAANRMTT - FE 3B -
FERIRIEUA R B TTiRIEBEN)

8,200-101,000 8,833-102,320
400-68,000

280-68,000

46,000-72,000 46,000-72,000

800-39,000 800-39,000
300-58,200 300-38,800
7,000-39,800 7,600-38,800
499-36,000 240-48,000
999-29,800 999-29,800
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Segments and Brands Program®

DR Byl

AUTO SERVICES

RS

Wontone Long-term

¥ il REIRE
Short-term®@
72 HARRIZ®

FASHION AND BEAUTY

SICESES

On-mind Long-term

L2 7 REIRRE
Short-term®@
52 HRERIZO

Notes:

(1) We charge tuition fee to students enrolled at our schools. Tuition fees
of our long-term programs are typically charged based on the yearly
tuition standards of different programs that students enrolled in such
period.

(2)  Tuition fees of our short-term programs are typically charged by each
program that students enrolled in.

(8)  We typically charge customers service fees by each program that
customers registered in Cuisine Academy.

China East Education Holdings Limited | HERAHEEZERERQF

Tuition/Service fee
28 REE
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
(RMByper year for long-term programs,
RMB/per program for short-term programs)
(REIREBUARE T FREN -
FEEISRIE A RITT, - RIE /32 7)

6,800-38,800 6,800-38,800
800-37,500 800-37,500
13,900-27,800 13,800-23,900
5,800-21,800 3,600-29,600
PRt

(1) BAFRERMEROBLRMBE - 3
PI— AR B Z AR B4 REN TR ERIZH
FEEBFEUDEHRERE -

@ EHREEE - RRIESLRENSER
UER

@  BA-RAFLHRERBEREMOFTIIR
TR H IR E
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Recommended Employment and Entrepreneurship Rate

We are committed to assisting our students in developing

their

careers. Our average recommended employment and

entrepreneurship rate of our long-term program graduates from

Wontone and On-mind reached over 95%, while New East, Xinhua
Internet and Omick reached over 90% for the year ended 31
December 2022. The following table sets forth the recommended
employment and entrepreneurship rate of our long-term program

gradu

ates by brands for the year ended 31 December 2022:

Brands(" Y1)
New East e
Xinhua Internet ¥EE
Wontone &8
Omick BUOKE
On-mind BE 5
Notes:

Q)

China

As the schools of other brands had not provided long-term
programs of one year or more, the recommended employment and
entrepreneurship rate of these brands were not included. We also
provide graduate placement service or entrepreneurial service to
students of our short-term programs. However, students enrolled
in our short-term programs generally have different study goals
and expectations, such as to enhance a specific skill or to study for
interests, as compared to students of our long-term programs who
are generally more focused on seeking long-term employment or to
setting up their own businesses.

We provide graduate placement service and entrepreneurial service
to all students of our long-term programs. The recommended
employment and entrepreneurship rate represents the total number of
students of long-term programs who are hired through our graduate
placement service program or who set up their own business
through our entrepreneurial service in a certain period, excluding
students who are employed through other channels divided by the
total number of graduates of long-term programs during such year.

East Education Holdings Limited o FEIRAHBEZERERAT

SIBRENMAIRE

BOBRONEBABRREBELE - &
F2022F12A31ALEFE  BRMTBEKK
EFRPRBEEANFHSIBRERE
ERFOSWAL MRS - HEBHK
BUOK A RIEQ0% A £ o TREIB Z=2022
F12A31BILFERRBEE DN RARE
BEASIBRERAIEEX

Recommended
employment and
entrepreneurship
rate®

SIBHMERAIERE

94.0%
94.1%
96.3%
92.3%
95.5%

GEX

(1) AREMREETERRRERETIR
—EFORBARE - WA AZS RN
ERMERAIZEE - BIFIRRAERLHRE
M2 ERHE AR EIREHAIER - A
il ARBRERIERMGENEATED
BEBONRMRESE - WERPIEHR
RHBE—RBRETRANBEEBRREN
Kok E RS R B ML E A HIE -

@ BB RARESERHRAIMRERS
R AIZEIRT - 5l Bt KA &g X
BBE MBI ERB T E B BRI
BIZEBRTS M &I PR T T IS =4
RIEBLEH(TEEEEEMRETH®
ENBEE)BRUAZFERIRIEEELLE
2 o
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2022, there was a decrease
in the number of new students enrollments and new customers
registered of approximately 12.9% as compared with that for the
year ended 31 December 2021. Accordingly, the Group recorded
a decrease in revenue from RMB4,140 million for the year ended
31 December 2021, to RMB3,819 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, representing a decrease of 7.7%.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our revenue and
average tuition/service fee per student/customer by segments and
brands for the years indicated:

CULINARY ARTS
New East

Omick

Cuising Academy ©

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND
INTERNET TECHNOLOGY

Xinhua Internet

Wisezone

AUTO SERVICES
Wontone

Other Miscellaneous Businesses

Total

R
%5
BxE
£3tERy

RERHR
BRRRH
HEEk

s

EER

NER%
Ea

EthAERHo

it

gy dE) ]

YA

7.7% °

5w Q

B ZE2022F12 A31 8 I FEH L E Z=2021
F12A31B L FENBBFTEABETE
FHEMASEBERLH12.90% @ BUFEARE
BEHWABREZE2021F12A31BILFER
ARE4140EB IR EEH E2022F12
AB1HIEFEMNARKEISI9BETT @ B

TREINBPIRFRFERD 88 K fE 8
DORARBEEE " BFTHEE R

RER
Year ended 31 December
BE12B31ALEE
2022 2021 Change
20225 200145 )

Average Average Average
tuition/ tuition/ tuition/
service fee senvice fee service fee
per student/ per student/ per student/
Revenue customer? Revenue  customer”  Revenue  customer®”
528/ =21 L 52848/
EF EP EF
THEE/ TR/ 988/
WA REEY KA REEY WA FREEY

RMB'000  RMB000  RMBOOO  RMBOO0 Increase/(Decrease)

AREFL ARETT AREFT AREFT B/ (84)

1,891,673 34 2,082,286 324 (9.2%) (3.1%)
204,326 66.1 431,029 69.7 (81.7%) (5.2%)
56,548 58.2 74,261 54.0 (23.9%) 7.8%
2,242,547 342 2587576 36.0 (13.3%) (5.2%)
741,599 1.7 791,487 184 (6.3%) (3.8%)
39,654 92,0 43,681 524 (9.2%) 75.5%
781,253 18.4 835,168 19.0 (6.5%) (8.1%)
718,355 21.2 634,722 225 13.2% (5.9%)
76,867  N/ATER 82234 NIVNER (6.5% NATER
3,819,022 264 4,139,700 28.2 (7.7%) (6.5%)
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Notes:

For illustration purposes only, the average tuition/service fee revenue
per student/customer for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021 are calculated on a basis as revenue generated from tuition or
service fees for the year divided by the average number of students
enrolled and customers registered in the year.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, revenue
generated from Cuisine Academy mainly represents service fees
collected from customers who attended our customized catering
experience programs.

Other miscellaneous businesses primarily include fashion and beauty
business and the internet technology solution and staff outsourcing
services provided to independent third parties.

The total revenue and percentages do not include inter-segment
sales which are eliminated upon consolidation.

The Cost of Revenue

Our cost of revenue consists of teaching staff salaries and benefits,

teaching related consumables and other costs, leasing expenses/

depreciation of right-of-use assets, campus maintenance and

depreciation, utilities and office expenses. The cost of revenue

decre

ased from approximately RMB2,028 million for the year ended

31 December 2021 to approximately RMB1,928 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022, representing a decrease of 4.9%.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our cost of revenue

for the years indicated:

Teaching staff salaries and benefits
Teaching related consumables and other costs

BBIFARER
BERRRER R R

BT -

“

(IR + BE20226 12021412
B3 BILERGRBE R THEE,/
R B SR NS BRI BE A
R AR 4F T30 AR R B A A
B -

REE2022F 20211231 HIEF
- BEREREENBAETZARMRA
2MBARAGT R ERRENEFK
BRI RIS E -

HipAX B E 2 RRERWEE R MBI
E=NRHENEBERMEATRRET
SMELARTS -

BRAR B LA A BIEE S FHR BRI
B BRI E -

L UNDEN

BMOBRAR RN BIERBTHEREHN
HERBEERERREMKA BERS
FTRAEEENE REEERFTE °F
BRI AT o WARKRAREZE20214F
12A31HIEFENARKE2,028B 8L
LEEHZE2022F12A31H IEFEHARE
1,928 B & 7T * FIER4.9% ©

TREIFARFERPIRARARE AR -

Year ended 31 December

HE12AALEE
2022 2021
20226 20214
Cost % of Total Cost % of Total
1hE5 s
2 B AR BAL
RMB'000 RWB'000
AREFT NEEFL
688,953 35.7% 687,785 33.9%
399,618 20.7% 498,736 24.6%
320,812 16.6% 316,984 15.6%
348,321 18.1% 352,232 17.4%
93,945 4.9% 92,632 4.6%
76,309 4.0% 79,171 3.9%
1,927,958 100% 2,027,540 100.0%

Leasing expenses/Depreciation of right-of-use assets HERSY /EHEEENE

Campus maintenance and depreciation RRgERNE

Utiities INEEY]

Office expenses HE/NGEY

Total At

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ ERAHEERER QT
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin EFRENE

The Group’s gross profit was RMB1,891 million for the year ended REE2022F12A31BIEFE - %
31 December 2022 as compared to RMB2,112 million in 2021. The EFABARE,891EEL 0 M2021F A
gross profit margin was 49.5% for the year ended 31 December AREE2112B 8T - #E2022F12 431
2022 as compared to 51.0% in 2021. The decrease in gross profit AIEFE - EFEAR49.5% @ M2021F 5
margin was mainly due to the decrease in revenue while the cost of 51.0% ° EFER D> EZHREE2022F

revenue remained stable for the year ended 31 December 2022. 1231 B IEFERRAR D - MU ARKR
HIFIRTE ©
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE
2022 2021
2022% 2021%
Gross profit/  Gross profit/ Gross profit
(loss) (loss) margin™  Gross profit margin®
ERE/
R/ (EH) €24l A R

RMB’000  percentage RMB 000 percentage
ABEFT Bt AREFT a7t

CULINARY ARTS TR
New East MER 1,016,802 53.8% 1,008,715 52.8%
Omick BUKZ 103,023 35.0% 221,968 51.5%
Cuisine Academy ERER 21,511 38.0% 34,052 45.9%
1,141,336 50.9% 1,354,735 52.4%
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND EERM R EHBRA
INTERNET TECHNOLOGY
Xinhua Internet MEEH 388,353 52.4% 440,856 56.7%
Wisezone BEBR 22,104 55.7% 12,400 28.4%
410,457 52.5% 453256 54.3%
AUTO SERVICES RERKE
Wontone ER 349,759 48.7% 281,831 44.4%
Other Miscellaneous Businesses? HitMgERe (10,488) (13.6%) 22,338 27.2%
Total Bt 1,891,064 49.5% 2,112,160 51.0%
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Notes:

(1) The establishment of new schools and centers under a segment/
brand has a negative impact on our gross profit margin for the
relevant segment/brand. During the initial ramp-up period after a
new school or center commences operations, we incur substantial
fixed costs for teaching staff salaries and benefits, leasing expenses,
and other fixed costs while initial revenue from the new schools and
centers are limited due to the relatively small number of student
enrollment or customer registration in the ramp-up period of the
schools and centers.

) Other miscellaneous businesses primarily include fashion and beauty
business and the internet technology solution and staff outsourcing
services provided to independent third parties.

Other Income and Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2022, other income and
expenses amounted to approximately RMB107 million (2021:
RMB131 million) which primarily included government grants,
interest income from time deposits and bank balances and
entrusted loans. The decrease in other income was mainly
due to the decrease in interest income from entrusted loans of
approximately RMB20 million during the year ended 31 December
2022.

Other Gains and Losses

The other gains and losses were recorded as net gains of
approximately RMB136 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: net losses of RMB52 million) which was mainly
attributable to net foreign exchange gains of approximately
RMB143 million as a result of mainly the appreciation of Hong
Kong dollars possessed by the Group, which consists of proceeds
from the initial public offering of shares of the Company, against
Renminbi during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: net
foreign exchange losses of RMB74 million).

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ ERAHEERER QT
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Selling Expenses

The Group’s selling expenses was approximately RMB946
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 as compared to
approximately RMB988 million for the year ended 31 December
2021. The decrease in selling expenses incurred for the year ended
31 December 2022 was mainly because the Group imposed
tighter control on the advertising costs during the year ended 31
December 2022.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses was approximately RMB512
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 as compared to
approximately RMB542 million for the year ended 31 December
2021. The decrease in administrative expenses was mainly due
to the decrease of equity-settled share-based payment expenses
from approximately RMB56 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 to approximately RMB43 million for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Finance Costs

The finance costs of approximately RMB156 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 represented the interest expenses on
lease liabilities recognised following the adoption of HKFRS 16 —
Leases (2021: RMB161 million).

HERX

NEEEE RN B E 2022 F 12 A 31
AEFEANARB M6 EE L MEZR
2021 12 A 31 HIEFE AHO AR 988
BETL - REZE2022F 12 A31 BILFEE
HERIRL T ZRAREEBREZE 2022
12 A 31 BIEFE B ERIg U2 6] E & L
$ o

TR

REFMPEE2022F 12 A1 BIEFE
THRZAHNARES12BET MERE
2021 12 A 31 HIEFEAHARE 542
BEIL THRAZBLEEZRRUERLE
B AR D AR I BEE 2021
F12 A3 BIEFEHARY 56 AETLR
DEHZE2022F12 A31 BIEFELH A
R¥E 43 BEITFIE

BTSN

REZE 2022 F 12 A 31 HILFE » B
REHARE 156 BEIL ' BRENESE
RS ERE 165 - FERMTEARE
RN EMAY (2021 F: AR 1615
&) °
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Adjusted Net Profit and Adjusted EBITDA KGR R AS TR ST E R AT R

To supplement this report which is presented in accordance REARNBERBEF BV B MELERZ

with HKFRSs, we also presented the following unaudited non- ) - ANRB T AA T R EZIEB AU
HKFRSs adjusted net profit and adjusted EBITDA as additional RELBGCHEGN REHABRETITER
financial measures which we believes that it can also provide useful AR A PEREINIA EETE - AN AFIE
information to help investors and others understand and evaluate F HARHEANER  ERREER
the Company’s financial performance: HEM AL T8RO R A BRI

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBTFT
(unaudited) (unaudited)

(REFEX) (REE&ER)

Net profit ] 366,572 302,166
Adjustments for: Non-cash share-based B DASEIR SRR (D R
payments EANENL 42,906 56,180
Net foreign exchange EAC e =
(gains)/losses FEE (143,432) 73,663
Adjusted net profit KRARBER 266,046 432,009
Adjustments for: Depreciation PR E 634,845 620,486
Finance costs BATER AR 156,171 161,123
Income tax expenses FriSfif X 131,450 166,611
Adjusted EBITDA BRABSHRITER
B AR 1,188,512 1,380,229
Notes: Bt
(1) Adjusted net profit was derived from the net profit for the year (1) KSHEABGATDIRBEAGLET - SIBREEE
excluding the effect of (i) non-cash share-based payment expenses; RAEEBEMEERE@AOGAER SN
and (i) the net foreign exchange gains/losses (as presented in the R B AR ¢ R(i)FE Rz
table above), which our management does not consider to be EiEERMZ) M EMAE -

indicative of our operating performance.

(?)  Adjusted EBITDA was derived from the adjusted net profit for the @ ERESBIEREHEINENIREFA
year excluding finance costs, income tax expenses and depreciation KRR ORI ER A « FTS B &
expenses. FERZmTE -

(3)  Non-HKFRSs financial measure does not have a standardised @) EEEUBRELERIFISIEZARE BT
meaning prescribed by HKFRSs and therefore may not be MEERWES—FE - BORM AT EEM
comparable to similar measures presented by other companies. NRIMBELIERELE

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ ERAHEERER QT
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment as at 31 December 2022 increased by
35.2% to approximately RMB2,615 million from approximately
RMB1,935 million as at 31 December 2021. Increase in property
and equipment was mainly due to the inclusion of the property
and equipment of regional center in Chengdu, education base in
Shandong and newly established schools during the year.

Right-of-use Assets

Right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2022 increased by 4.4%
to approximately RMB2,425 million from approximately RMB2,323
million as at 31 December 2021. Increase in right-of-use assets
was mainly because the Group entered into several new lease
agreements for the use of leasehold lands and several new lease
agreements for the use of leased properties during the year.

Capital Structure, Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s issued share capital
was approximately RMB192,000 divided into 2,176,465,802
shares of HK$0.0001 each, and the total equity of the Group was
approximately RMB5,699 million (31 December 2021: RMB5,739
million).

As at 31 December 2022, the current ratio of the Group,
representing current assets divided by current liabilities, was 1.9
times (31 December 2021: 2.1 times) while the gearing ratio of
the Group, representing total liabilities divided by total assets, was
39.8% (31 December 2021: 40.4%).

As at 31 December 2022, the total of time deposits and bank
balances and cash of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB3,191 million (31 December 2021: RMB4,356 million),
representing 33.7% (31 December 2021: 45.2%) of the total assets
of the Group of approximately RMB9,473 million (31 December
2021: RMB9,636 million).

E I E &

YI¥E MR 2021 F12 A 31 BHHARE
1,035 B & o1 in 35.2% = 2022 F 12 A
S1THHOARK 2615 BETT - MERRME
ENEZHRFRBREKRBRERO - 1L
RB H M R EER MY KRBT -

EREEE

EREEEHMN 2021 F12 A 31 BHHA
AR 2,323 BETIENM 4.4% £ 2022
F12 A3 BNOARKE 2425 BETT o
FAREESMEZEANAEBRAFE
REAHEELHET A TENHERZER
BEAREMEI LS THHEERS -

BARE heEw MBERKREARERE
g

M2022F 12 A31 B AR A B %
TRA BB ARE192000 T 5B
2,176,465,802 % & i [ 18 0.0001 & JT #Y
B - AL ERESAEANARE 5,699
AET(2021 F£12 A 381 H : AR¥ 5,739

e —

BEID) °

20229 12 431 A - AEERENLL R (A
MEBEERARBIAR) A 1.9 & (2021 F
12HA31B:2118) MASEEEAE
bR (BB ERIAEEE) A 39.8% (2021
12 A 31 B : 40.4%) °

B2022F 12 A31 B AEBETEHEFK
ARIRITHES MRS R AL ARYE 3,191
A& (2021 12 A 31 H : AR 4,356
BET) A EEEEREBENHARKE 9,473
AEL(2021 F12 A 31 BH : AR 9,636
A& Jr) #33.7% (2021 12 A 31 A :
452%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, our capital expenditures
were approximately RMB1,475 million (2021: RMB1,546 million)
and were primarily related to acquisition of property and equipment
and right-of-use assets for upgrading the existing school premises
and construction of new campuses and regional center.

It is believed that the Group has sufficient capital to meet its
commitment and working capital requirements for future operations
and for general business expansion and development.

Other Financial Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held other financial assets
of approximately RMB719 million, particulars of which are set out

below:

HE2022F 12 A1 HIEFE @ EARF
TAHNARE1,475 58 L2021 F: A
R 1646 BET) - TBZHRAFAHFRER
& K B E R 8 O U B ) K R
HBUARGFREEERR -

BMER - AEERERENASREAR
AERAREER —REBRERBREN
BEEATES -

HEih e ahEE
H2022%F 12 A31 B "EBEHAFHM

CREENARETIOBET  HPHE
IR -

Realised Unrealised % of
gains/(losses) gains/(losses) total assets
Fair value for the year for the year  of the Group
as at ended ended as at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2022 2022 2022
BZ22022F  HE2022F EAEE
2022 12A31H 12A331H 20225
Financial assets UARBEFELFAESR 12A318 LtEECEE LEEREH 12A31A
measured at FVTPL ZEREE ZAREER WS/ (BB HkE/(FB8) JAEEFEIML
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
AE®EFr) AEEFT) (AEEF7T)
Structured Deposit HEBMEN
Huarong Securities Company ERBEFROFRAT
Limited
Everbright Trust - Sheng Yuan Fu HAETE-BTERIR 82,269 - 2,268 0.9%
Rong No. 1,8 &9 Pooled Fund Trust 835 ROSEAE S {57
Scheme HE
Industrial and Commercial Bank of HEIEHRTRHOBRLT
China Limited
Quan Xin Quan Vi 2EER 211,660 - (2,014) 2.2%
293,929 - 254 3.1%

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ HERAHAFERBERLT
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Financial assets
measured at FVTPL

Unquoted Fund Investments

E Fund Management (HK) Co., Ltd.

E Fund (HK) Select Asia High Yield Bond
Fund

China International Capital
Corporation Hong Kong Asset
Management Limited

CICC Multi-strategy Fixed Income Fund

Financial assets measured at
amortised cost

Entrusted loans to related parties

- Anhui Xinhua Holdings Group
Investment Co., Ltd.

Realised Unrealised % of
gains/(losses) gains/(losses) total assets
Fair value for the year for the year  of the Group
as at ended ended as at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2022 2022 2022
H 220226 HZ2022F EEEE
120225 12A31H 12A31H H20225
UAREEFELE ABE 12318  LEEE#H IEERER 12A31A
ZEMEE ZARER MkE/ (BB HkE/ (5B JBEEFAIL
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
AE¥FT) AREFT) (AE¥F7T)
BREESRE
SHEEERE (BB
BRAR
SHERFRBEDNRYNE 156,378 - (21,237) 1.6%
A
TEEREREREEEE
BRATR
Fe L RRETRRES 188,337 - 3,650 2.0%
344,715 - (17,587) 3.6%
RBERATECSREE
BB A RENETER
- CHERREERESR 80,000 - - 0.8%
BE]
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Investment Strategy and Future Prospects

The Group’s investments in other financial assets have been
conducted on the premise that such investments would not affect
our business operation or capital expenditures so as to generate a
relatively higher return from such investments than fixed-term bank
deposits.

The Group has implemented a set of internal control and risk
management measures to manage our risks related to investments
in other financial assets.

Regarding the investment in financial assets measured at FVTPL,
the measures include, among other things, the followings:

° we analyze such financial assets regularly and keep track of
their performance and redemption status;

° such financial assets should be issued by a reputable bank or
financial institution; and

° the investment portfolio of such financial assets should
generally bear relatively low-risk.

Regarding the entrusted loans to related parties under the
investment in financial assets measured at amortised cost, the
measures include among other things, the followings:

° the borrowing company is required to enter into entrusted
loan agreement(s) with reputable PRC bank(s) and the
entrusted bank(s) will assess the financial position of the
borrowing company(s) regularly to ensure the repayment
ability;

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ ERAHEERER QT
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° to secure the loan(s), each of the controlling shareholders of
the borrowing company shall enter into a personal guarantee.
Each of the controlling shareholders of the borrowing
company irrevocably and unconditionally, among others,
guarantees to the Group the punctual performance by his
respective borrowing company for borrowing the loan(s) and
undertakes that whenever the respective borrowing company
does not pay any amount of the loan when due, he shall
immediately on demand pay that amount as if he were the
principal of the loan(s). In addition, each of the controlling
shareholders of the borrowing company made a guarantee
that the Company has the right to postpone the payment
of the Company’s dividends to each of the controlling
shareholders of the borrowing company to the amount of
the loans and interests owed by the respective borrowing
company until the loans and interests are fully paid;

° upon the Group’s request at any time, the borrowing
company shall provide forthwith to the Group any documents
and information relating to the business operations and
financial position of the borrowing company, including but not
limited to financial reports and financial statements;

° if the borrowing company or its controlling shareholder has
any potential risks of financial instability, it shall inform the
Group or the entrusted bank(s) immediately; and

o if the borrowing company or its controlling shareholder has
shown any signs of financial instability, the Group or the
entrusted bank(s) can demand the borrowing company or its
controlling shareholder to repay prior to the repayment date
all or part of outstanding principal and interest accrued by
giving not less than 10 business days prior written notice to
such borrowing company.

In view of the above, we believe that our internal policies
regarding investment in other financial assets and the related risk
management mechanism are adequate. It is expected that the
Group would continue to improve our capital usage efficiency by
investing in such low-risk or principal protected other financial assets
using our temporarily idle funds.

o ARREER BERAFMERBRRE
BRI EASEDR o B3R R AR
R&E BT HGE M EGF (AP E
) AAREEERELSBERRRN
ENERERBITAERSL - LWAGH
EREBNERRBARENERDH
Ry FE A RO LRI SRR - 181G B By B 225K
XNBROR - EIERERNER
A e BbSh - BAE R AR AR (F
HER - ARREEREENARAR
RIS EMRE - SRRASER
RARMHERENERR  BEER
R SEEBRAT

s REMBREBIAEENERR - &
RRAAM AR REREABER
RALZ EBREE RIS ER X
HRER  BREETRNIBRE R
FATERER

o WERDAREERIIRE EAE
MR RA R - RIS BIE A
REBHZEFRT K

o (HERAASEEBRBRRRIR S EMN
MBARTROTR  AREHZER
FERITAEBRARERAAELTD
RIOEEXENELEEBEN B
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Material Acquisitions and Disposals

The Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries, consolidated affiliated entities or associated
companies during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The majority of the Group’s revenue and expenditures are
denominated in RMB, the functional currency of the Company,
except that certain expenditures are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group also has certain time deposits and bank
balances, other financial assets and other payables denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and United State dollars, which would expose
the Group to foreign exchange risk. The Group did not use any
financial instruments for hedging purposes during the year ended
31 December 2022. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure when the need arises.

Charges on the Group’s Assets

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group pledged its rental
deposits to secure outstanding unpaid contractual lease payments.
Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities, guarantees or any litigations or claims
of material importance, pending or threatened against any member
of the Group.

Subsequent Events

The Group had no other significant event subsequent to the
reporting period.

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ ERAHEERER QT
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The Impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic to the Group

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the physical classes
of some of our schools located in mainland China had been
temporarily suspended in order to cooperate with the prevention
and control of the Covid-19 pandemic (the “Epidemic”) according
to the instruction of the PRC government. During the suspension
of physical classes, the Group conducted its marketing business
operation through our online consultation and application systems,
etc. and the Group has also arranged online tuitions to our students
of our schools located in mainland China.

Following the easing of control of the Epidemic by the PRC
government in December 2022, our schools have been resumed
to full operations in 2023. Nevertheless, our schools of the Group
will continue to take necessary health precaution measures to
safeguard the safety of our employees and students. Moreover,
the Group has already developed a comprehensive online learning
programmes to our students which can offer online tuitions to our
students in case physical classes were suspended. Furthermore,
the total of time deposit and bank balances and cash of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB3,191 million as at 31 December
2022 which were sufficient for the Group to meet its commitment
and working capital requirements for future operations and for
general business expansion and development.

In view of the situation of the Epidemic in mainland China is being
controlled, the Directors expected that the impact by the Epidemic
in 2023 would not have any material adverse impact to the
operation and financials of the Group. Nevertheless, the Group will
closely monitor to the development of the situation of the Epidemic
and will take necessary precautions to minimise the negative
impact to the Group.
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OUTLOOK

Our mission is to provide the best vocational training education in
China. We intend to continue to expand our business, school and
center network and enhance our market position. To achieve these
goals, we plan to pursue the following business strategies:

Establishment of Regional Centers and Provincial Education Bases

We plan to establish five self-owned regional centers in China’s
five major geographical regions (the “Regional Centers”), namely,
Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Chengdu and Xi’an. The Regional
Centers are expected to be equipped with advanced teaching and
practical training facilities for all of our seven school/center brands,
namely, New East, Omick, Cuisine Academy, Xinhua Internet,
Wisezone, Wontone as well as On-mind. The Regional Centers will
also house our research and development centers, human resources
and marketing centers and serve as the continuing education and
training centers for our teaching staff, in each case in their respective
designated regions. The regional centre located at Chengdu and the
education base located at Shandong had been put in operations
consecutively. In addition, the Group intends to establish provincial
education bases in cities located at our major students recruitment
provinces and land parcels located in Guiyang and Henan had
been acquired by the Group for construction of education bases.
As the proportion of our students who study in 3 years long-term
courses was increasing in the past few years, to acquire land and
construction facilities to establish provincial education bases in cities
located at our major students recruitment provinces not only can
avoid the increasing pressure in the rental expenses of our school
premises and also can improve the environment of our school
premises so as to increase the stabilities of our long-term course
students.

Expansion of School Network

Our extensive school network covers most of the provincial capital
cities in China. We intend to further expand our school network to
cover all of the provincial capital cities in China. We plan to establish
our presence in cities which have a population in densely populated
provinces, which we believe have significant unmet demand for
skilled workers in culinary arts, information technology and internet
technology, auto services as well as fashion and beauty.
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Expansion and Diversification of Course Structures

In the four industry sectors we currently operate in, namely, culinary
arts, information technology and internet technology, auto services
as well as fashion and beauty business, we plan to continue to
expand and diversify our course offerings in response to industry
trends and market demand. We are also conducting research on
potential new industry sectors that we may establish new schools
in, with reference to the developments in market demand and
anticipated future trends. We will continue to explore other markets
for vocational training education in the service industry and new
economy. Based on our research, we expect market demand for
talent in certain industry sectors to grow in the foreseeable future,
we will establish corresponding programs to capture opportunities
presented by the market developments.

Actively Applying as the Third-Party Rating Organisation for the
Recognition of Vocational Skills

In 2020, the Group has become one of the first batch of third-
party rating organisations for the recognition of vocational skills in
China, whereby the Group is allowed to perform the recognition of
certain vocational skills for the public. Vocational skill recognition
represents the recognition of the skill level of labors by the rating
organisation filed by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social
Security of the People’s Republic of China (“Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security”), which is a way for rating of
the skills of talents implemented together with the occupational
qualification rating. The third-party organisations for the recognition
of vocational skills in China are the unit organisations recognised
by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security, which
are unit organisations with leading positions in the industry with
credibility. After procedures such as self-reporting, selection by
experts, credit checks, assessment by the local human resources
and social security departments at the place where the Group
was registered and seeking of views from the society, the Group
became one of the first batch of third-party rating organisations for
the recognition of vocational skills in China, whereby it is allowed
to perform the recognition of certain vocational skills. This means
that the Group is allowed to perform vocational skill recognition
for the public in accordance with the standards and regulatory
requirements, and issue certificates recognised by the state, which
will significantly raise the Group’s reputation and enhance its brand
influence, and further strengthen the Group’s leading position
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in the vocational skill training business in China. By providing
corresponding examinations and training for the public targeting
vocational skill certificates, the Group can enrich its curriculum in
the culinary segment to attract customers who want to obtain such
certificates and increase the potential customers of the Group’s
overall culinary segment. By issuing vocational skill certificates,
the Group can further integrate employment resources to provide
better job opportunities to the students. The Group will have a
comprehensive understanding of the state’s policy and industry
standards, which will facilitate our vocational skill education in
accordance with the state’s policy and standards, and effectively
enhance our education quality to provide high quality vocational
education services.

We believe that with our over 30 years experience in vocational
training industry, we are well-positioned to tailor our service
offerings to capture growth opportunities in industrial upgrades
and to react promptly to the changes in the market. Also, our
highly scalable business model and centralized and standardized
management approach will accelerate the process to establish new
programs and ensure the quality of the future program offerings. It is
believed that the Group will further strengthen its market leadership
and reputation by having the above strategies.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY’S INITIAL
PUBLIC OFFERING

As at 31 December 2022, the Company has fully utilised the net
proceeds and the net proceeds have been applied in the manner as
set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds”
of the Company’s prospectus dated 30 May 2019 and the
announcement of the Company dated 23 April 2021.
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The following table sets forth a summary of the utilisation of the net
proceeds from Company’s initial public offering as at 31 December
2022:

TERBAARREE

RN ERT

pail

BREF

AR 2022 F 12 A 31 HHNEFAB MR ¢

Utlised for Utlised for
the period from the year
12 June 2019 ended 31
Percentageto ~ Netproceeds to 31 December December Unutilised
total amount amount* 2021 2022 amount
R2019%
6A12AZ  HEA2E
2021 128318
ka8 Fi 12831 B LEE
Purpose ik Batt FEFE: HEcBAcE [k fika FHRLE
AUB000 AMB000 AMB 000 AMB000
NEETT NEETT NEETT NREFT
Acquisifon of land and construction facllties o~ E3tR -~ £ B KERAEZ 45% 1,900,433 (1,023,994) (876.439) -
establish our five geographical regional centersin -~ BRAABHF LS EAEE
Beiing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Chengduand Xi'an, TEBAANRAATRRERE
or to establish provincial education bases inciies ~ HEEMMEE TR LR
located at our major students recruitment provinces
Establishment of schools in selected markets TEREMFRUER 15% 633,478 (381,189) (252,299) -
Establishment of new majors in both existngand 5 AAHETERUHZE - 15% 633478 (412,207) (021,251) -
new industry sectors, and conducting researchto ~ WHIZ i — FEIFT 1
further innovate our curriculums
Construction of and upgrade our school faclities as - BRFIFHER R ERGRE 15% 633478 (633,4789) - -
wel as purchase teaching equipment; and YERE R
Funding of our working capitel and general corporate FifE2EE S R—RAFRR 10% 422318 (216,660) (205,658 -
pUTDOSES
100% 4223185 (2,667,544) (1,565,641) -

*

Net proceeds after deducting underwriting commission and issuing
expenses incurred from the listing and the exercise of the over-
allotment option.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
Employees
As at 31 December 2022, we had a total of 11,671 employees.

The following table sets forth the numbers of our employees,
categorized by function, as at 31 December 2022:
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Function

B e

Executive Directors and core management

HTESNZLEEAR

Full-time teachers and instructors e e CIPNE KT
Student accommodation staff BEEEEE
Logistic personnel ‘BHAE
Administrative staff THAER
Accounting and finance staff G RYBEAE
Others HAtb

Total™e At o)

Note: Among 11,671 employees, we had 14 employees in Hong Kong and
11,657 employees in mainland China.

Remuneration Policies

The remuneration packages of the employees of the Group are
determined with reference to individual qualification, experience,
performance, contribution to the Group and prevailing market rate.

We remunerate our employees with basic salaries as well
as performance-based bonuses. We determine employee
compensation based on each employee’s performance and
qualifications. We plan to hire additional teachers, instructors and
other employees as we expand. Our employee recruiting channels
include word-of-mouth referrals, on-campus recruiting and online
recruiting.

Our full-time employees in China participate in a variety of social
security plans that are administered by PRC local governments,
including but not limited to, pension benefits, medical care,
unemployment insurance, maternity insurance, work injury
insurance and housing provident funds. Chinese labor regulations
require that our PRC subsidiaries make contributions to the
government for these benefits based on a fixed percentage of the
employees’ average salaries of last year.

Our full-time employees in Hong Kong participate in a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) which the assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, contributions are made based on a percentage of the
participating employees’ relevant income from the Group and the
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to
make the required contributions under the MPF Scheme.

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ ERAHEERER QT

Number of
Full-Time
Employees % of Total
2HESAY (hEBEIL
311 2.7%
5,075 43.5%
91 0.8%
462 3.9%
3,003 25.7%
369 3.2%
2,360 20.2%
11,671 100%
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Wei (:R12), aged 55, a founder of our Group, is an executive
Director and the chairman of the Board. He is in charge of the overall
management and strategic development of our Group.

Mr. Wu Wei obtained the qualification of senior economist granted
by the Personnel Bureau of Hefei* (BB AZER) in July 2004.
Mr. Wu Wei has been a director of the board of directors of Beijing
Foreign Studies University since November 2017. He graduated
from Tsinghua University School of Economics and Management (/5
A B E IR ELT) in Beijing, the PRC, with an executive master
of business administration in July 2009. Mr. Wu Wei has been a
doctoral student of Tsinghua University School of Economics and
Management, majoring in global executive management, since
2016. Mr. Wu Wei has over 30 years of experience in education.

Mr. Wu Wei did not hold any directorship in any other listed
companies during the last three years.

Mr. Xiao Guogqing (E Bl &), aged 54, is an executive Director and
the deputy chairman of the Board of the Company and is responsible
for business management and providing opinion and judgement to
the Board.

Mr. Xiao obtained the qualification of senior economist granted by
the Personnel Bureau of Hefei City (&EM AZER) in July 2004.
He graduated from Renmin University of China (FFEI AR AE) in
Beijing, the PRC with a degree of master of business administration
in April 2004 and a degree of executive master of business
administration in January 2009, and from Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business (5T & £265%) with a degree of executive master
of business administration in October 2012. Mr. Xiao Guoging has
over 20 years of experience in education.

Save as Mr. Xiao has been a director of Anhui Xin’an Financial
Group Co., Ltd. (XBFZemEERKHERAF]), a company
whose shares are listed on the National Equities Exchange and
Quotations (stock code: 834397) since August 2014, Mr. Xiao
Guoging did not hold any directorship in any other listed companies
during the last three years.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Junbao (R%1R), aged 57, a founder of the Group, is
a non-executive Director of the Company and is responsible for
providing opinion and judgment to our Board.

Mr. Wu Junbao obtained the qualification of senior economist
granted by the Personnel Bureau of Hefei City (BB AE &)
in July 2004. He graduated from Anhui Institute of Business
Administration (2 L% &2 26x) in Hefei, Anhui province,
the PRC with a degree of master of business administration in
December 2003. Mr. Wu Junbao has over 30 years of experience
in education.

Save as Mr. Wu Junbao has been the chairman of the board of
directors and non-executive director of China Xinhua Education
Group Limited (stock code: 2779) since October 2017, Mr. Wu
Junbao did not hold any directorship in any other listed companies
during the last three years.

Mr. Lu Zhen (F£E), aged 47, is a non-executive Director of the
Company and is responsible for providing opinion and judgment to
the Board.

Mr. Lu graduated from Zhengzhou Institute of Textile Engineering
(BF 1 %7 %% T EB7), currently known as Zhongyuan University of
Technology (/R T& %), in Zhengzhou, Henan province, the
PRC, with a bachelor degree majoring in mechanical engineering
in July 1999, and from Nanjing University (7 5= AZ) in Nanjing,
Jiangsu province, the PRC, with a degree of master of business
administration in March 2009. Mr. Lu has over 10 years of
experience in education.

Save as Mr. Lu has been an executive director of China Xinhua
Education Group Limited (stock code: 2779) since October 2017,
Mr. Lu did not hold any directorship in any other listed companies
during the last three years.

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ ERAHEERER QT
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement (%), aged 67, is an independent
non-executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Hung obtained a bachelor of arts degree from University of
Lincoln (formerly known as University of Huddersfield), United
Kingdom in 1980. Mr. Hung had served Deloitte China for 31
years where he had assumed various leadership roles before he
took up the chairman role of Deloitte China from 2014 to 2016.
He retired from Deloitte China with effect from June 2016. When
Mr. Hung was working with Deloitte China, he had assumed
various leadership roles, including the managing partner of Deloitte
Shenzhen office and Guangzhou office. He was also a member
of the China management team of Deloitte China. Mr. Hung had
also assumed the role of the southern audit leader and the deputy
managing partner of the southern region of China (including Hong
Kong, Macau, Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Xiamen and Changsha). He
was also a board member of Deloitte Global.

Mr. Hung served as the Guangzhou Institute of Certified Public
Accountants consultant from 2004 to 2014. During the period
between 2006 to 2011, he also served as a member of the Political
Consultative Committee of Luohu District, Shenzhen. After his
retirement as the chairman of Deloitte China, he was appointed
as an expert consultant of The Ministry of Finance in the PRC. Mr.
Hung is a life member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales.

Mr. Hung has, in the past three years, served or is serving as a
director of each of the following listed companies whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange:

° an independent non-executive director of Gome Finance
Technology Company Limited (formerly known as Sino Credit
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 628) since 31 October 2016;
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an independent non-executive director of SY Holdings Group
Limited (formerly known as Sheng Ye Capital Limited) (stock
code: 6069), the listing of the shares of which has been
transferred to the Main Board from the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 8469) from 24 October 2019) from 19
June 2017 to 15 July 2022;

a non-executive director of High Fashion International Limited
(stock code: 608) since 1 December 2017;

an independent non-executive director of Zhongchang
International Holdings Group Limited (formerly known as
Henry Group Holdings Limited) (stock code: 859) on 12
January 2018 and subsequently resigned with effect from 15
June 2020;

an independent non-executive director of Aoyuan Healthy
Life Group Company Limited (stock code: 3662) since 22
February 2019;

an independent non-executive director of Huarong
International Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 993)
since 13 December 2019;

an independent non-executive director of Tibet Water
Resources Limited (stock code: 1115) from 31 December
2019 to 30 June 2021;

an independent non-executive director of Skyworth Group
Limited (stock code: 751) since 18 March 2020;

an independent non-executive director of Hong Kong
Aerospace Technology Group Limited (stock code: 1725)
since 16 July 2021; and

an independent supervisor of Ping An Insurance (Group)
Company of China, Ltd., whose shares are listed on both the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 2318) and
Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock code: 601318) since 18
July 2022.
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Save as disclosed above, Mr. Hung did not hold any directorship in
any other listed companies during the last three years.
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Dr. Zhu Guobin (5 El3E), aged 61, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company.

Dr. Zhu obtained a bachelor’s degree in history, a master’s degree
in history and a master’s degree in law from Renmin University
of China in July 1983, July 1986 and June 2007, a master of
laws from the University of Hong Kong in December 1999, and a
doctorate in law and an accreditation to supervise research (Dipldme
d’Habilitation a Diriger des Recherches) from the University of Aix-
Marseilles in France in June 1994. Dr. Zhu obtained a certificate
in administrative engineering class from the National School of
Administration (Ecole Nationale d’Administration) in France from
June 1989 to March 1990. Dr. Zhu was a visiting scholar of Harvard
Law School, the U.S., from 2007 to 2008 and 2020, and a visiting
scholar of Columbia Law School, the U.S., in 2011.

Dr. Zhu is a professor of Law at City University of Hong Kong
School of Law. Dr. Zhu is a guest professor of law in the Shandong
University in the PRC, an adjunct professor of law at the School
of Law of Wuhan University and Qingdao University in the PRC,
respectively. Dr. Zhu is a titular member of the International
Academy of Comparative Law (Paris, France), a member of
International Association of Constitutional Law, a member of the
French Society of Comparative Legislation, a council member of
the Chinese Association of Constitutional Law (FF B3 %2150 &),
a council member of the Chinese Society of Judicial Studies (2
ALERFEE), an executive counsel member of the Association of
Hong Kong Basic Law and Macao Basic Law, a member of the
Chinese Association of the Hong Kong & Macao Studies.

Dr. Zhu is an arbitrator of the Arbitration Commissions of Wuhan,
Zhuhai and Qingdao.

Dr. Zhu is an independent non-executive director of Hybrid Kinetic
Group Limited (stock code: 1188) which shares of the company are
listed on the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, Dr. Zhu did not hold any other
directorship in any listed companies during the last three years.
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Dr. Zang Yunzhi (J#Z&%), aged 43, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since 31 May 2021.

Dr. Zang, obtained a doctor degree in Business Administration
(Accounting) granted by Duke University in May 2006 and a
bachelor degree in Accounting granted by Tsinghua University in
July 2001. Dr. Zang served as an assistant professor at Simon
School of Business, University of Rochester from July 2006 to June
2009, and as an assistant professor at department of accounting of
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology from July 2009
to July 2015. Since July 2015, Dr. Zang has served as an associate
professor of department of accounting of Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology. Dr. Zang has extensive experience in
accounting and teaching and she also held position at the editorial
board of The Accounting Review since 2017, at CAPANA Program
Committee since 2018 and as ad hoc reviewers of various journals
in accounting area. Dr. Zang has passed all exams at Certified
General Accountants Association of Canada.

Dr. Zang did not hold any other directorship in any listed companies
during the last three years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Au Yeung Siu Kei (B(5JKE), aged 47, is the chief financial
officer of the Company and is responsible for financial management
of the Group.

Mr. Au Yeung is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a fellow member and Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Au Yeung holds a bachelor degree in
professional accountancy from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and bachelor degree in laws from the University of London.
Mr. Au Yeung has over 20 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and financial management.

Mr. Au Yeung did not hold any directorship in any listed companies
during the last three years.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Mao Chaosheng (EHEE), aged 43, is our joint company
secretary of the Company. Mr. Mao has over 19 years of
experience in management of administrative matters and human
resources relating to school operation, and has been working in the
Group since August 2004, where his current position is the head of
administration department and human resources department of the
Group.

Ms. Ng Sau Mei ({5 #) was appointed as the joint company
secretary of the Company on 31 December 2021. Ms. Ng is
a director and head of the Listing Services Department of TMF
Hong Kong Limited, which is a corporate secretarial services
provider, and is responsible for provision of corporate secretarial
and compliance services to listed company clients. She has over
20 years of experience in the company secretarial field and has
extensive knowledge and experience in dealing with corporate
governance, regulatory and compliance affairs of listed companies.
She is a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered Governance Professional
and a fellow member of both The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as “The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries”) and The Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as “The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators”) in the United Kingdom.

BREEAR

BB IEE KL - 475% 0 RARBINEEH
BE  AEAKENSHER -

BSEERFT ARG AEER
LEBSHMASERTERNES
%o@%%iﬁﬁﬁw$xk%vigﬁ
BB NRAARNBEEBLBA - B[
SHERE S HERESERA
20488 ©

E
mE}
Fm

B EERBE=FIEBEETERNLTL
GIEDESOE 7

BEARWE

EMERLE - 435% © AR RIMEE QR
WE e EAEAEEEREBRELEBENT
BEERANEBRSEHERBR19FRL
5 - WE20045F8 AR —E N AEEEH -
HEMETAEETERIRANDERDE

=

m3

o

AFBLLTHR2021F12A31BEZT AKX
NANBEARWE - ARTRITERE
BERAR (EARARWMERBHER)E
ERETRBEEHEE  AERETRARR
PREADWMEREGHRT - BRRRMW
EEBBEABB0FEBNERE LA
AMTEESR EBEERAREHKTEESR
LEMBHMER - FAFTNE BT
AEZEAE  URFBRARAEAE (A
[BEAFTWELAE]) RRBFTE RS
(A RBEBHFWERITRAEBRAE)E

VRPN

ARG o

mE

Annual Report 2022 ¢ —Z = —FFIf



A\

Corporate Governance Report ¥ &8 &

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles of the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company has complied with all the code provisions set out in the
CG Code.

The Board believes that good corporate governance is essential
to the development of the Group and to safeguard the interests of
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”), potential
investors and business partners and is consistent with the Board’s
pursuit of value creation for the Shareholders. The Company
is committed to enhancing its corporate governance practices
appropriate to the conduct and the development of the Group
and will review such practices from time to time to ensure that the
Company complies with statutory and professional standards and
aligns with the latest development.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs. It should act in the best interests of the Company and
its Shareholders at all times. The Board sets strategies for the
Company and monitors the performance and activities of the senior
management.

The Executive Directors of the Company are responsible for the
day-to-day operations of the Company whereas the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company are responsible for
ensuring a high standard of financial and management reporting
to the Board and Shareholders as well as to provide a balanced
composition in the Board so that there is a strong independent
element on the Board.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wu Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Xiao Guoqing (Deputy chairman)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Junbao
Mr. Lu Zhen

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement

Dr. Zhu Guobin

Dr. Zang Yunzhi

The composition of the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure that it
has a good balance of expertise, skills and experience, which can
meet the requirements of the business of the Group. The Directors’
biographical information is set out on pages 43 to 48 in this annual
report.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level
guidance and effective oversight of the management while day-to-
day management of the Group is delegated to the management
team of each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking, the Board is
responsible for:

° Formulating the Group’s long-term strategy and monitoring
the implementation thereof;

° Approval of dividends;

o Reviewing and approving the interim and annual reports;

° Ensuring good corporate governance system that integrates
environment, social and governance aspects and compliance;

° Monitoring the performance of the management;

° Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and
disposal of assets and other material transactions.

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE BOARD MEMBERS

Except for Mr. Wu Wei, Mr. Xiao Guoqging and Mr. Wu Junbao, who
are cousins of each other, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
there is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship among the other Directors. All of them are free to
exercise their independent judgments.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AND TIME COMMITMENT

The Board authorises the management to carry out the strategy
that have been approved. During the year under review, four Board
meetings were held and the principal business transacted including
but not limited to approving interim results and report, as well as
assessing business development and business performance. The
attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings, Board
committees meetings and general meeting for the year ended 31

December 2022 is set out as follows:

ESCHERRERBRA

EZeRETEERTOHMANRE - ©
CEFEN  EEeHEBANAAERE B
BEEZTEZHBEETRAIEREIZE
BEMWRE  UERFIEEBRERNRE - &
EENEZE2022F12A31BILFEZEE
g EFEZEeRREMRERGLRFEE
ST

Number of Meeting
Attended/Eligible Attended
gRELE/
BERHERE

Audit Remuneration  Nomination General®

Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting

Board Members EZgNE EXE® ERZET® FHEEE REZEE BREAEN
Mr. Wu Wei REXE 44 NATBEHA N/A TNEF 2/2 11
Mr. Xiao Guoging BRELE 4/4 N/A T A 11 N/A TNE R 11
Mr. Wu Junbao RERTE 44 NATER N/A TN A N/A TN A 11
Mr. Lu Zhen BEESE 4/4 N/A N6 A N/A N6 A N/A NiE A 11
Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement  tE&E%4E 4/4 3/3 11 2/2 11
Dr. Zhu Guobin FNE T 4/4 3/3 1/1 2/2 1/1
Dr. Zang Yunzhi AL 4/4 3/3 N/A TN R N/A TNE R 1/1

All Directors have access to the joint company secretaries who are
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are complied
and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Apart from the regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board
also held a meeting with Independent Non-executive Directors

without the presence of other Directors.

Note:

(1) Mr. Lu Zhen, Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement, Dr. Zhu Guobin and Dr.
Zang Yunzhi attended the annual general meeting held on 25 May

2022 by way of telephone.
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The Board ensures that its members are supplied, in a timely
manner, with all necessary information in a form and of a quality
appropriate to enable the Board to discharge its duties.

The minutes of Board meetings recorded all the details of the
matters considered by the Board and the decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views

expressed. Minutes of Board meetings are kept by the joint
company secretaries and are available for inspection by any
Director.

A

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the CG Code, the role of the chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Wu Wei,
the chairman of the Board, provides leadership to the Board
in terms of establishing policies and business directions,
and in charge of the overall management and strategic
development of the Group. The Company has no chief
executive officer and the daily operation and management of
the Group has been carried out by a group of experienced
management team members.

Non-executive Directors

Each of the Non-executive Directors has a term of
appointment of three years commencing from the listing
date (i.e. 12 June 2019) of the Company and each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors has a term of one year
commencing from the listing date of the Company or her date
of appointment. Their respective contracts will be renewed
automatically upon expiry.

During the year under review, the Company had three
Independent Non-executive Directors and complied with
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. Among them, Mr. Hung
Ka Hai, Clement has appropriate professional qualifications
and experience in financial matters in compliance with Rules
3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

All the Directors are appointed for a specific term and
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meeting. Pursuant to the articles of association
of the Company (the “Articles of Association”) and CG
Code, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from office
and be eligible for re-election at each annual general meeting,
provided that every Director is subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. In addition, any new
Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting and be subject to re-election.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Wu
Wei, Mr. Wu Junbao and Dr. Zhu Guobin will be subject to
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Responsibilities of Directors and Company Secretary

All Directors fully appreciate their role and duties as Directors
of the Company.

New Director will be given an introduction to the Group’s
major business activities, induction into their responsibilities
and duties, and other regulatory requirements.

Mr. Mao Chaosheng, the joint company secretary, is
responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that Board policy and procedures, and
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong
laws, the Company also engages Ms. Ng Sau Mei, a director
and head of the Listing Services Department of TMF Hong
Kong Limited, as the joint company secretary to assist Mr.
Mao in discharging the duties of a company secretary of the
Company. Ms. Ng’s primary contact person at the Company
is Mr. Mao Chaosheng, the joint company secretary of the
Company.
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The joint company secretaries are also responsible for
keeping all Directors updated on the Listing Rules and other
relevant regulatory requirements.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability

Appropriate insurance cover on Directors’ and Officers’
liabilities has been provided by the Company to cover
potential legal actions against Directors and officers.

Training and Support for Directors and Joint Company
Secretaries

Each newly appointed Director has received comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his
appointment, so as to ensure that he has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group
and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors at the
Company’s expenses whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates relating to the
Group’s business and the legislative and regulatory
environments in which the Group conducts its business to
the Directors.

The Directors are committed to complying with the CG Code.
All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant for the year ended 31 December
2022. The Company will arrange internally facilitated briefings
for Directors and reading materials on relevant topics will
be issued to Directors where appropriate. All Directors
are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
has provided reading materials on corporate governance
matters and update on the Listing Rules to all Directors for
their reference and studying. Besides, all the Directors has
also read online training/briefing on regulatory development,
directors’ duties or other relevant topics. Record of training
of each Director for the year ended 31 December 2022 were
kept by the Company.
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The individual training record of each Director received for the

year ended 31 December 2022 is summarised as below:

Participation in Continuous Professional Development

Programme in 2022

Directors

=

Executive Directors
Mr. Wu Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Xiao Guoqing (Deputy Chairman)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Junbao
Mr. Lu Zhen

Independent Non-executive
Directors

Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement

Dr. Zhu Guobin

Dr. Zang Yunzhi

TEE
RERE(EF)
HEESE@EIER)

FHTES
RIERTE
EE%E

BYEHTES
HEERE

AEDEE L
ATt

During the year under review, Mr. Mao Chaosheng and Ms.

Ng Sau Mei, the joint company secretaries of the Company,

took not less than 15 hours of professional training to update

their skills and knowledge in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the

Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model

Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as

the Group’s code of conduct to regulate the securities

transactions of the Directors and the relevant employees.

Having made specific enquiries, all Directors confirmed that

they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

Board Committees

As an integral part of sound corporate governance, the Board

has established the following committees whose authorities

and functions, compositions and duties are set out below:

(1)

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit
Committee”) has been established with specific written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee (which were available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company) have included
those specific duties as set out in the CG Code, with
appropriate modifications when necessary. Pursuant to
its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required,
amongst other things, to consider and recommend
to the Board the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditors and to approve their
remuneration, to review the interim and annual financial
statements, to review the Group’s financial controls,
internal controls and risk management system including
the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience
of staff of the accounting and financial reporting
function and their training programmes and budget,
and to consider any findings of major investigation of
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or
on its own initiative and management’s response. The
Audit Committee should meet at least twice each year
and when the need arises.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit
Committee comprised three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement
as the Chairman of the Audit Committee and Dr. Zhu
Guobin, Dr. Zang Yunzhi as the members of the Audit
Committee, in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, three meetings
of Audit Committee were held to review the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2021, the
interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2022,
the risk management and internal control systems,
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit
function, and perform its other duties under its terms of
reference.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022 and has also discussed the
internal control, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group. The Audit Committee is of
the opinion that the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with the applicable
accounting standard, the Listing Rules and the statutory
requirements and that adequate disclosures have been
made in this annual report.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company
(‘Remuneration Committee”) has been established
with specific written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee (which were
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company) have included the duties which are set
out in the CG Code, with appropriate modifications
when necessary.
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Pursuant to its terms of reference, the Remuneration
Committee is required, amongst other things, (i) to
determine, with delegated responsibility from the Board,
the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management; (ii) to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of Non-executive Directors; (iii) to review and approve
performance-based remuneration by reference to
corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time; (iv) to review and approve the
compensation payable to the Executive Directors,
Non-executive Directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment to ensure that such compensation is
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair
and not excessive for the Company; (v) to ensure
that no Director is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration; and (vi) to review and approve matters
relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee should
meet at least once a year and when the need arises.

The Board has adopted the Director and Employee
Remuneration Policy which sets out the general
principles which guide the Group to deal with the
remuneration matters. As a general principle, a fair
market level of remuneration will be provided to retain
and motivate high quality Directors, senior management
and employees, and attract experienced people of
high calibre to oversee the business and development
of the Group. Executive Directors’ and Non-executive
Directors’ remuneration packages shall comprise fixed
and variable components linking to individual and
the Group’s performance and comparable to other
companies similar to the Group. As for Independent
Non-executive Directors, only fixed Directors’ fee shall
be paid and be set at an appropriate level by reference
to the relevant time commitment and the size and
complexity of the Group and benchmarked against a
peer group.
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During the year under review, the Remuneration
Committee comprised an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, namely Dr. Zhu Guobin,
as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, an
Executive Director of the Company, namely Mr. Xiao
Guoging and an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company namely, Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement
as the members of the Remuneration Committee in
compliance with the Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, one meeting
of Remuneration Committee was held. During the
meeting, the Remuneration Committee reviewed
the performance-based remuneration and the
compensation payable to the Executive Directors and
assessed performance of Executive Directors.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

None of the Directors waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration and there were no emoluments paid by
the Group to any of the Directors as an inducement to
join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office.

The biographies of members of the senior management
team at the date of this annual report are disclosed
in the section headed “Directors’ and Senior
Management’s Biographical Information” in this annual
report. Pursuant to the CG Code, the emoluments of
the senior management (excluding Directors) for the
year ended 31 December 2022 are within the following
bands:
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Number of individuals

A
2022 2021
20224 20214
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,000/8 7T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000  1,000,001/8 T2 1,500,000/8 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000  1,500,0018 7T 2,000,000/8 7T 1 1
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Nomination Committees

The nomination committee of the Company
(“Nomination Committee”) has been established
with specific written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee (which were
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company) have included the duties which are set
out in the CG Code, with appropriate modifications
when necessary.

The duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to (j)
review the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board; (ii) identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board; (jii)
assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors; (iv) make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors; (v) formulate a policy
concerning diversity of members of the Board (the
“Board Diversity Policy”), as appropriate; and (vi) to
review the measurable objectives that the Board has
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy and the
progress on achieving the objectives.

The Board has adopted the Nomination Policy which
sets out the selection criteria and the evaluation
procedures in nominating candidates to be appointed
or re-appointed as Directors of the Company. The
objective of the Nomination Policy is to assist the
Nomination Committee in fulfilling its duties and
responsibilities as provided in its terms of reference.
The Nomination Committee shall consider any and all
candidates recommended as nominees for Directors
to the Nomination Committee by any Directors or
Shareholders of the Company in accordance with the
Articles of Association. The Nomination Committee
will take into consideration a candidate’s qualification,
experience, expertise and knowledge, the requirements
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applicable to the Company and the structure and
composition of the Board, identify, review and nominate
with diligence and care candidates suitably qualified
as Board members before making recommendations
to the Board for their final appointment. The
Nomination Committee may also undertake its own
search process for candidates and may retain the
services of professional search firms or other third
parties to assist in identifying and evaluating potential
nominees. The Nomination Committee shall endeavour
to find individuals of high integrity who possess
the qualifications, qualities, skills, experience and
independence (in case of Independent Non-executive
Directors) to effectively represent the best interests
of all Shareholders. Candidates will be selected for
their ability to exercise good judgment, and to provide
practical insights and diverse perspectives. The
Nomination Committee may use any process it deems
appropriate for the purpose of evaluating candidates
including personal interviews, background checks,
written submission by the candidates and third party
references. As far as practicable, nominees for each
election or appointment of Directors shall be evaluated
using a substantially similar process. The Nomination
Committee shall review the Nomination Policy from time
to time.

During the year under review, the Nomination
Committee comprised the chairman of the Board and
Executive Director of the Company, namely Mr. Wu
Wei, as the chairman of the Nomination Committee
and the Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company namely, Dr. Zhu Guobin and Mr. Hung Ka
Hai, Clement, as the members of the Nomination
Committee in compliance with Rule 3.27A of the Listing
Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, two meetings
of Nomination Committee was held.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy with a
view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development of the
Group. The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development.

In designing the Board’'s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skKills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will review the Board’s composition
under diversified perspectives and monitor the implementation of
the Board Diversity Policy annually. During the year under review,
the Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board’s composition
(including the gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service) which has been disclosed on pages 43 to 48 in this
annual report and considered the current Board’s composition is
appropriate.

As at the date of this report, the Board consisted of both male and
female Directors, the Board is of the opinion that board diversity
(including gender diversity) has been achieved. The Board will
continue to maintain board diversity and ensure the effectiveness of
the Board Diversity Policy.
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WORKFORCE DIVERSITY

Diversity is well supported in our corporate culture. Our employment
practice complies with applicable laws and regulations and does
not discriminate on the grounds of ethnicity, race, age, gender,
marital status and religious belief. The gender ratio in the workforce
remains balanced for the year ended 31 December 2022, which is
close to 1:1. The Group has adopted a written human resources
policy to govern the recruitment and diversity of workforce.
Opportunities for employment, training and career development are
equally opened to all eligible employees without discrimination. The
Group will continue the mechanism to maintain the gender diversity
in workforce. Further details of gender ratio has been disclosed in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is dedicated to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and the Board is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties as stipulated in the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Board had developed and
reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and review the compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD’S INDEPENDENCE

The Company has established the following mechanisms in
accordance with B.1.4 of the CG Code to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board:

(i) Composition of the Board and Board Committees

o The Board endeavours to ensure the appointment of at
least three and at least one-third of its members being
Independent Non-Executive Directors (or such higher
threshold as may be required by the Listing Rules from
time to time).

° Apart from complying with the requirements prescribed
by the Listing Rules as to the composition of certain
Board committees, Independent Non-Executive
Directors will be appointed to other Board committees
as far as practicable to ensure independent views are
available.
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Independence Assessment

o The Nomination Committee must strictly adhere to the
Nomination Policy and the independence assessment
criteria as set out in the Listing Rules with regard to
the nomination and appointment of Independent Non-
Executive Directors.

o Each Independent Non-Executive Director is also
required to inform the Company as soon as practicable
if there is any change in his/her own personal particulars
that may materially affect his/her independence.

° The Nomination Committee is mandated to assess
annually the independence of all Independent Non-
Executive Directors by reference to the independence
criteria as set out in the Listing Rules to ensure that
they can continually exercise independent judgement.

Compensation

° No equity-based remuneration (e.g. share options
or grants) with performance related elements will be
granted to Independent Non-Executive Directors as
this may lead to bias in their decision making and
compromise their objectivity and independence.

Board Decision Making

° Directors are entitled to seek further information and
documentation from the management on the matters
to be discussed at Board meetings. They can also seek
assistance from the joint company secretary of the
Company and, where necessary, independent advice
from external professional advisers at the Company’s
expense.

o Directors shall not vote or be counted in the quorum
on any board resolution approving any contract or
arrangement in which such Director or any of his/her
close associates has a material interest.

(i)

(i)

(iv)
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o The Chairman of the Board shall at least annually hold
meetings with the Independent Non-Executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors to discuss
major issues and any concerns.

The Board will monitor the implementation and effectiveness of the
above mechanisms annually to ensure the Board has a balance of
skills, independent views and input are available to the Board.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges that it is its responsibility to prepare
financial statements of the Company for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
ensure that financial statements are prepared in accordance with
statutory and regulatory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Board also ensures the timely publication of the
financial statements of the Company.

The Board confirms that, to the best of its knowledge and, having
made appropriate enquires, it considers that the Company has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and has prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis accordingly.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board conducted an
annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems based on the confirmation made by
the senior management and inputs from the Audit Committee. The
Board considered that the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions, are effective and adequate, and the Company has
complied with the risk management and internal control code
provisions during the year.
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The Board has an overall and ongoing responsibility for the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, and reviewing their
effectiveness. It is acknowledged that risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material adverse
change or damage.

The Board, through its risk oversight role, ensures that the senior
management establishes an effective risk management, consistent
with the Group’s strategy and risk appetite. The senior management
establishes risk management policies and internal control processes
to identify, evaluate and manage risks. Each subsidiary implements
such policies and processes in the daily operations and reports
significant risks identified to the senior management regularly.
The senior management assesses and evaluates these significant
risks reported then allocates sufficient resources to address these
risks and monitors the risk management status reported from the
relevant subsidiary from time to time. The senior management will
communicate the risk management and internal control findings to
the Board for its assessment of the effectiveness of the relevant risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Company has established an
internal audit function which generally carries out the analysis and
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

The internal audit department of the Group shall review material
internal control aspects of the Group, including financial,
operational and compliance controls as well as risk management
function, duties which include (i) reviewing and reporting on internal
and operational controls; (ii) following-up on the suggestions
made by external auditors; (i) ongoing monitoring and reviews
on different operating cycles; and (iv) special review of areas of
concern identified by senior management. It reports to the Board
from time to time, and also reports the findings to the Audit
Committee at least twice a year and on ad-hoc basis. The findings
are communicated with the senior management and actions are
taken to resolve defects as and when identified. No material internal
control defects were identified during the year.
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The Group has a policy for handling and dissemination of inside
information including relevant control processes and safeguards.
The processes and safeguards are implemented as needed by
the relevant department heads and management involved in the
handling and dissemination of inside information.

The Group is committed to preventing incidents of bribery,
extortion and fraud. The Group has implemented whistleblowing
policy and anti-corruption policy for employees, suppliers and other
stakeholders who have concerns about any suspected misconduct
or malpractice within the Group to raise concerns, in confidence
and anonymity. The Audit Committee has overall responsibility
for monitoring and reviewing the operation of such policy and
any recommendations for action resulting from investigation into
complaints. For details, please refer to the section headed “6. Solid
Foundation of Development Established in a Fair and Equitable
Manner and Through Compliance Operation” in our Environmental,
Social and Governance Report.

External Auditor

The Directors are responsible for preparing the financial statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 to reflect a true and
fair view of the Company’s and the Group’s financial position and
financial performance and cash flows for the year.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022, the generally accepted accounting principles in
Hong Kong, HKFRSs and Hong Kong Accounting Standards are
adopted, with consistent use of appropriate accounting policies,
for making reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates. The
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 were
prepared on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the auditor are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report in this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of
this report, the external auditor of the Group is Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu. Fees of auditing services and non-auditing services
provided by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and its member firms of
the same international network for the year ended 31 December
2022 were approximately RMB3.6 million and RMBO.7 million
respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
report, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and its member firms of the
same international network provided non-audit services mainly on
interim review, taxation services and other reporting services. These
non-audit services are engaged only as they are more effective
or economical than those available from other service providers
and will not constitute adverse impact on the independence of the
external auditor. The nature and ratio of annual fees to external
auditor for non-audit services and for audit services in 2022 have
been scrutinised by the Audit Committee.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely
manner after each general meeting.

Convening of extraordinary general meeting and putting forward
proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at
a general meeting of the Company according to the Articles of
Association. Any one or more members holding as at date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the joint company secretary
of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

Shareholders and other stakeholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the
joint company secretary by post to the Hong Kong principal office
of the Company at Suite 3207, 32/F, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has adopted the amended and restated
memorandum of association on 21 May 2019 with effect from
the listing date of the Company. There was no change in the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
annual report.

Pursuant to the Consultation Conclusions on Listing Regime for
Overseas Issuers published by the Stock Exchange in November
2021, the Listing Rules have been amended with effect from 1
January 2022 which requires, among others, listed issuers to adopt
a uniform set of 14 “Core Standards” for shareholder protections
for listed issuers. As such, the Board proposes to amend the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company (the
“Memorandum and Articles of Association”) for the purposes
of, among other things, (i) bringing the Memorandum and Articles of
Association in line with the amendments made to the Listing Rules
and the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands; and (ii) making
certain minor housekeeping amendments to the Memorandum
and Articles of Association for the purpose of clarifying the existing
practice and making consequential amendments to be in line with
the amendments to the Memorandum and Articles of Association
(the “Proposed Amendments”).

At the upcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “2022
AGM”), a special resolution will be proposed for the Shareholders
to consider and, if thought fit, approve the proposed adoption of
a new set of amended and restated Memorandum and Articles
of Association incorporating the Proposed Amendments in
substitution for and to the exclusion of the existing Memorandum
and Articles of Association.
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A circular containing, amongst other things, further information
regarding the Proposed Amendments, the proposed adoption
of the new amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of
Association, together with the notice of the 2022 AGM will be
despatched to the Shareholders in due course.

INDUSTRY POLICY DIRECTION

In October 2021, the Central Committee of the Communist
Party of China and the State Council of the PRC issued the
“Opinions on Promoting the High-Quality Development of Modern
Vocational Education” (EREBRRBEHXREREEERED
& R (the “Opinions”). The Opinions confirm that vocational
education is an important part of the national education system
and human resource development of the PRC and it shoulders the
important responsibility of cultivating diverse talents, passing on
technical skills, and promoting employment and entrepreneurship.
Pursuant to the Opinions, efforts should be made to speed up
the development of the modern vocational education system and
cultivate more high-quality technical professionals and consummate
craftsmen in the PRC. The Opinions also set a goal that a modern
vocational-education system should be established in the PRC by
2025 and the vocational education of the PRC should be ranked
among the best globally by 2035. The Opinions specifically include
but not limited to the following measures:

- Strengthen the characteristics of vocational education types,
including consolidating the positioning of vocational education
types, promoting the vertical integration of different levels of
vocational education, and promoting the horizontal integration
of different types of education.

- Improving on the school-running system of industry-education
integration, including optimizing the supply structure of
vocational education, improving the diversified school-running
pattern, and cooperating to promote the deep integration of
industry and education.

- Innovating the school-enterprise cooperation mechanism,
including enriching the form of vocational schools, expanding
the content of school-enterprise cooperation, and optimizing
the policy environment for school-enterprise cooperation.
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- Deepening education and teaching reform, including
strengthening the development of dual-qualified teachers,
innovating teaching models and methods, improving teaching
content and teaching materials, and improving the quality
assurance system.

- Building a vocational education brand with Chinese
characteristics, including improving the level of sino-foreign
cooperation in running schools, expanding sino-foreign
cooperation and exchange platforms; and promoting careers
to go global.

In May 2022, the newly revised “Vocational Education Law of the
People’s Republic of China” was officially implemented, clarifying
that vocational education and general education were equally
important, which significantly improved the recognition of vocational
education.

In October 2022, the General Office of the Central Committee of
the Communist Party of China and the General Office of the State
Council issued the “Opinions on Strengthening the Construction of
Highly Skilled Talent Teams in the New Era”.

The Group actively responded to the call of relevant important
documents, insisted on teaching reform to deepen characteristic
vocational education, and continued to help build a team of highly
skilled talents in the new era. We closely combined industry and
teaching to make them support and promote each other, and
through school-enterprise cooperation with well-known enterprises,
we rationally used the resources of both parties to achieve the goal
of school-enterprise win-win and play their respective leading roles.
The Group believes that the vocational education business of the
Group satisfies the requirement to develop the modern vocational
education system of the above policies. Therefore, it will benefit the
development of the Group in the future.
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IMPACT ON NEW LEGISLATION, POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

Over 90% of the operations of the Group are carried in the Mainland
China. Any change in the policy and procedure in the Mainland
China may have adverse effects on the Group’s operation and
results. Save as disclosed above, there was no material change in
the policy and procedure for vocational training education industry
in the Mainland China for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Also, the introduction of new legislation and rules by the Stock
Exchange, the Securities and Futures Commission and other
regulatory bodies in Hong Kong and overseas may induce changes
in market conditions that in turn adversely affect the operating
results of the Group.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
the Shareholders of the Company. A Shareholders Communication
Policy was adopted to ensure that Shareholders are provided with
ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company. The Company has established
various channels of communications with its Shareholders such
as publication of interim and annual reports, press release and
announcement of the latest development of the Company in a
timely manner. To promote effective communications, the Company
also maintains a website at www.chinaeastedu.com, where
updated information on the Company’s business developments
and operations and other information are posted, including all the
regulatory announcements relating to the Company and the poll
results on the business day following the general meeting (if any).

The general meeting of the Company provides a forum for
exchange of views between the Shareholders and the Board.
The Chairman of the Board, the Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors), chairman or members of the Board
committees and senior management of the Group and where
applicable are available to answer questions at the general meeting
of the Company.
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The rights of the Shareholders of the Company and the procedures
for demanding a poll on resolution at general meeting are contained
in the Articles of Association. Details of such right to demand
a poll and the poll procedure are included in all circulars to the
Shareholders of the Company which will call for a general meeting
and will be explained during the proceedings of the meeting.

All resolutions proposed at general meeting will be voted by
poll. The poll voting results will be posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.
chinaeastedu.com) on the same date of the relevant general
meetings.

Under the CG Code, the chairman of the Board should attend the
annual general meeting of the Company.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for
separate issues, including re-election of retiring Directors. The
Company’s notice to Shareholders for the forthcoming annual
general meeting will be sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear
business days before the meeting and notices of other general
meetings will be sent to Shareholders at least 10 clear business
days before the meetings. The Chairman of the Board, the
chairmen of the Board committees and the external auditor will
be available at the 2022 AGM to answer questions from the
Shareholders.

The 2022 AGM will be held on 25 May 2023.

The Company will continue to enhance communication and
relationship with its Shareholders. Enquiries from the Shareholders
of the Company are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

REPORTING PERIOD

The time span of this Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Report (the “Report”) is from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2022 (the “Year”), and some of the report contents may exceed
the above time range.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Report is compiled in accordance with the requirements of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide contained
in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited issued by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). This
Report has been prepared in compliance with the mandatory
disclosure requirements and the “comply or explain” provisions set
out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
of the Stock Exchange, and is based on the reporting principles of
“Materiality”, “Quantitative”, “Balance” and “Consistency”.

o Materiality

The Group compiled the Report with focus on material issues by
reviewing the 2021 material issues assessment results for major
stakeholders through which material issues for the Year were
identified. The results of the material issues have been confirmed
by the Board in conjunction with the Report.

o Quantitative

Where practicable, the Group disclosed information on the
standards, methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools
used for the quantitative information, and source of conversion
factors used.

o Balance

The Report provides an unbiased picture of the ESG performance
of the Group during the reporting period avoiding those selections,
omissions or presentation formats that may inappropriately
influence the decision or judgment by the readers.
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o Consistency

The Report discloses the statistical methodology for environmental
and socially relevant data and explains the changes in calculation
methods so that the data can be compared meaningfully in the
future.

IN-SCOPE ENTITIES

This is the fourth environmental, social and governance report
released by China East Education Holdings Limited. Unless
otherwise stated, the content of the Report mainly covers the ESG
performance and related information of China East Education
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries and its seven major industrial
brands, including New East Culinary Education, Omick Education
of Western Cuisine and Pastry, Cuisine Academy, Xinhua Internet
Technology Education, Wisezone Data Technology Education,
Wontone Automotive Education and On-mind Fashion & Beauty
Education. The in-scope entities reported remain consistent with
the prior year.

INSTRUCTIONS OF REFERRAL

For convenience of statement and reading, China East Education
Holdings Limited is referred to as “China East Education” or the
“Company”, and China East Education Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries are referred to as “the Group” or “we” in this Report.

SOURCES OF INFORMATION

All information and cases contained in the Report are sourced from
publicly available information, internal documents, and relevant
statistics of the Group.

REPORT APPROVAL

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) confirmed
that it bears full responsibility for the Company’s ESG strategies
and reporting, and has reviewed and approved this Report. The
Report is published in both Chinese and English. In case of any
discrepancy, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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ABOUT US

As the largest vocational training education provider in China, the
Group is committed to providing practical skills training, career-
oriented education as well as comprehensive education. We
have a leading position in China in providing vocational training
education in culinary arts, information technology and internet
technology as well as auto services, and our goal is to help equip
our students with relevant skills needed for employment and career
development. Since our listing and looking back at the year 2022,
we have achieved remarkable results by adhering to our strategic
positioning in vocational education, further enhancing our corporate
governance capabilities and strengthening our overall competitive
strength. As of the end of the Year, the Group had a total of 46
senior technical schools and secondary vocational technical
schools, and 3 new senior technical schools and technical schools
were set up in the whole year.

We actively participated in curriculum development and
compilation, and promoted the integration of various types of
education such as vocational education and liberal education. On
12 April 2022, 8 textbooks compiled by Xinhua Internet Technology
Education were successfully selected into the national catalogue
of technical education and vocational training textbooks. In May
2022, the Group hosted the symposium on “Take Labour Classes
and Strive to be the New Youth of the Era”, and presided over
the compilation of “National Primary and Secondary School
Students Volunteer Labour Class Cooking Course”, “Twenty-
Four Solar Terms”, “Chinese Traditional Festivals” and developed
corresponding supporting packages video lessons. In August 2022,
Xinhua Internet Technology Education and the Open University of
China jointly established a practical teaching base. In December
2022, the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security publicly
commended institutions that have made outstanding contributions
to the cultivation of national skilled talents, and Ningxia New East
Culinary Education, a subsidiary of China East Education, won this
honour. During the Year, the Group opened 215 new professional
training courses, organised the research and development and
publication of 12 series of teaching materials.
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The Group also conscientiously fulfilled the duties of a third-party
evaluation agency, and orderly promoted the third-party evaluation
for the recognition of vocational skills. As of the end of the Year, the
Group has been approved for the recognition of vocational skills
for 16 types of jobs (occupations), including Chinese chef, Western
chef, and car mechanic.

The Group actively participated in and strengthened cooperation
with various enterprises, promoted the integration of industry and
education, deepened school-enterprise collaborative education,
and provided skilled talents for economic development. During
the Year, we reached a strategic cooperation with BYD, signed
a talent-oriented training agreement, and built a new highland
for school-enterprise cooperation with innovative model of the
integration of industry and education in “workshop classroom”. We
have also further strengthened cooperation with companies such as
Chery, Sangfor, Laoaba, and Xiao Chu Niang, and cooperated with
Subaru (Japan) to carry out a talent co-construction and training
program to provide students with internship opportunities for
overseas research.

The Group always upholds the concept of “love and responsibility”
and drives teachers, students and employees to actively fulfil
social responsibilities. With the help of our unique advantages in
cultivating high-quality skilled talents and supporting graduates
to return to their hometowns to start businesses, we have fully
demonstrated our corporate responsibility in the fields of large-
scale sports events, rural revitalization, and the fight against the
pandemic. In March 2022, 69 students of New East Culinary
Education from the three majors of Chinese chef, pastry chef, and
western chef successfully completed all the catering services for
the Beijing Winter (Paralympic) Olympic Games, and contributed
to the success of this grand event. In April 2022, we held the
“Concentric Pandemic Prevention and Salute to the Frontline” anti-
pandemic donation charity activity, donating cash and materials
totalling RMB300,000 to the Municipal Red Cross Society and
the Municipal NSSA. In October 2022, with our outstanding
achievements in helping the revitalization of the countryside and
the economic development of the Yangtze River Delta, we were
listed in the in-depth report column of the key program “Thoughts
Are Powerful” of the National Radio and Television Administration in
2022.
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MANAGEMENT IDEAS TS
Enterprise Mission R

e Exploring the road to innovation and development of s REHEWAFHEBR K - PHER

education, and running the best vocational education in the RITHBEHE -
world.
Enterprise Spirits R
e United, Practical, Pioneering, Dedicated. e [H&- -BE-FH- =B

Educational Concept HEER

e Focus on practical skills training, combining theory with o UHBEHBEARABA - HiTE— -

practice.
e Love and responsibility. e  EHIF(F
Employment Concept BARER
e Talents are our guarantee. o ATREMHRE -

e Build up a person: To gain the opportunities to develop e YV A:NECHHEBEFEMILNER

simultaneously with the cause of education and achieve R BREHESERSHEMNE
respect from the organization and colleagues with g BSABNRSEMNBALE -

contributions to the cause of education.

e Build self-value: To gain trust of the organization and others e  VH:URERSAEENMANE
by virtue. £
e Build a career: To gain a career by talent and performance. o  VUE:DJEERTEEE - AEE
FEE e
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1.  SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT

1.1 Sustainability Strategy

The vision and mission of the Group is to explore the road to
innovation and development of education, and run the best
vocational education in the world. To carry out the vision and
mission of the Group, we have formulated the sustainability
strategy, integrated the sustainable development into the overall
development strategy of the Company, and made sustainable
development as our rule of thumb. In reviewing the current
development status of the enterprise and starting from the three
sustainable development dimensions of economic development,
social inclusion and environmental protection, we have concluded
that as a pioneer of China’s vocational training education, the
Group should focus on four main directions: solid innovation,
equality and mutual benefit, green environment and harmonious
society.

1. UEHREZRERE

11 AHER R

AEBMBRMERE - RREENEH
BRI PERRIFOBEHE - &
BAKBHBRIMED - RAGIE T AIH
BERREE SAREEREZEAAD D

ENEREREED  UHAHERRE
RTRBEMNER  c BEREXBEHERR
R RREERR  HEETNMRERE=
ErRFEEREELE  RAMEBLHAE

EERTEBEREHE LEEEREN
MEXESR : HLEAF - FEEF - 4%
BRI - ML E

The development of education is the foundation of sustainability. As the key to enhance the awareness

Solid
Innovation

and ability of social sustainability, the Group provides high-quality education that meets the needs of
students by strengthening investment and innovation, improving and expanding the development of
teachmg and training on the basis of consohdatmg the original education conce

We adhere to the corporate culture of openness, transparency, integrity and compliance; actively
promote mutual communication with students and parents; pay attention to the professional
development and the realization of self-value of employees; reach a consensus with all partners in

FEER

nd mutua\ly beneﬁaa\ sus‘[amable part

We are constantly committed to improving the efficiency of resource utilization to reduce the emissions

Green
Environment

BERR

ofgreenhouse gases and waste in the process of teaching and operations. Meanwhile, we are promoting
solutions through our own brand advantages, leading all parties in the industry to actively promote

“Dedicated” is one of the Group’s enterprise spirits. In order to give back to the society, we actively

Harmonious
Society [=

; ] RARECEESZ — AR E
Mg At e o 1ESR1A R

SEE B REEEERE - HEME
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contribute to the country and society, advocate participation in social charity activities, undertake
corporate responsibility, and build a harmonious society.

#PIE
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1.2 ESG governance structure

As a prerequisite for sustainable development of the enterprise,
a sound corporate governance structure can help realize the
effectiveness of the company’s internal resource allocation, and
at the same time ensure the long-term coordinated development
between stakeholders and the enterprise.

In order to better manage ESG-related matters, the Group has
established a corporate governance system including an ESG
working group. Among them, the Board, as the highest decision-
making body for ESG work, assumes overall responsibility for the
Group’s ESG strategy and reporting. The ESG working group is
the body responsible for the implementation of ESG work under
the Board. Its main responsibilities include analysing ESG risks
and opportunities and related impacts, formulating overall ESG
management goals, management strategies and guidelines, and
reviewing the progress of ESG goals, and assisting the Board to
guide and monitor the Group’s formulation and implementation
of ESG-related strategies and work to achieve the concept of
sustainable development. The ESG working group is headed by the
secretary to the Board and the chief financial officer of the Company
is the deputy head. The members include the heads of various
functional departments and the heads of each brand division. ESG-
related functional departments and brand divisions, according to
their respective functional divisions and overall deployment, are
responsible for establishing and improving the ESG management
norms and procedures, collecting and submitting information and
data related to ESG work, implementing the Company’s ESG
projects and assisting in relevant publicity training and stakeholder
communication.

ESG working group
ESGItE/\4

1.2 ESGEAZME

T’EF%JL%T SEBRNARERT  TEW

R REPRAERATERRE
E’J*ﬁ_xﬁllét FIERFE N s AR T B2
B RBHAEE -

REMWERESGHEEE - AEBEHEE
TEBESGIENMEEARNEEERE
o Hf - BEREEERESGIIFHI&ZAIR
RIS - WAKENESGRE MEHRARE
MR - ESGLIFMERESEHETA
RREESGIIFHIME TEREBRED

TESGR RSB M BT E - HIFESG
EEREEE  EERBRIHLRF
ESGEREREE Y HHEFSEER
ERAEEB T EEESGAMEKEMNL
1EE - UEBRAFEERNER - ESGT
ENEARBARFINEFTSWEREE
BEEMERMBEREE KEEERR
BERFIEEREMEEXTARA - ESG
MERARBE BEPT R s R = AR IR B D T

MERHE AEREVRIESGEEMNR
FEARAE - WEBIE Y HRXESGTFHH
EREBE - EEAFESGIER W85
RAABEEEI RN EEEI BB TIE

o

&

All functional departments and brand divisions

BRREEDPT RS amhE EHEED
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1.8  Statement of the Board

The Group is well aware of the importance of good corporate
governance, including the governance of ESG-related matters that
are critical to sustainable development. Since its listing in 2019,
the Group has been striving to integrate the concept of sustainable
development with the Company’s overall strategy, policies and
business plans, and to progressively improve its strategic work
system for sustainable development.

The Board is responsible for overseeing and approving the
ESG management approach and strategy, including identifying,
evaluating, prioritising and managing material ESG-related issues,
while the ESG working group is responsible for identifying key
stakeholders and preparing lists of materiality issues and analysis
reports, etc., and reporting the results to the Board. In line with its
sustainability strategy, the Group conducts a materiality assessment
on ESG issues on an annual basis, makes the management and
enhancement of materiality issues an annual ESG priority, and
oversees the performance and results of these issues.

In terms of risk management, the Board is responsible for assessing
and determining relevant ESG risks, and ensuring that the Group
has established appropriate and effective ESG risk management
and internal control systems. The Group has commenced an ESG
risk identification and assessment to identify ESG risks that have
significant impact on the Group, review internal management gaps
in relation to the identified ESG risks. During the Year, based on the
potential risks, opportunities and related impacts of material ESG
issues on business strategies, the Group reviewed the risk levels of
the identified ESG risks and made corresponding adjustments, and
gradually integrated ESG risks into the corporate risk management
process. In the future, the ESG working group will continue to
identify and analyse ESG risks and opportunities and related
impacts, and continue to help improve appropriate and effective
ESG risk management and internal control systems.

China East Education Holdings Limited o, FEIR A% B ERER AT
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In terms of target management, the Board is responsible for
approving the Group’s ESG-related targets and reviewing
the progress of their achievement; the ESG working group is
responsible for formulating the relevant targets and work plans,
overseeing the progress of implementation and reviewing their
effectiveness. The Group has set forward-looking targets in four
environmental areas, namely greenhouse gas emissions, waste
emissions, energy use and water use in certain selected institutions
and developed corresponding indicators and action plans. During
the Year, the Group reviewed the progress of some institutions in
achieving various environmental objectives, continuously tracked
the actual actions taken by the institutions on various indicators and
formed record documents and review reports. The Board regularly
listened to reports on the progress of the established environmental
goals, and confirmed and reviewed the results of the progress of
ESG goals. In the future, the Group will continue to summarize
experience from reviewing the progress of the realisation of
environmental goals, adjust environmental goals in a timely manner
and improve the target implementation mechanism, and promote
emission reduction actions to more operating campuses.

1.4 Sustainability Communication

The Group focuses on listening to and responding to the demands
of various stakeholders. Based on the characteristics of our
business and operation, we have established diversified and
continuous communication channels with investors/shareholders,
teachers/employees, suppliers/partners, students, parents,
government and regulatory authorities, communities and
media to ensure the effectiveness and transparency of mutual
communication.

Stakeholder Main Issues of Concern

EEREETHE EFSREEHRAE
BESGHER B R Mimst iR B IR B RE
B - ESGTR AR EHEMRBERERT
1E5T 8l EBERERL R AL - K&
EEEDRAORRAEEREIN - BEE
WBER - BEIRME A AR E IR (E R I BRI
ISR T AR MR BAR - XHIE T HEE
MIEIEMITEIRTE - AFE - ARERE
THIRRYERREENEREE -
BIRMEB R B IR R AR BIRITEIL
RS RRet D ERE  AEFE
EHRIECRVRREAGEREZNE
- RN ESGRERERNAER - R
Ko AEEBRBTREBENERER
TREAELR  MERBRREARET
ZEBRAITHS KB TBEREE
ZEERE o

1.4 TAIEELRREER

AE BT EERI [ &SN mE T Bk
Ko REBEREG R EENER - RMH
REE /IR - #EET - HER &
EBH - B4 KK BRREERE -
FiEdEREREY T Z TR EERR
B REIRNERGEER -

Major Communication Channels

Fz=ERA S

EERTERE
Investors/shareholders e Business performance
BEE/IRE e Information disclosure
e Compliance operation
e Risk management

o RAEEKRHE

o EEHE

o AEE

s ERRER

TEEBERE

e General meeting of shareholders
e Report disclosure

e |nvestor meetings

e Press release/announcements

e HKEx website

e Official website investor relations section
o BREARSE

o MEWER

s REEZRES

o HER /A%

o BRRXPTAEUA

o EREREEMERR
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Main Issues of Concern

Environmental, Social and Governance Report &iE » # @R ERRE

Major Communication Channels

MBS

Teachers/employees

/BT

Suppliers/partners
HER,AERH

Students
e

Parents
EE

Government and
regulatory authorities

B KB E

EXNREERE

e Employment

e Employee compensation and benefits
e Employee development and training
e Employee health and safety
e |abour standards

o %

o BTIHBHEEH

o BT HEMEE

» BTRFHZE

o HTRER

e Business performance

e Supply chain management
e Anti-corruption

o RAEKRHE

o fpEpEIR

s RENH

e Students’ safety and health
e Teaching mode

e Teaching quality

e Employment support

o BHELTIEHRF

o HERLA

s HERE

o BAEXR

e Students’ safety and health
e Teaching quality

o BALPHRRE

s HERY

e Compliance operation
e Taxation

e Emissions management
e Use of resources

e Employment

e Anti-corruption

o SPEEHMKE

o R

o BERER

e ZBREM

o [EfE

e RESF
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FERBERE

e Communication on employees’
performance appraisal

e Employee feedback

e Internal publication

e Team building activities

o BIHBMERIM

o BT[RIERAE

o RETH

e EEEH

e Supplier evaluation mechanism

e Supplier meetings

e On-site research and investigation

o HERZ K

o HERMSH

o EithAH

e Satisfaction survey

¢ Online/offline teaching platform

e Community activities

e Job placement and entrepreneurship
guidance and support

e Employment return visit

s MEEHE

o BE/BTHETLA

o HEEH
o BIBLEIEE RS
* BLEMEFH

e Parent-teacher conferences
e Home-school interaction
e Principal’s mailbox

* XRE
s RREH

o REK(EM

e Policy consultation

e Site visit

e Meetings and discussions
with government authorities

e Report disclosure

e Daily communication

o BURAA

o BHER

o BB EE LR

o WMEWEE

e HEAER
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Stakeholder Main Issues of Concern Major Communication Channels

MEAEES BEXNETSRE FERERE

Media e Compliance operation e Social media
e e Teaching quality e Press conference
e Employment e Press release/announcements
e |abour standards e |Interviews
» Environment and natural resources o HRfEEE
o AREE o MEEME
o HEmME o HERR/NE
o (EfE e &
o TR

o RENMARER
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1.5 Materiality Assessment of Sustainability Issues

As there were no significant changes in the Group’s strategy, major
business scope and scale, and stakeholders during the Year, the
Group reviewed the issues database based on the materiality
assessment and its results for 2021, benchmarking industry
practices and taking into account the impact of the external market,
international standards and policy environment on its own operating
conditions, so that they are more closely aligned with the actual
operating conditions of the Group. During the Year, the Group’s
issue database had 7 new ESG issues’, the materiality of each
issue, and the results of the materiality issues assessment, which
were reviewed and confirmed by the Board and management, are
shown below. In addition, on the basis of the materiality assessment
and its results, we determined the focus of our disclosure for the
Year by highlighting the “very important” and “important” issues
identified in the Report.

= Greenhouse gas emissions
BERBHR

=  Community Investment
HERE

= Electricity consumption
AE

= Water consumption
JiikIS

Indoor air quality
ERERER
Non-hazardous
waste management

Wastewater discharge
and management*
BEKBEREE BT
Environmental
education and
publicity practice*
RRUSRSEER"
Packaging materials = Responsible advocacy*
R BEENERE
Climate change* = Student health and
RAREL* safety*
Environment and BEHGLERERS*
natural resources  ® Innovation and R&D of
management” educational models*

BRERAREREE HERAAIHFR

Materiality to stakeholders
NGNS O St 2

15 EREREAEE BTG

HRAEENRE S - TEXBBELR
BE - MBEERTRAFERARBELEXN
B REBER2021FEEZ M
BR - HERTRER  XEARNEEHE -
BERSELRBRRRRHE 5 EEBANY
£ HRmBEET TR UEMOAEK
EERZEBR - NFE - AEEHREE
¥IE T TEESGHE - BREENER N
TR BEEUFEEREHESENE
BEERZER - I BAURBEEZ M
RERABEAFENREEH - HATHE

FINIREZIRBERINEBERSHHE

TTEHBE -

Employee development and training
BT R EE

Teaching services and quality
HERMBAR

Human rights

N

Anti-Corruption
1

Hazardous %;;s emissions
BERERHE

Employment of child labour and labour
exploitation

ERETNESBHHHE

Employee Benefits

BTEA

Employee health and safety
ETREHEZS

Supply chain management
frEEEE

Hazardous waste management

BERRNER

Materiality to the Group

HEEEMESE
Very important Important
REE BE

! ESG issues marked with “*” are shown as above
! T ESGREEREFTR
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2. BUILDING A FIRST-CLASS VOCATIONAL 2. HBEXT - BEERBERERME
EDUCATION SCHOOL TO NURTURE PEOPLE

2.1 Implementing Advanced Concepts of Vocational Education 21 HITRENBERFES

The Group always upholds the educational tenet of “exploring the REBBREFRH I REXRENRINHEER

road to innovation and development of education, and running B A SITNBRERE NSRS
the best vocational education in the world”. We cultivate the AR EHRE - BB TENAR - BRER
vocational education market and explore the best education model EBOHEEN  BBTRKERHIBEH
through continuous innovation and set a benchmark for vocational Bizg

education through the following five systems:

Education Research
& Development
System

HEMEER

Entrepreneurship Five systems Professional
and Employment to set a benchmark Accomplishment
Guarantee System for vocational education Education System

Bl ERER R hAREXR BREHERR
B BEHE ST

Teaching Work-Study
Supervision Combination
System Education System

HEEEEXR TEHEAHERE
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In May 2022, the newly revised “Vocational Education Law of the
People’s Republic of China” was officially implemented, clarifying
that vocational education and general education were equally
important, which significantly improved the recognition of vocational
education. In October 2022, the General Office of the Central
Committee of the Communist Party of China and the General
Office of the State Council issued the “Opinions on Strengthening
the Construction of Highly Skilled Talent Teams in the New Era”.
The Group actively responded to the call of relevant important
documents, insisted on teaching reform to deepen characteristic
vocational education, and continued to help build a team of highly
skilled talents in the new era. We closely combined industry and
teaching to make them support and promote each other, and
through school-enterprise cooperation with well-known enterprises,
we rationally used the resources of both parties to achieve the goal
of school-enterprise win-win and play their respective leading roles.

Industry-education integration and collaborative education

. 7y e
f f].a 1

20224F5H - FHERTHY (P EE A R HANE 5
EHREF)ER T AT REYFHY
BHERSEE  BERABEHENR
A[E 2022 10A « R HEAPRPFQEE -
TS B 3 7~ B8 N 2% B8 5 hn 58 38 B (R 1= B A
ATBREZHER) - ~EBEGEE
EHEEXHMNRE  BREABHRIELF
TREREXRE  UYHEDHNIKERASR
BEAT BRER - BRI EFEERHZRY)
#E - MEXFEEE  WRBEAED
¥HERCAE  ABEEREFNERNU
BERRCHEENER  BEE 30T HEE
)Eﬁ °

EHEE BRIEA

BER W

B o SR LB S 1 AV 5B
! . + "

Case sharing: On 19 May 2022, Wontone Automotive Education held the launching ceremony of the “Industry-

Education Integration, Building the Future” School-Enterprise Co-construction Industry College and “Double High”
Talent Training Program in Hefei, Anhui, and established cooperative relations with renowned enterprises such as
JD.com, Baidu and BYD.

ZPIHZE  2022F5 8190 - BRAEHENLBAIERMERRS ERRIREHZEXSRE[ES AL E
B EMBEN  WEBLERR 5F hDaSHECERIAERER -
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School-enterprise integration to create the future

R T T A
i & B #

§

Case sharing: On 21 June 2022, Xinhua Internet Technology Education held a press conference on the digital
intelligence skills training project and new major. In order to keep up with the pace of the digital intelligence era
and further deepen the school-enterprise integration, Xinhua Internet Technology Education, and organisations
such as AUBO, Huawei, Today Internet and Kuaishou jointly established three new excellent majors and four ace
professional groups, and jointly cultivated talents of “high professional skills” and “high professional quality” with
Internet companies such as Ant Group.
RPINZ : 2022566 210 - HMEERHBE BN THEREEETIRENEERNE - RRRAERKNTHIE
— MRS MEERHE AT ER SHEH  RFSHRAMBU=AFESEEMATREER -
WIS ERMEEMB XM BB SEXREINMIEBERLEIAT -

2.2 High Quality Education Investment
Development of high-quality teaching materials

China’s vocational education has entered a new stage of high-
quality development to improve quality, foster excellence, increase
value and empower vocational schools, teachers and students.
As a leading enterprise in the field of vocational education,
the Group, led by its Research Institute, is actively engaged
in research, reform and innovation of teaching materials. The
Research Institute consisting of Research and Development (R&D)
Center, Certification Center and Teaching Material Center carries
out research and development of various professional modules
and teaching materials, and research on the development of
vocational education. During the Year, the Group’s eight textbooks,
including Practical Training Guide for Application of Search Engine
Technologies (3 R3|ZE T fEREFIHER)), were successfully
selected as national-level textbooks on technical education and
vocational training, covering professional courses such as computer
network application, computer animation, computer advertisement
production and architectural design, which injected strength into
the national textbook improvement work.

22 BEHNHERA
BB

REBEXREEANTREEE  EEME

IREERRNER - FRABEHFEY
MBESER X  AEEAKEHFTERES -
BRARAMIRE - HEREIFITE -
KR TRAFEHL - BEFL - HMH
O ARSEXEATE B B
EREHEEREZEHNAMERT - K
FE - BAREHEGSRSH GRRSIBRI
FEREIER) FNAHH R NERIR
RIREMBEENBM B & REFHE
WBEER  FTERDERE  FTERE
TRUE  BERTZFERRE - BEX
BMERTIEIANE -
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2.2.1 Launch of Online Education

The Group has responded positively to the Guiding Opinions on
Promoting the Healthy Development of Online Education issued
by the Ministry of Education issued by eleven departments
including the Ministry of Education by relying on its own resources
of Wisezone Data Technology Education and cooperating with
the online education to organise the research and development
of “Zhiyuanzaixian” video live online education platform. The
platform is currently divided into eight segments (video, live
streaming, certification, etc.), with 10,700+ users, 40,000+ videos
uploaded, 1,000+ related course videos uploaded this Year,
and the maximum number of visitors to a single course reached
47,000+. At present, Zhiyuanzaixian’s videos cover 875 courses in
30 disciplines, including popular core majors such as new media
operations, artificial intelligence, and big data analysis.

In addition, Omick Education of Western Cuisine and Pastry uses
the Omick online app to provide students with help anytime and
anywhere. The “Xinhua Smart Campus Platform” developed by
Xinhua Internet Technology Education is not only used by the
institutions under the Group for daily management of students,
teachers and courses, but also for live broadcast of online courses
to ensure the length and quality of teaching. During the Year,
New East Culinary Education cooperated with platforms such as
Kuaishou, TikTok and Huya to continue launching interactive online
class of “Suspending Classes without Stopping Study, Let’s Cook
with Me”, and organised interesting activities such as “Who can
debut in C position in the Pastry Goddess Online Battle” college live
broadcast competitions.

221 BRARL#E

REEEGEREHNE NS+ —FPIENE
MCERREEGHERRERNESE
B B FEEERNER  BMEERE
HEDEBRET I EREZIRIBERT
BHRETA - ZFA BRI A/ AR GE
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2 MARAR SARE1,00018 - EREF =AM
47,000+ ° B AT - B RAELSRIREI0E
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fRapp B2 T IRMUBER BEI A B B) - 37
ERHAERENHEREREYR] - T
ERAREEREREAESL - HE - RiE
MEE  BERARNGKLEREER REHZ
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2.3 Support and Guarantee of Graduate Placement and 2.3 BIBtFEZFFERE
Entrepreneurship

The Group has established Graduate Entrepreneurship and Job REBEBEANIOZEM MR BIMERE
Placement Guidance Centers in more than 30 cities in the country, Rl SRERREBAMENLAE  BEE
and each school has set up Graduate Entrepreneurship and E¥NBIEEEEMMAREREAMET
Placement Office, which is equipped with professional graduate ANEE  WHRBEEE4ANELMHER
entrepreneurship and placement advisors to provide students with o ROBRBEBLEREBNR -
entrepreneurship and job placement platforms and assistance.

Also, heart-warming employment visits were conducted for

students to fully understand their employment.

During the Year, led by the Group’s Graduate Entrepreneurship REE - SEHAILEL RS FHEIEE -
and Placement Department and various business departments, Be TEERERT —RIKBAIFEE

a series of large-scale graduate entrepreneurship and placement PoRTERNREATEEENLRE
BREeEREEHIN %Fﬂﬁ EE 2
REIBHD - BEEREELETHEADZ
g BECHERCHFELE ELRIE
BAL - ZMEECERABTRKEER®
%ﬁﬁﬁ’]l% NEEXRE  BERIE

and sharing sessions, held school-enterprise seminars with famous WHETHERTARLE 2 HU2E

activities were held jointly with our subsidiary schools, In addition
to regular recruiting activities such as campus talent mutual
selection fairs or corporate job fairs, we also hired career planning
mentors, invited outstanding graduates to conduct consultation

companies, and cooperated to cultivate talents. We combined ?%?mﬂ'?i&:ﬂﬁ%%ﬂ@’ R
actual employment-oriented factors such as the employment needs
of enterprises, from major setting, career planning counselling,
to factors such as internship opportunities and directional
employment, to improve students’ employment level in all aspects

and in multiple ways.

Activity date Entrepreneurship and placement activity subject
SEENRR S ES ]

“Spring Breeze Brings Warmth, Employment Brings True Needs” Zhengzhou Wontone
2022.2.12 Automotive Education 2022 Spring Large-scale Campus Talent Mutual Selection Fair

[FEREAE MEXEBIBMNSBETEHE2022F5ZTARRBEASEES

“Spring Breeze Action” Wuhan Wontone Automotive Education 2022 Special Recruitment
2022.2.13 Fair and Spring Talent Mutual Selection Fair

[(FRTE] REEBAEHF2022F S5 RESEETASEES

“Talent Gathering in the East Education to Win the Future” China East Education 2022
2022.2.25 Spring High-skilled Talent Mutual Selection Fair
[(FTERA BEARITERABE2022F5FTa AL EEe
“Lead the World with Technology, Win the Future with Career” Shandong Xinhua Internet
Technology Education 2022 Large-scale Talent Supply and Demand Mutual Selection Fair

2022.3.9 : )
and School-enterprise Cooperation
[BATRT BEBARILIRAESEBE2022FRABAS HELESEREEE
“Travelling around the World with Technology and Creating the Future with Intelligence”
5022.3.9 Nanjing Xinhua Internet Technology Education 2022 Spring Internet Talents Dual Selection

Conference
[HITRT BEIRRI R EENSE 20220 5FEMMAAS EED
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Activity date

& BB

Entrepreneurship and placement activity subject

AIREEHEE

2022.3.18

2022.3.23

2022.5.11

2022.5.19

2022.6.21

2022.6.21

2022.6.22

2022.6.25

2022.7 A )

2022.7.22

2022.7.24

2022.7 A A

2022.8.17

2022.11.30

“New Career, New Skills, New Youth” Shanxi Xinhua Internet Technology Education and
Taiyuan Municipal Government co-hosted the 2022 Industry-Education Consortium Internet
Talent Scheduling Conference

[FrBZE ke S FLFEMESIIE BAR T BN S £ #2024 E 2 A 5 Bt
MATTEES

Shaanxi Xinhua Internet Technology Education and Shanghai Eyu E-Commerce jointly held
a special online job fair

PRETEB A B E DEEAS FRABARRNGE LE5HEe

Xinhua Internet Technology Education held the “2022 Summer and Autumn Enterprise Job
Fair”

MEBRHBRIT2022F EMF XL S HES ]

“Integration of industry and education to build the future” Wontone Automotive Education
2022 School-enterprise Joint Construction of Industrial Colleges and “Double High” Talent
Training

[EHRE BRARIERTBEHB022FREAFELBRE[ESIASEE

“2022 Brand New Start” Xinhua Internet Technology Education Press Conference on Digital
Intelligence Skills Training Project and New Major
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New East Culinary Education visits Jiangsu Chef Queen
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2022 New East Culinary Education Pastry School-enterprise Joint Seminar

2022 FT R REEH A A E T MR B R AT S

New East Culinary Education “Life + Colourful Youth Vocational Education Program” and
2022 Press Conference for New Major

MRARAHBEE+ S X EERHGET S | B2022F M EXRME

2022 “Career” is Here for You Shanxi New East Culinary Education Large-scale
Employment Mutual Selection Fair

2022 B RIRRILFEFT R A R B RE X EES

“Talent Gathering in the East Education to Win the Future” Hohhot New East Culinary
Education 12th Summer and Autumn School-enterprise Mutual Selection Fair

[(TBRF BEAKIFMEFIRITAREE T _EERERCEES

“Happy Career Makes Colourful Youth Life” Shaanxi New East Culinary Education 2022
Autumn Large-scale Talent Booking Mutual Selection Fair

[FRRBEXRSHEFEIREFTRA FEHEF2022FMNERWASAELES

Xinhua Internet Technology Education’s institutions held a series of outstanding alumni
consultation sessions

MEBRHUEE THRREN— RIBEHRRFAE

2022 New Oriental Culinary Education Chinese Food Orientation School-enterprise Joint
Seminar

2022 TR R B T E F AR SRS

“School-Enterprise Integration to Create the Future” China East Education Group

Appointment Ceremony of Career Planning Instructors
[REmE HAIKRKIPBERAHE SBEBEREEMETES
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Case sharing 1: In mid-February 2022, the institutions under China East Education and the Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security held the 2022 “Spring Breeze Action” recruitment series of activities entitled “Spring

Breeze Brings Warmth, Employment Brings True Needs”.
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HENAN XINHUA OUTSTANDING ALUMNI ALMA MATER TRIP
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Case sharing 2: In mid-to-late July 2022, Sh| jiazhuang Xinhua Internet Technology Education, Chengdu Xinhua

Internet Technology Education, Henan Xinhua Internet Technology Education and a series of other institutions held
outstanding honorary alumni consultation and sharing sessions.
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3. DREAM BUILDING WITH CRAFTMANSHIP,
TALENTS CULTIVATED TO BECOME COMPETENT
TECHNICAL BACKBONE

3.1 Protection of Students’ Rights and Interests

Since our students include adults and minors, we strictly comply
with the Tort Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Minors and other
relevant laws and regulations for the protection of the rights and
interests of students and parents.

Safeguarding Students’ Fundamental Personal Rights

The right to health is one of the most basic rights of students. We
conduct complete inspections on campus, dormitories and other
educational facilities to prevent incidents that endanger personal
safety and also ensure a safe and healthy learning environment. At
the same time, we strive to build a respectful campus, respecting
the dignity, the rights of honor and privacy of students.

We establish independent files for students and parents, and
impose strict regulations on the protection of personal information
and confidential management of files. We have established post
confidentiality agreement and the “Information Confidentiality
System”, and employees must sign the post confidentiality
agreement when they are onboard. After the information of student
and parent is collected and processed into the management
system, it can only be viewed with the authorization of the school
management personnel.

Safeguarding Students’ Rights and Interests in Receiving Education

We insist on the idea of student-oriented, and create a stage for
their growth and development. We respect the differences of
students, pay great attention to each individual, and will not treat
them differently because of their gender, race, religion or cultural
background.
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Safeguarding Students’ Rights to Know and Appeal

Students can exercise their right to know through the following
channels such as school websites, publications, broadcasts,
publicity boards, bulletin boards and other public resources to learn
about the school’s news, rules and regulations, and academic
trends. The relevant departments of the school and the class
teachers are responsible for the communication and transmission
of information to students and parents. Professional counsellors
and teachers can answer questions about students’ concern.
In addition, students and parents can learn about the situation
through field visits. All schools have established corresponding
procedures for the transmission and acquisition of information to
ensure the timeliness and accuracy of information transmission.

The right of appeal is also a basic legal right of students and
parents. Based on the actual situation of the school, we implement
the “Complaint Handling Measures” to regulate the institutions,
responsibilities and procedures for handling complaints. The
principal’s mailbox set up by the school can make it easy for
students to report directly to the principal when they encounter
problems. Meanwhile, for students to publicize the contact
information between the inspectors of the institutions and the
heads of the main departments, the “Group Regulations on the
Management of Complaints and Reports” also require that the
complaint report board of the Audit and Supervision Department
of the Group be posted in each office of the institution so that
students can obtain the channels and contact details of their
complaints. In response to complaints, the student’s class teacher
first records the complainant’s relevant situation, including name,
contact phone number, complaint reason, etc., and establishes
a complaint file. We will follow up and conduct joint investigations
with relevant departments to understand the real situation of the
problem, handle it carefully, and report it to the management team.
At the same time, we actively communicate with student and
parents until the complaint is resolved. We will also conduct regular
follow-up visits to complainants to confirm that the problems have
been properly resolved. During the Year, the Group did not receive
any complaints on the quality of teaching and services.
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3.2 Protecting Health and Safety

In order to ensure the safety and stability on campus, the Group
established a Safety Production Committee at the headquarter.
The members of the committee include the Company’s senior
management personnel. The responsibility of the Safety
Production Committee is to study, manage, coordinate and guide
the Company’s major safety production issues and organize
important safety production activities. Furthermore, the Group
has set up a Safety Production Guidance Office, which is a
subordinate organization of the Safety Production Committee, and
is responsible for the overall planning, inspection and summary of
safety management in terms of implementation. The principal is
the first person responsible for the safety production work of each
school. Each school has a Safety Work Leadership Team and a
safety specialist. In order to implement the responsibility of safety
management departments at all levels of the Group and make
practical efforts in safety management, we require all schools and
departments to sign the three-level Safety Responsibility Agreement
under the principle of “the person who takes charge shall be
responsible” to further clarify the primary responsibility of safety
management.

We strictly abide by the Education Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the local School Safety Regulations and other laws
and regulations related to campus safety, and in accordance
with the Group’s School Safety Management System, Fire
Safety Management System, Food Safety Management System,
Environmental Safety Management System, Group Emergency
Response Plan and in light of the actual condition, each school
formulates relevant safety management system.
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We attach importance to regular daily and special safety education,
require our schools to regularly carry out relevant safety education
activities, and have created an original “three teachings and three
trainings” education management system, covering safety legal
education courses. During the Year, our schools organised and
held seminars on safety knowledge on special topics such as anti-
telecommunications fraud, law, and fire protection, to strengthen
students’ life safety education and enhance students’ awareness
of the legal system. In the professional courses, we also educated
students on standardized operation and emergency response in
fire prevention, gas, electricity and tools. We also invited police
officers to schools for popular science education on special topics
such as traffic safety for students. In addition, each class holds
regular safety themed class meetings, covering topics such as
epidemic prevention and control, anti-fraud publicity and prevention
of violence in schools to enhance students’ safety awareness in an
all-round way.

Campus Security Management

Some of the brands of main business of the Group, including New
East Culinary Education, Xinhua Internet Technology Education and
Wontone Automotive Education, mainly offer vocational education
courses with longer duration from half-year to three years. Most of
the students live on campus, so the schools mainly adopt semi-
closed management. In order to ensure the life and property safety
of teachers, students and employees, the campus has set up a
strict security system and personnel, and is equipped with a 24-
hour full-coverage monitoring system. Full-time teachers are on
duty day and night in the school every day (including holidays),
and abnormalities are reported in a timely manner. During the
Year, we continued to improve the “triple inspection” mechanism
of self-inspection, audit supervision and safety inspection of the
schools, and continued to improve the ability of campus safety
hazard investigation and governance by strengthening the intensity
and coverage of safety inspections and implementing rectification
opinions.
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Fire safety management

In terms of fire safety, the Group and the schools strictly abide
by the “Fire Prevention Law of The People’s Republic of China”,
and the provisions such as local “Fire Control Regulations”, and
formulated the Fire Safety Management System and the Fire
Emergency Plan. We require the fire management work to be
implemented and inspected from the following aspects: self-
inspection of fire safety facilities, improvement of fire safety
systems, reinforcement of fire safety education, implementation
of fire safety measures, and establishment of fire safety normal
working mechanism. We also cooperate with the regular
inspections of local fire department. During the week of “Fire
Safety Day”, all schools focus on the annual fire safety special
work. In addition, with the Group’s guiding ideology of “safety first,
prevention first, comprehensive governance”, fire safety training
was actively conducted for staff at all levels. Through “indoor
theoretical teaching + outdoor practical teaching”, the staff of the
Company were made aware of the importance of fire safety work
and were well versed in fire safety skills. During the Year, the Group
has not experienced any fire safety incidents or inappropriate fire
safety violations.
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Mental health management

We paid great attention to the mental health of students, and
strived to improve the safety education mechanism combining
“school-family-society” to help students establish a positive and
happy attitude. We actively played the guiding role of the school in
safety education for parents, strengthened home-school contact,
maintained active communication with parents of students, and
exchanged students’ psychological state in a timely manner.
We also organically combine mental health education with daily
teaching, and set up mental health assistance mechanisms such
as psychological counselling rooms or psychological hotlines in
schools. The Student Office, the Academic Affairs Office and the
Counselling Centre are responsible for daily psychological guidance
and facilitation. During the Year, all schools actively carried out
courses and activities to care for students’ mental health to help
students improve their mental health awareness.
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Case sharing: Guangzhou Xinhua Internet Technology School organized the “Caring for Youth with Hearts”

education event to protect youth’s physical and mental health
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Health and Food Safety

In order to ensure the effective implementation of campus health
work, we comply with the School Health Work Ordinance and
formulate the School Health Supervision System. In accordance
with the requirements of the national health department, the
management of teaching hygiene, sports hygiene, food hygiene
and school environmental hygiene has been clarified. We urge the
improvement of all courses, environment and diet that do not meet
the health requirements.

We have always adhered to food safety as one of our bottom lines.
The Group has arranged the logistics business department to be
responsible for supervising and managing canteens, supermarkets
and student life services, which were managed by specialized
companies in different regions. The Group has relevant regulations
on the purchase, processing, sale and storage of food samples,
and has formulated the Food Hygiene Management System. On
the basis of the requirements of the Group, all schools formulated
management systems such as Canteen Health Management
System, Dietary Management System, Dishware Disinfection
System, Canteen Health Management System, and Food Sample
System. We comply with the national “Food Hygiene Law”, and
establish stricter standards on the basis of national standards. We
also revise the systems in time according to the updated laws.
We have also established a sound “Food Hygiene and Safety
Emergency Plan”, which clarifies the accident emergency handling
process from the aspects of reporting system, rescue measures,
medical rescue, source of disease protection, personnel scheduling
and information disclosure. We also regularly carry out food
poisoning emergency plan drills to ensure the effectiveness and
enforceability of the plan.

We strictly control the procurement of raw materials and food.
Suppliers must have a certificate of quality assurance system,
and must ensure the freshness and quality of raw materials, and
provide certificates and inspection certificates. The canteen staff
are required to have physical examination once a year before taking
the post. In the process of cooking, the food must be cooked
thoroughly, and it is also required to separate the cooked food from
the raw food. Tableware and utensils must be disinfected in strict
accordance with the standard of “first wash, second brush, third
flush and fourth disinfection” to meet the relevant national health
standards. The food produced by the canteen and sold by the
supermarket must be kept for 48 hours for inspection and test by
the superior food safety department and educational authorities.
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Considering the specific nature of the Group’s training profession,
the Group has designed a dedicated ingredient procurement
system for the procurement of ingredients for its culinary courses,
information on procurement requirements, applications, names and
types of dishes to be demonstrated are all available at a glance to
ensure food safety of the teaching ingredients.

The Group and schools carry out regular on-site inspection of food
hygiene in canteens and supermarkets. The Audit and Supervision
Department of the Group conducts the inspection once a year, and
the Logistics Business Department inspects twice a year. Schools
usually conduct random inspections and give timely feedbacks to
relevant departments. In order to listen to the students’ opinions
on the school canteen, we set up a suggestion box and arrange
the Logistics Business Department to communicate with the
students. We also carry out safety education work on food safety
for students.
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Case sharing: Contingency Plan for Food Poisoning at Wontone Automotive Education in Jilin
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3.3 Strict Teaching Quality Assurance

Teaching Quality Evaluation System

We adhere to the principle of “quality of education is the lifeline
of running a school”. A three-tier quality supervision system is
developed and formed by the business departments of the Group,
schools and teachers. We can understand and master the dynamic
situation in a purposeful and planned manner in teaching through
daily teaching inspection, normal assessment of teaching process,
feedback of teachers, regular assessment of students, and regular
satisfaction survey to students and parents. We also communicate,
provide feedbacks and adjust the teaching in a timely manner.

In order to improve the quality of teaching, schools establish
a mechanism of teaching inspection and supervision. Schools
conduct regular or random checks on teachers’ teaching plan,
teaching satisfaction, assessment and evaluation, and evaluation
of their professional titles. Any innovative idea or deficiency found
will be timely concluded. In addition, understanding the opinions
of teachers and students through multiple channels is also very
important for us to comprehensively improve the quality of teaching.
Every quarter, school management team and teachers hold
seminars to collect teachers’ suggestions and opinions on various
aspects of teaching and propose corrective measures. Bi-monthly
student symposiums are also organised by the school management
team to listen to the questions raised by students and effectively
put them into practical actions. At the end of each course, we
will organise students to complete a satisfaction survey on the
situation of teaching on the online satisfaction system. Meanwhile,
in the monthly special inspection of integration construction, we
will also conduct telephone interviews with students who have
been employed for 3 to 6 months to understand their employment
stability rate, salary standard rate and employment satisfaction.
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The Audit and Supervision Department of the Group conducts
annual surveys on students’ satisfaction with the work of the
school. During the Year, the Audit and Supervision Department of
the Group conducted investigation on 187 schools, and collected a
total of 24,579 student questionnaires. Students’ satisfaction with
all aspects of the school is above 90 points (out of 100 points), and
the recommendation rate for institutions is as high as 92.30%. The
evaluation of the Group in the past three years (including this Year) is
as follows:
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Average points/Recommended rate

Evaluation indicators

TEIER

Teaching quality 95.78 points
ERNHUSEE 95.78%
Practical teaching 96.02 points
SRHE B 96.02%
Class management 92.78 points
SRR ER 92.78%
Dormitory management 92.03 points
EREEERE 92.03%
Job placement and entrepreneurship guidance 94.23 points
AT 94.23%
BB EEER

Recruitment activities held by the school 93.27 points
ERFARMNMFED 93.27%
IJob placement and entreprgneurshlp promotion 94.47 points
in campus arld schooi websites 94475
RERNRERAEALEITEE & '
Whether to recommend the school 92.30%

T RERBEARRR 92.30%

4 OVERCOMING DIFFICULTIES TOGETHER, JOINING
HANDS WITH EXCELLENT EMPLOYEES TO LEAD
THE COMPANY’S PROSPERITY TOGETHER

The Group always regards its employees as our most valuable
wealth, whether they are those in the management position that
drive the Group to forge ahead, teachers that work in the front line
of teaching, or those in the logistics position that silently commit
himself/herself to, and every employee contributes his/her own
value to the vigorous development of the Group. We believe, on
the road of “promoting education and serving the country”, making
good use of talents is the primary productive force for enterprise
development while being kind to talents is the foundation for the
long-term development of the enterprise.

B85 HEE
2021

20215
95.12 points 94.19 points
95125 94197
95.89 points 96.13 points
95.89% 96.13%
93.43 points 93.38 points
93.437 93.387
91.86 points 91.54 points
91.867 91.54%
94.68 points 93.35 points
94.687 93.357
92.56 points 91.64 points
92.567 91.647
94.26 points 93.32 points
94.269 93.32%
91.08% 90.22%
91.08% 90.22%
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4.1  Employee Profile

The headquarter of the Group has 17 functional departments, 11
business divisions, and 244 operating schools under it, with a total
of 11,6712 employees and the total employee turnover rate® is
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REEBE LB RALEPII7E - FREB11
8 - WL TBEERR244F - HERRE

T11,6712A - BTAEERAEIA10.9% ©

19.9%.
By gender Employee turnover rate by gender
3] BIRKEREINS
\\
\ I
4 2.59%
o 5 10 15 20 25
® Mo ® Femae ° Mae ® Female
BeRT HHET mEaT PUTES
Employment category Training data by employee category
#{E RWABIE SR
< NATHER
o 5 10 15 20
® Fultime ® Pattime ® Fultime ® Partime
28 #Bi 25 *R
2 The number of employees comprises 11,671 full-time employees. 2 BTHEHE1167T1R2HET - AFE -

During the Year, 1,163 part-time external teaching staff were not

included in the statistics of the number of employees.

8 Employee turnover rate by relevant category = number of employee S REBERIE S E IRAL R
turnover in that category/total number of employees in that category *

100%

Under 30 ® 3140
F0BBIAT 31-408

41-50 Over 51
41-508% SUREAL

By region
HWERR
12

N\

® Mainand China @ Hong Kong China
hERR PEEE

1 163%%%%%%&%%1 TBREEET
HEFFTOEH o

K=z fER 8
TRk AB/ZIER B T4 100%

Employee turnover rate by age group
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4.2 Employee Rights Protection

We abide by the national and regional laws and regulations such
as the “Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Labour
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Special
Provisions on the Labour Protection of Female Workers”, the
“Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of
Women’s Right and Interests”, “Social Insurance Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, “Regulations on Work-Related Injury
Insurance”, “Trade Union Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
“Regulations on the Paid Annual Leave of Employees”, “Measures
on National New Year Holidays and Memorial Days”, “Provisions
on the Prohibition of the Use of Child Labour”, etc. Based on these
laws and regulations, we have established internal management
procedures to regulate the Group’s policies and measures on
recruitment, hiring, promotion, dismissal, compensation and
benefits, attendance and vacation, equal opportunities, diversity,
and non-discrimination.

The Group has formulated personnel management systems such
as the “Recruitment Management Regulations” and “Employee
Resignation Management Rules” for the recruitment, employment
and dismissal of employees in accordance with the PRC
regulations and local regulations, and strictly enforced the relevant
work, rest and leave systems through the “Attendance and Holiday
Management Policy”. According to the regulations, employees are
entitled to paid or unpaid leave such as statutory holidays, personal
leave, sick leave, marriage leave and maternity leave in accordance
with the law. At the same time, the Group is committed to creating
a fair and harmonious working environment and rejects any form
of insult and discrimination. We do not give different treatments
to employees based on their ethnicity, race, age, gender, marital
status and religious belief.

In addition, we firmly prohibit forced and exploitative labour
practices and promise not to use child labour under the legal age.
The Group’s “Employment Management System” clearly stipulates
that the Human Resources Department conducts strict inspections
on applicants’ identification information and other documents
during the recruitment process, and confirms the authenticity of
age and other information before hiring. If our employees discover
related issues, they can report to the upper management through
real name or anonymous methods. Our Audit and Supervision
Department and other relevant departments will promptly
investigate and give feedback. During the Year, the Group did not
receive any case of child labour or forced labour.
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Regarding employees’ health and safety, the Group has not had
any work-related fatalities in the past three years (including the
Year). During the Year, there were 565 lost days due to work injury,
mainly due to work-related injury leave claimed by employees who
contracted the virus during the COVID-19 outbreak.

The Group provides a competitive salary and welfare system for
employees, adopts a combination of fixed and variable salary,
and operates an improved a diversified welfare system. According
to the regulations, we pay “insurances and housing fund” to all
employees, as well as provide promotion training, working lunch,
high-temperature subsidies, paid annual leave, health examinations,
team building activities, year-end bonuses, holiday benefits,
development training, employee shuttle, employee dormitory,
employee family care and other welfare measures.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report &iE » # @R ERRE
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4.3 Employee promotion

The Group has established a sound employee promotion

mechanism and adopted the dual-track promotion channel of

position rank and title system, which provides an upward ladder

for employees of the Group, its business divisions and subordinate

units.

Business divisions

VAN
B/A

43 BIEZH
AEFERY TREMETE ﬂ%ﬂ A
BT EEEEOTNNEABRERAS

CEEHNTEBREMMNETRH TR
HEETHEPEES -

Subordinate units

Level 1
—#&
Level 2
—&
Level 3
=&

High level
=g

Level 4

7m A%

Level 5
AR

Mid-to-high level Level 6
=B Y

Level 7
4

Level 8
J\AR

Chairman

EER

President

B

Executive vice president

BiREIEE

Vice president/

Chief financial officer /

BB BEIBE

Board secretary/director/

Assistant to chairman/

President assistant
ErenE B

EEREIE BEENE

zv i««

IUII

Executive deputy general

Department head

- manager (chair,
mE ger (chair)

BISRIARRTE (X45)

Deputy head-chair/
Acting deputy
head-chair/

Deputy general
manager-chair/
Executive deputy head
BER—EH

REEBR—FH/ 1ALz
BRI

Deputy department head/

Chief engineer /

BIFR, R TI26E0

TEREEQ

General manager

School principal/(Regional)
general manager/Executive
deputy general manager (chair)
PR,/ (Ri) B/
BRI (X5

Deputy school principal-chair/
(Regional) deputy general
manager-chair/Acting deputy
school principal-chair/(Regional)
acting deputy general manager-
chair

Bl R — R ()88
B — 8 RIERFR R —
R () RIRE LR (=
)

Deputy school principal/
(Regional) deputy general
manager

Bl R,/ (&%) 848452

Deputy general manager
BliRseIE — x5
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Business divisions

Subordinate units

Middle level
HE

Basic level
HE

Level 9
L&

Level 10
TR

Level 11

T—%

Level 12
=4

Level 13
+=%

Level 14
a4

Assistant to department

head-chair
EPRENIE — =45

Assistant to department

head/Deputy chief
engineer

HRRBNIE B4 TA26D

Manager
e

Deputy manager
Bllaee

Supervisor

e

Coordinator

S8

£ 5

General manager
assistant
HARIRENIE

Manager
e

Deputy manager
Bl E

Supervisor
£

Coordinator

28
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TE&EN

School principal assistant/
(Regional) general manager
assistant-chair/(Regional)
director-chair/(Regional) agency
director-chair

B &BNIE, (R 1) %@,Z%

B (miE) BEs—
T%/(liﬂ)ﬁﬁ%@%‘—}ﬁ

School principal assistant/
(Regional) general manager
assistant/(Regional) director
PR RENIE, (& 1) 4R 4538
12/ (& 15) el

(Regional) deputy director/
Head/Manager/Supermarket
manager

(i) BI4EEE /£1E 45318
HmER

Deputy head/Deputy manager/
Supermarket deputy manager
BlEEBIEE EmEER
Supervisor/Head chef/
Supermarket foreman

& BRBTEN
Coordinator
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4.4 Staff Training and Development

We believe that the progress of employees and the development
of the Group are complementary and indispensable, so we attach
great importance to the improvement of employees’ professional
ability and comprehensive quality. A special training center is set up
under the administration and personnel department of the Group,
which is responsible for leading the formulation of staff training
programs, covering the modules of Management Competence,
Foundation Competence of All Staff and Professional Sequence
Competence, and organizing the implementation together
with each business unit. We set up various training courses for
employees of different positions, different levels and different
business areas, including corporate culture training, professional
training for teachers, market training, network operation training,
etc. After the training, the training center will issue a training
satisfaction questionnaire and get corresponding feedback in time,
so that the training substance can be strengthened and improved
in the future to meet the training needs of employees. During the

4.4 BTHEIHERE

BPRRETIMESHEBENERERE
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Year, the Group formulated the “Notice on the 2022 Xinhua Lecture
Hall Training Work Plan” to design customised training plans for the
teaching staff of different business departments and schools with
different numbers of employees.
Category of training Training course classification

BARE D 8

=l Epl

Professional competence Marketing training
HERENR Teaching training

Academic management training

Comprehensive function training

TI5R

HER

=)

raBRER

General administration training

EEPA) Professionalism and general skill training

FRAEEE
BEEEEBMARE

Corporate level Corporate culture training

NGI)- Regulation and system training

General competence

Integrity training
BEXI(EE
REGIER
FRIRAE
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Case sharing: On 28 May 2022, Changsha Xinhua Computer College launched an onboarding programme for

new employees to learn corporate culture, rules and regulations, and other company-related content

EPINZE : 2022F5 280 - RPIMEEK B HF1 8 THEN B T
RRREHEEARAEAR

Training data by Gender
R BB S R IE RIS R

F BEREXILE

49.23%
_ e
0 2 4 6 8 10
® Percentage of male Percentage of female ® Average training hours of male employees® ® Average training hours of female employees®
employees trained* employees trained* FHE T FHZHIREe Z B TFHR R8s
BHETEME T B TENaE

Training data by employee category
#R{ERERE S IEIER
.66%
15.24%

0 1 2 4 5 6
@ Percentage of senior Percentage of middle Average training hours of ® Average training hours of
management trained management trained senior management middle management
BRERABZIEL PREBRABZIEL BRERABTHZIH FREEABTHEEE
Percentage of teachers ® Percentage of general ® Average training hours of teachers® @ Average training hours of general staff
trained staff trained DT |5 B ERATFHRIIHE

HEDZHIMELL HBEATSIMEL

4 Percentage of employees trained by relevant category = number of

employees trained in the particular category/employees trained *100%

5 Average training hours of employees by relevant category = total training

hours of employees in a particular category/number of employees in a
particular category

5 During the Year, the Group did not make detailed statistics on the

number of hours of training participated by teachers
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4.5 Humanistic Care

For the selfless dedication and ingenuity of employees, the Group
also provides a safe, healthy, harmonious and friendly working
environment for this large family, and strengthens the spiritual
care of employees. Our schools often organize various cultural
development activities for employees, including Teachers’ Day tug-
of-war competition, sports games, Women’s Day activities, teacher-
student basketball games, etc., which greatly enrich employees’
spiritual and cultural life and enhance corporate cohesion.

Taking good care of the teachers

On 7 September 2022, New East Culinary Education under the
Group held the 2022 Teachers’ Day Commendation Activity
of “Promoting the Style of Teachers and Cultivating Virtue and
Cultivating People”. The management extended festive greetings
and heartfelt thanks to all faculty and staff, set up and presented a

series of awards to outstanding faculty and staff, leading all faculty
and staff to celebrate this festival together.

45 NAEIAXBEEZE
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Listening to words from the heart of employees BIZET - BENE

In order to listen to our employees and create a good working BRTREBEEILE  BIERFHIER
atmosphere, the Audit and Supervision Department of the Group EEBREEHEFHYRBYET
conducts annual surveys on a sample of employees to find out ETHERSFAEN TN BBEETIHS

their satisfaction towards various aspects of the Group. According BEETENREE  BRBARFER KR
to the 6,743 questionnaires returned during the Year covering 187 2187FThiR 26,7430 % - ETHEE
institutions, employees’ satisfaction towards the Group in various EHHEMMEESEIN A LECRD109) °
aspects scored above 9 (out of 10), with specific scores for the BE=F (BEAFE) AEHENT

past three years (including this Year) as follows:

Evaluation indicators Average scores in 2022 Average scores in 2021 Average scores in 2020
HEREER 20225 ¥ 15155 20215 ¥ 5555 2020F #1555
Teaching management 9.34 points 9.56 points 9.43 points
HEER 9.34% 9.567 9.43%
Student management 9.47 points 9.52 points 9.43 points
BEEE 9.47% 9.52% 9.43%
Entrepreneurship and employment 9.51 points 9.48 points 9.34 points
BIstETIE 9.51% 9.48% 9.34%
Market operations 9.37 points 9.62 points 9.58 points
minEE 9.37% 9.625 9.58%
Logistical support 9.12 paints 9.07 points 9.19 points
ZERE 9.12% 9.07% 9.19%
Staff training 9.23 points 9.36 points 9.41 points
8 T 9.23% 9.367 9.41%
Hardware equipment 9.08 points 9.35 points 9.13 points
B hE 9.037% 9.357 9.13%
Functional services 9.01 points 9.24 points 9.08 points
5L BPFI AR TS 9.01% 9.24%5 9.08%
System enforcement 9.56 points 9.42 points 9.36 points
HIEHITIER 9.565 9.42% 9.36%9
Management of mid-level and above 9.38 points 9.32 points 9.21 points
management team 9.387 9.32% 9.21%
HERALEREKER
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5. LOW-CARBON AND ENERGY-SAVING,
MULTIPLE MEASURES TO EMPOWER GREEN
TRANSFORMATION

The Group is the pioneer in vocational education in China. We
believe that environmental protection and green development are
the fundamental responsibilities of the Group. We abide by the
relevant laws and regulations such as the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Energy Conservation Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Water Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Water
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Atmospheric Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Ambient Noise
Pollution, the Water and Soil Conservation Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Appraising of Environment Impacts, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Soil Pollution,
the National Catalogue of Hazardous Wastes, regulate resource
and discharge management, reduce waste gas and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharge to water and land, and the generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous wastes.

The Board is responsible for approving the Group’s ESG-related
targets and reviewing the progress of their achievement. During
the year 2021, the Group has formulated relevant goals and
action plans in four aspects of waste generation, greenhouse
gas emissions, energy use and water use in the environmental
field. During the Year, the Group reviewed the practical action
plans of the three selected schools for their respective ESG goals,
confirmed and reviewed the results of the progress of ESG goals.
By tracking and recording the implementation of each goal by the
schools, the Group continues to promote the overall progress of
achieving ESG goals. In the future, the Group will continue to review
the progress of the realisation of environmental goals, advance the
implementation of environmental goals, and extend the scope of
actionable actions to more operating campuses.

5. EixHigE  SHEALEEERECER
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The Group is well aware that the setting of ESG targets will
directly affect the performance and the implementation of
related management systems. In order to continue to promote
energy conservation and emission reduction and improve
ESG management, during this Year, the Group selected three
institutions as the scope of implementation, and formulated
relevant goals and action plans in four aspects of waste generation,
greenhouse gas emissions, energy use and water use in the
environmental field. After identification and assessment, as the air
emissions from school operations are relatively limited, the impact
on environmental impact is minimal, no relevant objectives are
disclosed in this Report. In the future, the Group will continue to
consolidate its experience in energy saving and emission reduction
and gradually extend the scope of environmental target setting and
emission reduction actions to more operating campuses.

Environmental

target Indicators Action plans

L

BEAR 58

Increase food waste
recycling

IR IR E 8

Promote the Empty Tray Campaigns by putting | A total of six "Eat Smart and

Empty Tray

Campaigns up posters in student canteens to remind
(Promoting students not to waste food; install video
Participation) cameras at food waste dumping areas to
REBITENEEER monitor food waste.

(HEE2EE)

HENBTE)  EEERSHE ESEY © 12EE | cameras were installed at the
BLEY7RERY) BRI SRARELERE | restaurants where food waste
R5%58 - ESPDRBIBRIEN ©

AEBERAESGHIEREGHEFZEHEANR
RIDAERAE R E M HETT - RFEHREE
ENBERLEE - IRITESGE R - RAFE » K
SEED=FFRASRTHE - pLIRRR
BhHERYES  RERBEN - R
158 P A R 7 B I 5 1R P 8 75 T 1l SE AR A B
RAITERTE - LBHBIMFFER - R
BREEMELAREBIDEEBER - B
REPZEEW  #ARETELERE R
BIRER - KRR AEBEBRELBEER
PGSR - WAL KIRE B IR BT
HHEEREEFZLERR -

Actions taken during the
Year and progress

AEERBITHSEE TN

Empty Tray Campaigns" were
organized and launched, driving
15,000 people to participate in
the Empty Tray Campaigns;

was dumped, and dedicated
supervisors were arranged to
ensure that the Empty Tray
Campaigns were put into
practice.
HABBRRSSHRRE R
178 - %8158 AR EKRIT
8 WEEREERRRE
REBGALTHEAGE -
RRNBITIEIER -

of food waste
composting activities
REEMELESE

schools on a regular basis.

Increase the popularity | Organise food waste composting activities in

EHESERBIMBFHEILED -

A food waste composting
activity was organized and about
1,200 students and teachers
participated in the activity and
utilized about 2.5 tons of food
waste.

RBFRRERERED - 4
1,200E R E X R L2 EEEL 7
SRR T #92. 5B B ARSI
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Environmental
target
REAE

Improve the
utilization rate of
waste resources

Indicators

e

Implement percentage
of waste sorting in
schools and offices
RBR - BAEEST

SRR BE D

Action plans

TEEtE

Implement waste sorting and provide waste
sorting equipment on campus or in the office.
ETuRoR  VERBESBLERENRS
e

Actions taken during the

Year and progress

AEERDTHEEERMR

The percentage of waste sorting
was about 12.1% with waste
recycling equipment with sorting
function in the campus or office.
ERESHAEARLEEFS
BEIhae e RR O R - BT
NIRD N B D AE12.1% °

The penetration rate of
waste sorting
SR D EE R K

Promote waste recycling, conduct regular
publicity and education on waste sorting and
encourage teachers and students to participate
in source sorting of waste.

Through quarterly publicity
education on waste separation
and monthly inspection of
waste separation in student

RABENER HEREZYLY  FHRELFSFENEEE | dormitories, about 20,000
RS BETIE  BERMELEEYRENE - students have been motivated
to increase the awareness of
waste separation and
participate in it.
BATFERRNESEER
YEEGABREEEEEHN
FAEER  TRH2BEEE
RASR D ENE W2 EE
o
Reduce the use of School shops/canteens do not actively/ The action plan is planned to
single-use items remuneratively provide plastic bags and start in the next year.
BAER— XY | disposable cutlery. SRR T —FERRITER
BREE/RETEE AERHEBBSE 0
Reduce non- FM—REEE -
hazardous waste Implement percentage | Full promotion of paperless office and The proportion of paperless
B EEERY of paperless office paperless daily meetings, etc. office is about 35% and the

VS NSRS
o

PEEREEMOBA BRI EBALE -

proportion of paperless meeting
is about 60%.
BRI R L BIX R35% - &
B ERALLBIZ R60%

Reduce hazardous
waste

LB EERY)

LED light installation
data for campus and
office

RE - B AZELEDE
REYE

Expand the selection of LED lights, replace
traditional energy-consuming lights with LED
lights, etc.

BAERFLEDEMEE @ ALEDEEREES

FERERES -

About 200 LED lights have
been selected to replace the
traditional energy-consuming
lights, and the current
percentage of LED lights
installation is about 43%.

B ERL200{ELEDEZHRE
SFEREEE - B AILEDEM TR
e 5149 £43% ©
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Environmental

target
REER

Reduce vehicle

Indicators

ER

The overall fuel
consumption of the
official car or the
number of times the
official car is used

Action plans
HiHE

Strengthen the management of official cars,
record the fuel consumption of official cars,
and conduct regular maintenance of official
cars to reduce fuel consumption per km.

BIERBEER  REABERH - THRE
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Actions taken during the
Year and progress

AFEREATRSEERMR

The fuel consumption of
official vehicles recorded was
basically the same as that in
2021, in compliance with the
management rules for official

DAHEERERERD | ABE - ROEHGREFH vehicles set by the Group.
0reenhouse gas | g es s W EEHEH AR
emissions - T RSN ABERAER
»ﬁi%i%;ﬂé B0 FEEARFFT o
REBHE

Electric or hybrid Encourage the use of electric or hybrid The action plan is planned to

vehicle penetration vehicles. start in the next year.

rate BEEREBIREBNTE SRR T —FERE TS

EREHHERE N £

REERE

Campus greening rate | Carry out tree planting activities and encourage | A total of about 1,000 students

RE#EE teachers, students and parents to participate | and teachers planted more than

: and set a target for the number of trees to be | 60 trees during the tree-planting
Campus greening
BES planted. event on Arbor Day.
HREEE  USBMERRRARSE - | MEREGHE TEEES - #
EMERZANER - ENAI1,000 % A A TEIE /S T84

BREA -
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Environmental
target
REAE

Improving the
efficiency of energy
use

RE ARG AN

Indicators

EBR

Energy consumption
of energy-consuming
equipment

TR R R IRERES
n

Action plans
TEstEl

Develop a maintenance plan to regularly repair
energy-consuming equipment, and regularly
repair and upgrade electronic equipment in
schools to optimize energy efficiency.
HIERIER 8 - THRERERE  BERA
NEFRETREIBERIR - UBEER
K o

Actions taken during the
Year and progress

AEERDTHEEERMR

The relevant action plan has
been actively launched.
EEBRFREMTEEE

The penetration

rate of low energy
consumption devices
EREREREERE

Replace and eliminate high-energy-consuming
equipment, formulate equipment replacement
schedule, etc.
FREARFERRE - HIERBEEREREK

%,

The action plan is planned to
start in the next year.
SRR T —FERRE TS

8o

Energy-saving product
information awareness
EREEMESRLE

Obtain the latest information about energy
saving products, e.g. by participating in energy-
saving products environmental protection

expo to keep up with relevant energy-saving
information, etc.

EMEBRERNRIES - BB NEREE
mIBEREEE - EIABRSREEES

Activities were organized
through student associations to
disseminate information about
various energy-saving products.
BRELHEHEEBEEA
BHZRHREREBES

Energy saving publicity
penetration rate or
number of publicity
activities
BREREEERE
HEMEHAY

Carry out energy-saving publicity activities, and
popularize energy-saving knowledge through
campus posters, training and other activities.
HRHSGREEEE - BEREREE®R - 5l
FREE LA

An hour-long electricity-saving
campaign was carried out for
Earth, and quarterly energy-
saving publicity activities

were conducted with about
5,000 students and teachers
participating in the activities.
FRE T HIREE —/\EES -
W HEREEB—RNEEHE
) - HAE%15,000 AN E L H
BN EEEE) ©

Use of electricity

REE

Formulate sound energy conservation
management work plans and measures, set
up a leading group for energy conservation;
strengthen energy measurement management,
equip energy meters, and measure and count
the consumption of various energy sources.
HITE T & FY BT R B IR TAERT EIANE G - PXALES
KREREL/NME - IsapeRABER - FifEae
et 28 - HRBRERNEBEITIIENRN
At e

The relevant action plan has
been actively launched.
ERBFREMETEEE
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Environmental
Indicators

B

Action plans

185 &

target
REER

5.1 Resource Conservation

We value the rational use of resources and strive to improve the
efficiency of resource use. The Group and the schools in various
regions also formulate applicable internal policies according to the
actual situation. For example, the First Division of Omick Education
of Western Cuisine and Pastry has formulated the “Requirements
for Institutions to Respond to Energy Saving” and the Office
of Wuhan Wontone Automotive Education has formulated the
“Regulations on the Use of Air Conditioning in Wontone Offices”
to respond to the call for low carbon and energy saving, actively
implementing and taking action on low-carbon requirements,
and creating a green working atmosphere and green campus. In
addition to formulating relevant policies, we promote the concept
of conservation at the employee level and promote green concepts
and environmental practices to students in our daily teaching.
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Actions taken during the

Year and progress

AFEREATRSEERMR

51 EHEIR
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Energy

During the Year, the Group consumed a total of 150,658.09 MWh
of energy, with electric power accounting for 67.16% of the total
consumption, making it the main source of energy consumption.
We insist on reducing energy use and improving energy efficiency,
and various business divisions formulate and implement relevant
systems according to the actual situation, such as the Notice on
Summer Electricity Conservation of Changsha On-mind Fashion &
Beauty Education and other management systems. We mainly take

the following measures:

We require the headquarters and all schools to fulfil the
obligation of energy conservation, and broadcast the

environmental protection idea to more staffs and students.

All schools actively implement the concept of saving electricity

and advocate the use of natural light as much as possible.

As part of the new renovation school projects, we started
with the hardware equipment by installing energy-saving
and variable frequency air conditioners and limiting the start-
up time of the air conditioners. In addition, we require that
the temperature setting of the air conditioner shall not be
lower than 26 degrees Celsius in summer, and shall not be
higher than 20 degrees Celsius in winter and stipulate the
requirements including assigning special personnel, scientific
use, reasonable control, and turning off the power before

leaving.

During the course of renovation, we promote the use of OP

energy-efficient lamps to reduce electricity consumption.

During the course of cooking, we monitor and reduce
the consumption of natural gas and electricity through
environmental protection and energy conservation kitchen
equipment and high-performance oil fume purifier, as well as

the installation of a grease and smoke in-line monitor.

—

BETE

REFEE - AEEHKEFEEIR150,658.099K
FLEs - HARE N EEEEN67.16% &
FENRRERER o RPIRER D RERE
B ReES SEETIRRERBERH
TFHITHEOHE - RDEE
ZEHB(EREZTHHAETHBNEE
RHIE o FAMIESHEUA TSR

o BMEREEARLME[EBREDIE
WBERMETS - YREZHETHS
EEERRIER

o ERRBEBITHOMEES - RE
BEERARAIIREA -

o HEHMCERRIAR T - MPAEEMR
AT - EBSAEIREZ I R 2=
W FRRESRE o Mo - BPIBREZF
EHRENRE NMFHER26HBRE -
LFRENRBRENESN20BXE -
TREEABE  HEFER - 5HEH
e ANEREFEL -

o  AEREMNBET  RPEEECEEE
B EE BRI FEE ©

o  ERHHEBET  HBBRREEL
BERBAHE M hEF s UkE
FmEERERE - FAEZELRE

n

(516

Case sharing: Taiyuan Omick Western Pastry and Western Food School used one-button control system, with

multi-lamp remote control, which remotely controlled the lights according to actual needs to reduce the electricity

consumption of the daily operation of the campus.

=Pn=E

P KRBOK R AR P B3 A 2R A — RIS 25 RS RETERE

REERBEZRCAREREARELNELRE -
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Water resources IKEE

During the Year, the Group consumed a total of 4,450,199.51
cubic metres of water resources. The Group mainly realizes the

REE - REELEFEKERS,450,199.51
AW o REBFERBIATHEK - BIEY
KERHERLY ©

conservation of water resources through the following measures.

In the daily operation of the institution, we set quotas for
water consumption restrictions in student apartments and
canteens, and restrict and reduce the usage of water through
quota. We will also adjust the water supply according to
the season. In addition, we post tips on water conservation
and conduct water-saving trainings to improve water-
saving awareness of teachers and students. Besides, some
institutions are promoting waterless classrooms, and save
water through timely maintenance of water-using equipment
and the use of low-water-consumption cleaning and
sanitation methods.

In order to improve the utilization rate of water resource, we
use the reusable water resource such as rain to irrigate the
school plants. In addition, the rainwater recycling system will
be installed in new green building projects.

During the construction of new projects, three-stage
sedimentation tanks are built on site to recycle site water
resources. We are also using water-saving squatting toilets in
new projects to reduce water consumption at the source.
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Other resources

During the daily work, we encourage the electronic and
paperless office, double-sided printing and share through
screen while teaching to minimize the use and waste of
papers. Certain schools have launched online live courses and
on-demand courses, which has effectively reduced the paper
printing. Some institutions have also adopted a registered use
management method for printed paper to reduce unnecessary
waste. During the Year, the Group consumed a total of
46,059.42 kg packs of paper.

Each school’s office will draw up a list of commonly
used office supplies according to its work requirements.
The General Office will be responsible for approving the
benchmarks for the receipt of commonly used teaching and
office supplies and for setting minimum and maximum stock
levels for commonly used office and teaching supplies.

Some schools have stored the surplus ingredients and
seasonings used in teaching to reduce the waste of
ingredients. The schools that act as distribution divisions take
the initiative to reduce the use of outsourced packaging for
distribution.

During daily life, we encourage people to take public transport
and other low-carbon consumption and lifestyle to implement
green living.

In respect of the automobile paint coated and used in train
teaching in automobile schools, we have uniformly purchased
and used water paint. Compared with automobile paint, the
usage of water paint is reduced by two-thirds, and the heat
required for paint baking is reduced by 40%.

During the construction of new projects, we adopt the
prefabricated construction method, giving priority to use PC
bricks, and all construction mortar is ready-mixed mortar. The
factory production and on-site installation decoration mode
can effectively reduce material waste and greatly reduce
construction dust and noise pollution.
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5.2 Emissions Reduction

We attach great importance to the health of students, staffs and
community populace as well as the natural environment. We
establish strict regulation on the management of exhaust gas and
greenhouse gas emission and garbage disposal in all schools,
effectively manage and reduce the emission through continuous
technological innovation. During the Year, after being statistically
reported by various affiliated schools and verification, the Group
has not experienced any pollution incidents or illegal incidents that
have a serious impact on the environment, nor has there been any
environmental protection related issues or complaints that have had
significant impact on the Group.

Exhaust Gas

During the Year, the Group’s emissions of atmospheric pollutants
totalled 8,034.31 kg, including nitrogen oxides 5,904.91 kg, sulphur
oxides 1,626.37 kg and respirable suspended particles of 503.04
kg. The vast majority of these emissions are from the use of piped
gas, piped natural gas and liquefied petroleum gas.

° The training rooms in automobile schools are equipped
with exhaust emission purification devices, which discharge
the tail gas directly through the point-to-point rubber tube
connecting the car with the outdoor, without polluting the
indoor air.

o The automobile schools use dust dry mill and centrally
integrated dry mill, and greatly reduces the pollution of dust to
users and the environment by using a central dust collection
system to quickly inhale and filter the generated dust.
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Case sharing:

Each of our automobile schools’ vehicle training rooms is equipped
with a vehicle exhaust treatment device. The device mainly includes
alloy rail, sliding trolley, rubber exhaust gas recovery tube, rubber
exhaust gas recovery nozzle, etc., in order to achieve the purpose
of processing exhaust gas emissions.

Greenhouse gas

During the Year, the Group’s total greenhouse gas emissions
were 69,354.91 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent, of which the
direct emissions due to the use of fuels, vehicles, diesel generators
and stationary sources were 11,381.47 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent, accounting for 16.41% of the total greenhouse gas
emissions; the indirect emissions from the production of purchased
electricity was 57,703.85 tonnes of carbon dioxide, accounting for
83.20% of the total greenhouse gas emissions.

Wastes

During the Year, the Group generated a total of approximately 4.83
tonnes of hazardous wastes and approximately 23,380.84 tonnes
of non-hazardous wastes.

° All schools promote waste classification and management,
the kitchen wastes, hazardous wastes, recyclables and other
wastes are cleaned up and processed by relevant municipal
departments and third-party companies after being classified
to avoid secondary pollution by hazardous wastes.

° Each institution organizes teachers and students to learn
about waste separation and actively carry out waste
separation on campus.
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° To reduce the negative impact of waste on the environment,
we use rechargeable batteries instead of dry batteries
whenever possible and use more easily degradable materials
for packaging. In addition, we also tend to set up mobile
approval offices to reduce the generation of waste paper.

Sewage

The drainage system of rain and sewage diversion established
in schools can avoid the sewage from flowing to rivers to the
great extent, and reduce the sewage treatment volume. The rain
collected will be reused and the sewage will be discharged after
secondary filtration.

5.3 Environmental Protection

Through the school leading group for energy conservation and
emission reduction, we constantly monitor the implementation
of environmental protection in all schools, implement all kinds
of environmental protection regulations and requirements, and
promote the publicity and education of environmental protection in
all schools.

In the construction of the institutions, the Group insists on its
goal of building beautiful campuses and casting high-quality
projects, and strives for excellence in engineering products.
We strictly comply with relevant laws and regulations, attach
importance to environmental protection and reduce the impact
on the environment. On the one hand, the Group has formulated
internal systems such as the “Engineering Management System”
to regulate every aspect of the project, and launched special
construction programmes in conjunction with regional policies
and systems. On the other hand, the Group is actively engaged in
green construction management and promotion of green building
projects. In the construction of projects, the Group requires the
constructors to carry out construction activities in a manner that
maximises resource conservation and minimises negative impact
on the environment, while ensuring basic requirements such as
quality and safety, so as to achieve energy saving, land saving,
water saving, material saving and environmental protection. During
the Year, the Group has carried out green building construction
projects for the teaching buildings and student dormitories of Anhui
Wontone Automotive Education and Anhui Omick Western Pastry
and Western Food School, and construction projects for green
buildings were carried out.
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Case sharing: For the green building construction project of Anhui
Wontone Automotive Education and Anhui Omick Western Pastry
and Western Food School, we required all building mortar to use
ready-mixed mortar to reduce the waste of building materials.
Sanitary appliances should have a water efficiency rating of Level
2 and a rainwater recycling system should be installed to fully save
water resources. Energy consuming equipment used energy-
efficient products and made full use of renewable energy sources
such as air heat and solar energy to reduce energy consumption.

5.4  Climate Change

As the main business of the Group is vocational education, the
climate change will not have any major impact on our operation.
In case of extreme natural weather such as typhoon, flooding and
sandstorm, we will actively respond to the relevant policies of the
local government, make contingency plans to ensure the safety of
students and staffs. The Group’s institutions actively assess the
climatic risks in their operating areas and formulate and implement
relevant contingency plans to ensure the personal safety of students
and employees. For example, in order to prevent bad weather
such as heavy rain and thunderstorms as well as possible flooding,
Omick Education of Western Cuisine and Pastry has formulated the
“School Emergency Plan for Bad Weather such as Heavy Rain”,
which sets out detailed regulations and requirements in terms of
preparation, emergency measures and work requirements. In the
case of acute physical risks such as flood and fire, we also make
the corresponding contingency plans and disaster prevention plan,
in addition to the various property and life insurances taken out by
the Group, we believe that we have the ability to deal with every
climate crisis.
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6. SOLID FOUNDATION OF DEVELOPMENT
ESTABLISHED IN A FAIR AND EQUITABLE MANNER
AND THROUGH COMPLIANCE OPERATION

6.1 Supplier Management

The Group adheres to the attitude of mutual benefit and win-win
cooperation, and maintains long-term cooperation with a number
of excellent suppliers. We establish a sound supplier management
mechanism to promote the favorable development of the
cooperative relationship. We have formulated the “Implementation
Measures For Group Procurement Material Management”,
“Group Procurement Work Management Measures”, “Supplier
Management Measures”, “Integrity Establishment Responsibility
Management Rules”, and “Bidding Process”, which stated clearly
the organizational division and responsibilities of procurement,
the definition of procurement methods, material classification
and approval authority, procurement procedures, document
filing and contract management, as well as the detailed rules of
supplier management. During the Year, the Group has established
cooperative relationship with 123 suppliers, covering supplier
types such as teaching equipment, software products, electronic
products, and building materials. All suppliers are selected and
cooperated with according to the above system process.
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The procurement management department clarifies the supplier
admission mechanism, establishes a supplier database, and registers
supplier information by category. The supplier must fill in the “Supplier
Registration Form” and sign the “Integrity Commitment Letter”,
and provide the basic information and qualification materials of the
enterprise. We will check and verify the above information. During
the review, we will pay attention to the potential risk factors including
the social reputation of the supplier, the compliance with the laws
and whether the products supplied meet the relevant national
environment regulations, in addition to checking that whether the
products provided by the suppliers meet our needs, and we will give
priority to the suppliers with lower risk for cooperation.

We also conduct on-site visits to our suppliers to gain a better
understanding of their scale of operations and production
management systems to ensure that they meet our requirements
on product quality and environmental protection, as well as to
review the product inspection reports provided by our suppliers.
Our procurement team conducts both on-site visits and business
negotiations to gain a better understanding of our suppliers’
production scale and staffing structure, key business performance,
after-sales and value-added services, and other key points to
ensure that the products they supply meet the high standards we
have always adhered to.

The Group also hopes to reduce the negative impact on the
environment through green procurement. In particular, Anhui New
East Culinary Education has developed a raw material procurement
system, formulated and implemented the “Regulations on Green
Procurement for Schools”, gave priority to products with low
energy consumption, low pollution and long life cycle manufactured
by enterprises that have obtained environmental protection
labels, clean production audits or ISO 14001 certification, used
environmentally friendly materials and energy-saving lamps in
renovation, and purchased environmentally friendly teaching aids
such as new energy vehicles, environmentally friendly energy-
saving stoves and UV photocatalysis system in order to achieve the
goal of energy saving and emission reduction.

Furthermore, every year, we will evaluate the annual overall
performance of suppliers from six aspects including qualification,
quality, price, supply, service and other advantageous items.
Suppliers scoring more than 95 are deemed as excellent suppliers,
suppliers whose scores ranging from 86 to 95 are deemed as
good suppliers, suppliers whose scores ranging from 76 to 85 are
deemed as qualified suppliers, suppliers whose scores ranging
from 66 to 75 will be put in the observation list, and the Group will
cooperate selectively with such suppliers based on the observation.
Suppliers scoring less than 66 or being blacklisted by the president
committee of the Group will be included in the blacklist directly and
will not be considered for cooperation.
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1. Admittance of suppliers

° Procurement management department conducts information
review on the qualification materials provided by suppliers

° If necessary, the procurement department will conduct site
visits to suppliers

2. Implementation of procurement
° Select suppliers within the range of qualified suppliers

° Identifiy suppliers through tendering, competitive bidding,
direct appointment, etc. as required

3. Evaluation on suppliers

° The procurement team and the business department will
regularly evaluate suppliers

° Strengthen cooperation with outstanding suppliers after the
evaluation results are announced

In order to ensure the fairness, openness, justice and
standardization of procedures of the procurement activities, our
subordinate schools, procurement personnel, and suppliers all shall
sign the “Integrity Commitment Letter” which, based on the relevant
laws and regulations and relevant documents of the Group, restricts
the behaviors of all parties, prevents the occurrence of illegal acts
that violate the law and discipline and protects the legitimate rights
and interests of our suppliers.

6.2 Compliance Management and Integrity Establishment

The Group attaches great importance to the compliance operation,
in order to improve the integrity establishment of the Company and
promote the openness and transparency of the Company at all
fronts, the Group establishes the integrity establishment leadership
team and organize a strong audit supervision team, clarifies the
compliance supervision mechanism, and the Audit and Supervision
Department is responsible for the management and supervision
of the Group’s compliant operation. Strengthening compliance
management is not only for meeting the requirements of external
supervision, but also to cater for the needs of our own business
development. Therefore, we are committed to cultivating corporate
compliance culture, regularly carrying out corporate compliance
training, promoting the idea of governing enterprises according to
law, and cultivating a corporate culture based on legal culture.

China East Education Holdings Limited o, FEIR A% B ERER AT

1. HEEEA

s RETEMMBHERREHOEDH
FHETTIE B EZ

o  WER G KEIBMAHRRFEERARELE

peacd

2. B
o TEARMERERNEENRIBEER

o WRTRBAIT  BE HEEREES
A REE HER

3. REEL

o RBJAREGHMESEHERR
HEE

o FHMEBRAMER - BEFSHEREINER
B1E

RTRBFRBEEIOQY - 2F  RER
MR - AN TERER - &SRB
AB - ZHEHERT(RBUAEE) © (R
BUAGHE) WBZRK B B RER MK E AR
XHREKE - HREHTTR - AHRERA
EENGEMERBLIT AL - (RER
PIER (L ER MY B AR

6.2 AHREENMEZER

AEB+OERARNAREE BT
ZRNFRBER  RERRBRHOAF
B SRR T REERAG/NAELE
BT -XBANESEEHM HETA
REEKS  HEAEEHAEREAR
REMEEREBTHF - BIELAREETRE
EERTMEINBEENEF - MELM
BESXEBRRNFTE - Rt HMIHHIRNE
BELEEARXL  THHREEXARE
F - WO EEES - B A LUAHIX
EREANEEXL -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report &% » #8RER®RE O

Anti-fraud, Anti Bribery, Anti-Corruption

We strictly abide by the laws and regulations including “The Anti-
Corruption and Bribery Law of the People’s Republic of China”
and “The Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic
of China”. We take a “zero tolerance” attitude toward corruption,
bribery, extortion, blackmail, money laundering and other corrupt
practices, designate the Audit and Supervision Department as
the Company’s permanent institution of integrity. In order to
prevent fraud, enhance the group governance and internal control,
reduce the company risk, regulate the operation, maintain the
legal interests of the Company and shareholders, pursuant to the
laws and regulations on listed companies and requirements of
security markets and regulators, based on the actual condition of
the Company, we establish the “Group Anti-fraud, Anti-bribery,
Anticorruption, and Reporting and Complaint Management
Measures”. The measures specify that the Board and Audit
Committee are responsible for the guidance works on anti-fraud,
anti-bribery and anti-corruption; the managements of the Company
are responsible for establishing, improving and implementing the
procedures and control mechanism for anti-fraud, anti-bribery and
anti-corruption with fraud risk assessment and prevention; the
Audit and Supervision Department is responsible for establishing
and improving the mechanism for anti-fraud, anti-bribery and anti-
corruption, and pay reasonable attention to and check the potential
fraud during the internal audit; all branches and departments are
responsible for their own anti-fraud, anti-bribery and anti-corruption
works.

Anti-corruption training is provided to all employees across the
Group through the formulation of training requirements and the
organisation of training sessions. We provide anti-corruption
training to new employees in the form of, but not limited to,
employee handbooks and interpretation of documents and
systems. We post system propaganda posters in every office of the
Group and publicize the importance of anti-corruption to all staffs
through group meetings such as staff meeting. The supervisor
of Supervision Department of the Group will also conduct anti-
corruption training on school leaders and all department heads
during tour visit to each school. The Group conducts anti-
corruption training once a year. During the Year, the training
covered the entire Group, including directors and employees at all
levels, and was provided to 7 directors and 6,247 employees.
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Established Complaint and Reporting Channels

The Group has also established the Group Complaint and Reporting
Management Rules, which specifies that the Audit and Supervision
Department is responsible for investigating and handling complaint
and reporting made directly or passed on by group leaders as the
acceptance department of complaint and reporting. The complaint
and reporting involving the audit and supervision personnel of the
Group will be investigated and handled by the person designated
by the Group leaders. The Audit and Supervision Department sets
up reporting telephone, email and mailbox and other reporting
channels to supervise and report to the public. Employees at all
levels and all parties in the community having direct or indirect
financial interests with the Company can report relevant violations of
professional ethics through these channels, or report and uncover
actual or suspected fraud cases. During the Year, the Group did
not have any corruption or commercial bribery lawsuits, nor did it
violate relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group’s operation.

AEERY T(RBRFEREERRTE)
REEEETESHERBERFERNT
AR - AEREERRFERREER
EEIHIRFERER - FREEFE
BEAEBNMRFER HEEEEREAL
THRERE FABEBRLBRER
ETBEMNEHSEERRRELHINA
o BERETRERARAERAMEELHE
FENEE R T RBZERERRE
RERBXERNER  RBREER
SR LUSEER RN - NFE - KEKRELE
FAESR  RIEMMERREN - TR
ERUEELEREAFENHBERE
e

B 2% 402

HEZE

Ri5. TS — IR E PR EAT A RIRIR R,

BAAFIE ¢
HIREE , BHRE.

China East Education Holdings Limited o, FEIR A% B ERER AT

sy 04 LR NA-VL.



Environmental, Social and Governance Report &% » #8RER®RE O

Intellectual Property Protection

The Group also implements solid control and management of
intellectual property rights, and strictly abides by the “Trademark
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Patent Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, “Copyright Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, “Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China” and other relevant laws during our production
and operation activities. We formulate and implement intellectual
property management systems within the Company such as
the “Trademark Management System of the Group”, and clarify
compliance management requirements for the creation, registration,
protection, and use of intellectual property.

In terms of trademark protection, the Group added 18 new
trademarks and registered 215 trademarks accumulatively during
the Year.

Truthful Advertising

The Group attaches importance to the truthfulness of advertising,
strictly complies with the Advertising Law of the People’s
Republic of China in its operation activities, and conducts internal
training on typical cases of illegal and non-compliant commercial
advertisements, requiring employees to learn, understand,
abide by and use the law, informing employees the typical
illegal advertisements and regulating the Group’s advertising
requirements.
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7. MUTUAL ASSISTANCE, AND RELENTLESS
PRACTICE OF SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Keeping in mind the support and trust of the community in the
course of our development, the Group has consistently and actively
dedicated to public welfare and contributed to the society for over
30 years, demonstrating our relentless commitment to corporate
responsibility for the society.

The Group has always taken its corporate responsibility seriously
by encouraging and advocating participation in charity activities. In
accordance with the actual situation, each institutions in operating
regions have also given full play to their specialties in vocational
education, integrated resources in areas such as education for
poverty alleviation, village revitalization, live broadcast for farming,
and volunteer services and actively participated in social programs.

7.1 The New Start — Dream Building Public Welfare Activities in
Poverty Alleviation and Education Support

To facilitate rural revitalization and help youth with dreams and
ambitions get employment, in September 2022, we sincerely
launched again the “New Start — Dream Building Public Welfare
Activities” project. Since the inception of the education support
project in 2017, we have supported about 8,200 needy students
under poverty. During the event for the Year, the Group raised
over RMB3.77 million to support about 1,230 students. The Group
continuously explore effective ways of targeted poor alleviation and
educational support by giving poor students the opportunity to
receive vocational education, providing internships and supporting
them to receive the adult secondary and tertiary vocational
educational courses.
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7.2 Rural revitalization live streaming to help farmers

“Anti-pandemic and helping farmers” in the form of live streaming
on the Internet has become an emerging way to help high-quality
agricultural products go out of villages. When e-commerce live
streaming is combined with rural revitalization, students majoring
in e-commerce in Anhui Xinhua have also followed this wave,
using their professional strengths to carry out e-commerce festival
activities of “Rural Revitalization Live Streaming to Help Farmers” on
platforms such as TikTok and Pinduoduo. The students cooperated
with the designated agricultural aid base and bravely acted as the
“chief new farmer and anchor” of the designated live streaming
base. During the two-hour live streaming event, the turnover
of agricultural products worth tens of thousands of RMB was
stimulated, contributing to the promotion of agricultural products.
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7.3 Fight the pandemic together, take responsibility and
overcome difficulties together

The pandemic was raging, but there was love in the world. In 2022,
the domestic COVID-19 pandemic was raging. On 24 April 2022,
the Group held a “Concentric Pandemic Prevention and Salute
to the Frontline” anti-pandemic donation “Concentric Pandemic
Prevention and Salute to the Frontline” in Hefei, Anhui. We sincerely
paid tribute to the frontline medical staff fighting against the
pandemic, and upheld the concept of “love and responsibility”,
donating RMB150,000 in cash and RMB150,000 in materials to the
Municipal Red Cross and the Municipal NSSA respectively at the
event. With the help of the government and all sectors of society,
we have explained the Group’s corporate responsibility and social
responsibility with practical actions, adding strength to working
together to overcome the pandemic.
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7.4 Help students to realise their dreams in the Winter Olympics
with cooking, and win honours

During the Year, the Group made use of its abundant resources,
faculty and professional characteristics to build a bridge between
students and the grand event of the Beijing Winter Olympics.
In March 2022, 69 students from the three majors of Chinese
chef, western pastry and western chef successfully completed
all catering services for the Winter (Paralympic) Olympics. Under
the patient explanation and practical training of the teachers of
the school, the students have always adhered to a high sense of
responsibility and mission, and successfully completed the glorious
task of serving the Winter Olympics with professional skills and full
working attitude. With care for the students, the school arranged
special personnel to visit students at service spots, understand
in detail and help students solve problems in work and life in a
timely manner, and help students realise their dreams at the Winter
Olympics.
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7.5 Accreditation for the Group (excerpt) 7.5 AREBEESHEE (FE)
Award/Accreditation Awarding Organization Date
RERRE HERAS R
The “New Start — Dream Building Public Welfare Activities” of China East China Social Welfare February 2022
Education won the 2021 Rural Revitalization Excellence Award Foundation 202242

FERAHE FEREEARTE] N5 R RE01 FHMNREEHE PR ERNES S
The teachers and students of Anhui Xinhua Senior Technical School, a subsidiary Organising Committee of the October 2022
of China East Education, won the provincial first prize of the 15th Digital-Design-  Digital-Design-Dimensions 2022410 H

Dimensions Show in 2022 Show
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Ningxia New East Culinary Education, a subsidiary of China East Education, Ministry of Human December 2022
won the honour of “Institutions that have made outstanding contributions to the  Resources and Social 2022128
cultivation of national skilled talents” Security
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APPENDIX 1: SUMMARY OF KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

Environmental Performance

I'_rq

B8R

S
=

ekt : FRENIERRE

RIGAENRIR

Key Performance Indicators Unit 2022 2021
BRER By 2022 20214
Air pollutants’

AFOTRY!

Nitrogen oxide emissions kg 5,904.91 26,509.77
AE(b¥ (NOX) BE = T

Sulphur oxide emissions kg 1,626.37 29,010.03
a1 (SOx) HEE T

Particle emissions kg 503.04 77.19
TERI PR E T

Greenhouse gas

BERE

Scope 1 Direct emission® tonnes CO, -e 11,381.47 10,748.85
HE—HEHHE? NS g

Scope 1 emissions per RMB million tonnes CO2 -e/RMB million 2.98 2.60
revenue® AP—EtHEE BETA
BEETARBE=HE—HHE K&

The calculation method and relevant emission coefficients of the
air pollutant emissions refer to the “The Road Vehicles Air Pollutant
Emission Inventory Preparation Technical Guide (Trial)” and “Non-road
Mobile Source Air Pollutant Emission Inventory Preparation Technical
Guide (Trial)”, issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of
the PRC. In addition, the calculation method and related parameters
of air pollutant emissions from domestic pollution sources in 2022
also refer to the “Second National Pollution Source Census Domestic
Pollution Source Production and Discharge Coefficient Manual (Trial
Version)” and “Emission Source Statistical Investigation Pollutant
Production and Discharge Accounting Method and Coefficient
Manual”.

The calculation method and related parameters of air pollutant
emissions from domestic pollution sources in 2021 refer to the
“Manual of the First National Pollution Source Census Urban
Domestic Source Production and Discharge Coefficient”. Due to the
updated calculation standards adopted the Year, emissions have
changed significantly compared to 2021.

In 2022 and 2021, the GHG emissions (Scope 1) are calculated
with reference to the “Calculation Method and Reporting Guidance
on Greenhouse Gas Emissions for Other Industrial Enterprises
(Trial)” and the “Calculation Method and Reporting Guidance on
Greenhouse Gas Emissions for On-road Transportation Enterprises
(Trial)” issued by the National Development and Reform Commission
of the People’s Republic of China and the “How to prepare an ESG
Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”
issued by the Stock Exchange.

The Group’s revenue for the Year was RMB3,819.0 million; the
Group’s revenue for 2021 was RMB4,139.7 million.
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Key Performance Indicators

Scope 2 Direct emission*
HE_—FERE

Scope 2 emissions per RMB million
revenue
BEETARBKSHE _HHnE
Scope 3 Indirect emission®

& [B = AP ES

Total greenhouse gas emissions
RERBEINES

Greenhouse gas emissions per RMB
million revenue
BEETARBKEERBHNE
Wastes

BEEY

Total discharge of hazardous wastes

BERENELHRE

Total hazardous wastes produced per
RMB million revenue
BEETARBUREEREEMES

FEh=s

Total recycled hazardous wastes

BEREYONEE

Total recycled hazardous wastes per
RMB million revenue

BRETARBKEESREZEY D
4

o

fio

Unit

B

tonnes CO,

DR ALk

tonnes CO,/RMB million
DW= E{LH BETARS

tonnes CO, -e

AW —RYLIRE R

tonnes CO, -e
NS IRE S

tonnes CO2 -e/RMB million
NS LRE S
BETARE

tonnes

NI

tonnes/RMB million
AW BEITARE

tonnes

NI

tonnes/RMB million
N/ BEITARE

2022 2021
20224 20214
57,703.85 51,053.44
15.11 12.33
269.59 431.36
69,354.91 62,233.65
18.16 15.03
4.83 7.82
0.0013 0.0019
2.71 5.60
0.0007 0.0014

The calculation scope of the GHG emission (Scope 2) in 2022
and 2021 includes indirect emissions caused by the production
process of purchased electricity in Mainland China. The calculation
factor for 2022 refers to the average emission factor of the national
power grid contained in the “Notice on Doing a Good Job in 2023-
2025 Reporting and Management of Greenhouse Gas Emissions
of Power Generation Enterprises” issued by the Ministry of Ecology
and Environment of China. The calculation factor for 2021 refers
to the national grid average emission factor for 2021 contained in
the “Enterprise Greenhouse Gas Emission Accounting Method and
Reporting Guidelines for Power Generation Facilities” issued by the
Ministry of Ecology and Environment of China.

In 2022 and 2021, the calculation scope of the GHG emission
(Scope 3) includes indirect GHG emissions from the Group’s
business air travel and paper waste. GHG emissions from business
air travel are calculated in accordance with the "Greenhouse Gas
Protocol: The Calculation Tool for Greenhouse Gases Emissions from
Combustion of Transport or Mobile Sources” issued by the World
Resources Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development; GHG emissions from paper waste are calculated in
accordance with the “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix
2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock
Exchange.

2022F € R2021 FEHAE REEHR (BE =)
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Key Performance Indicators

ANER

Total non-hazardous wastes produced tonnes/BRMB million 6.12 5.39
per RMB million revenue AME BETTARE

BEETARBKGEEREYES

we

Total recycled non-hazardous wastes  tonnes/RMB million 2.28 2.47
per RMB million revenue AW BETARE

BEETAREEGRESTEEYEK

we

Total water consumption tonnes 4,450,199.51 6,026,853.83
RKkesE N

Total consumption of packaging tonnes 13.82 37.58
materials NI
BEME RS
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Key Performance Indicators

BERIER

Use of energy ¢

BEIRIE e

Total electricity consumption MWh 101,181.58 87,871.67
AERE JKFLEF

Total natural gas consumption MWh 17,720.05 20,436.22
AARBRERE IR LB

Total gas consumption MWh 4,913.89 323.59
RREMERE JEFLIR

Total methanol consumption MWh 837.14 258.33
Rz HfERE KL

LPG MWh 16,990.44 15,952.22
BALEHER IR ELBF

Total gasoline consumption MWh 9,010.91 8,258.35
FUBEREAE JKFLEF

6 Use of energy is calculated in accordance with the conversion factors 6 BEREAERETEARANBERRFLEMRS
in the National Standardized General Principles for Calculation of BEFERTSEA (GB/T 2589-2020)) H#H R #5H
Comprehensive Energy Consumption(GB/T 2589-2020) of the He

People’s Republic of China.
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Key Performance Indicators

BRIER
Total diesel consumption MWh 4.08 1.94
SOREREE JKE B

Total comprehensive energy MWh 150,658.09 133,097.33
consumption JKFLBF
FERREREE
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APPENDIX 2: REPORT INDEX

Mandatory
Disclosure
Requirements

SRR E

Governance
Structure

BIARE

Fff 822 -

A statement from the board containing the following elements:

()  adisclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG issues;

(i) the board’s ESG management approach and strategy,
including the process used to evaluate, prioritise and
manage material ESG-related issues (including risks to
the issuer’s businesses); and

(i)  how the board reviews progress made against ESG-
related goals and targets with an explanation of how
they relate to the issuer’s businesses.

Ml EESRLNER  ETEHA NIRRT :

() WEEESHESGEENEE

(i) ZBFLHESCERH KR - BIETME - BRHEI R
EREENESCHEESEE (BIEHEIT AEBER) &
BAE - M

(i) FBFGSMHRESCGIEM B IZRTEE -
BT AEBHRAE -

W AERE T FIan A

VAN
B/A

HERS

Disclosure Sections

BEEH

Sustainability Management/
Low-carbon and Energy
Saving, Multiple Measures
to Empower Green
Transformation
BRI B
 ZEWRERAEE

2 E%’@

Reporting Principles
b R SR Al

A description of, or an explanation on, the application of the
following Reporting Principles in the preparation of the ESG
Report : materiality, quantitative, consistency.

sk AR E R BESCImE R ana B A T3 E R R A :
- B Bk -

BE

About This Report
BARARE

Reporting Boundary
e S 86 &

A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG
report and describing the process used to identify which
entities or operations are included in the ESG report. If there is
a change in the scope, the issuer should explain the difference
and reason for the change.

FRIZESGIREREMEE - MHnaiPkiE ML B RS RIS AA
BB HEREARENGERE - BEERBEBIE - 17T
ANERBTRZEREEHREA -

About This Report
AR AR
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A\

General
disclosure and

key performance

indicators
-REER
RRENEE

A. Environmental
A =5

A1, Emissions

AL B

Description

i

General disclosure
—fHE

Information on:

@
(o)

the policies; and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BBERANRZREBHN - MARLONES  AERESEEY
MELSH :

@
(o)

BR: R
BYHBETAREAYENERARRRRNER -

Environmental, Social and Governance Report &iE » # @R ERRE

Disclosure Sections or Explanation

KESHIEE

Low-carbon and Energy Saving, Multiple
Measures to Empower Green Transformation
[EREa - ST EREREER

A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Appendix 1: Summary of Key Performance
M FEREERABREH RS o Indicators

WS - BRENEREE
A1.2  Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse Appendix 1: Summary of Key Performance

A1.2

gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facilty).

B (BE-) RaRRiE (BB ) REREHNE AR
8 R (@R ZE (A BESEN - BEREE) °

Indicators

Wik - BRENERAE

A1.3

A1.3

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FEEEEEENEE CIEEE) R (ER) BE (e
EREE - SRRHE) -

Appendix 1: Summary of Key Performance
Indicators

skt : BRERERAE

Al4

At4

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FEEBERENGE CIEE) R (a2 (WiE
EEE[  BEXNHE) -

Appendix 1: Summary of Key Performance
Indicators

fiskt : BREREGEE

A1.5

A15

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results
achieved.
RRFTT VAN E B R R AREZER BRRRMSR -

Low-carbon and Energy Saving, Multiple
Measures to Empower Green Transformation
[EmERRE - ST EREREEL

A1.6

A1.6

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
HREEERESEENNNE - RERAEI L ORER
BRAEDZZARMERNSR -

Low-carbon and Energy Saving, Multiple
Measures to Empower Green Transformation
[EiREneE - HHEV BMAAREER

China East Education Holdings Limited o, FEIR A% B ERER AT
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General
disclosure and

key performance

indicators
-REER
RRENEE

A2. Use of Resources

R2. BRER

A. Environmental
AR5

Description

i

General disclosure
—MHE

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water,

and other raw materials.

ﬁ_ﬂ(ﬁﬁﬁ ﬁ/ﬁ(ﬂ,ﬁﬁz/

KREMBRE) BB o

Disclosure Sections or Explanation

KESHIEE

Low-carbon and Energy Saving, Multiple
Measures to Empower Green Transformation
[Emenae - ST AR EELY

A2.1

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or ail) in total (kWh in 000s) and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

Appendix 1: Summary of Key Performance
Indicators

skt : BRENERAE

p REHEAMERR/IHEELRIE - Roh) EHE
CATETREHE) REE (ASES BN - SERIET
5

A2.2  Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of Appendix 1: Summary of Key Performance
production volume, per facility). Indicators

R2  BRKEREE MASESEN  BHEFHHE) WS : BRENERAE

A2.3  Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results Low-carbon and Energy Saving, Multiple

achieved. Measures to Empower Green Transformation
A3 HRFETUMERERNGEEERRENASAGMERE | ERSY  SEUREMSEER
ke
A2.4  Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water Energy Conservation and Emission
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results Reduction for Promoting the Construction of
achieved. Green Institutions
A24  FERSKEVERVKR EAIAREARE - URMETUORARE | EREE SR ERESEER
BERARHAZ B EHARASE - The Group obtains water from the municipal
water supply network and therefore does not
encounter any problems in obtaining suitable
water resources
ARERKIRETRMKER - HEIR
ERKER - EBIEFAE
A2.5  Total packaging material used for finished products (in Appendix 1: Summary of Key Performance
tonnes), if applicable, with reference to per unit produced. Indicators
A5 EEmATRBRMHEEE IR R (ER) SEEE | WS BRERRE

fufhe -
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A\

General
disclosure and

key performance

indicators
-REER
RRENEE

A. Environmental
A %

A3. The Environment
and Natural
Resources

A3 RERARER

Description

i

General disclosure

—RHE

Policies on minimising the issuer's significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

BERTAHRERARERENEAY EOBK «

Environmental, Social and Governance Report &iE » # @R ERRE

Disclosure Sections or Explanation

KESHIEE

Low-carbon and Energy Saving, Multiple
Measures to Empower Green Transformation
[EmERR - ST AR EEL

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and actions taken to
manage them.

BAEBEBHRERARERNEAY ERERMEER
(% LTI

A31

Low-carbon and Energy Saving, Multiple
Measures to Empower Green Transformation

[EHenee - SRTSEHEREEL

Ad. Climate Change
A REE

General disclosure
—ME

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related

issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

AR EHE LR TR U TAELYENEARREEEEY
B o

Low-carbon and Energy Saving, Multiple
Measures to Empower Green Transformation
[EmEa - ST AR EER

A1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which
have or may have impact on the issuer, and actions taken to
manage them.

BRRERTHEHRTAELY ENEARRAREE -
REHTH -

A4

Low-carbon and Energy Saving, Multiple
Measures to Empower Green Transformation
{EaREne: - ZRU SR REEE
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General
disclosure and
key performance
indicators
—REER
BREVES

B. Social
B.#&

B1. Employment
B1. [EfE

Description

i

General disclosure

—HEE

Information on:

@  thepolicies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment, and promotion,

working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,

anti-discrimination antidiscrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

BRTMLGEE  RERER TS RY TS#e 31

1t~ RERAREMAFBREN :

@ BER

) BETHETARBAYEMERERRANNER -

Disclosure Sections or Explanation
REZHNRE

Overcoming Difficulties Together, Joining
Hands with Excellent Employees to Lead the
Company’s Prosperity Together
PARL - BFEARIHAIE

B1.1  Total workforce by gender, employment type (such as full-
time or part-time), age group and geographical region.

Bl.1 &R ERER(N2BHRE) - FRENREIDH
EEEH -

Overcoming Difficulties Together, Joining
Hands with Excellent Employees to Lead the
Company’s Prosperity Together

JNAEL  BFEAEIRAILGS

B1.2  Employee tumnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region.
B2 MRl FRAIRMEEISHERRALE

Overcoming Difficulties Together, Joining
Hands with Excellent Employees to Lead the
Company’s Prosperity Together
BNRL - BFEAETHAIRE
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General
disclosure and
key performance
indicators
—REER
BRENES

B. Social
B.#g

B2. Health and Safsty
B2. [#frE%RE

Description

i

General disclosure

—REE

Information on:

@  thepolicies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards.

AEREZ2TERERRREEREBENAZE -

B BER

) ETHETAREATEMERERRANNER -

Environmental, Social and Governance Report &iE » # @R ERRE

Disclosure Sections or Explanation

KESHIEE

Overcoming Difficulties Together, Joining
Hands with Excellent Employees to Lead
the Company’s Prosperity Together/

Dream Building with Craftmanship, Talents
Cultivated to Become Competent Technical
Backbone

BARL  BFEABIAAINE FLE
2 PRATBERTESR

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities in the past three

years (including the reporting years).

Overcoming Difficulties Together, Joining
Hands with Excellent Employees to Lead the

B2l BEA-F(REERFE)SFRITHNASRLE - Company’s Prosperity Together
HNREL  BFEARTRAIGK
B2.2  Lost days due to work injury. Overcoming Difficulties Together, Joining
B22 EIGEATIERE Hands with Excellent Employees to Lead the
Company's Prosperity Together
JNAL BFEARETHAIGYK
B2.3  Description of occupational health and safety measures Dream Building with Craftmanship, Talents
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored. Cultivated to Become Competent Technical
B23 HRFHRANBERRER2ER  JREBHRTRERS | Backbone

Ao

EOEE - BRATBARMER

General disclosure

—REE

Policies on improving employees” knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work and description of training activities.

AR ER BT TR EMAZ BB R RIEIED -

Overcoming Difficulties Together, Joining
Hands with Excellent Employees to Lead the
Company’s Prosperity Together

PARL - BFEARTHAIE

B3. Development
and Training
B3, &R AL

B3.1  The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management and middle

management).

Overcoming Difficulties Together, Joining
Hands with Excellent Employees to Lead the
Company’s Prosperity Together

B31 RURIREEEAN(NRAERE TREEEAMNZI | BARL  BFEFETREINE
EEAM

B3.2  The average training hours completed per employee by Overcoming Difficulties Together, Joining
gender and employee category. Hands with Excellent Employees to Lead the

B2 HMAIREEERED - BREETKFIINTIIRY - Company's Prosperity Together

HHREL  BFEERTREILR

China East Education Holdings Limited o, FEIR A% B ERER AT
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General Description Disclosure Sections or Explanation

disclosure and i REZHNRE

key performance

indicators

-REER

BREVES
General disclosure Overcoming Difficulties Together, Joining
—fE Hands with Excellent Employees to Lead the
Information on: Company’s Prosperity Together
() the policies; and BhREL  BFEFETHEINE

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.

ARMILET AT :
8. Soci B4. Labour @ BER
B Sendals ) EFHBOASEAVENRBEERENNER
BA. B IR B4.1  Description of measures to review employment practices to Overcoming Difficutties Together, Joining
avoid child and forced labour. Hands with Excellent Employees to Lead the
B4l s RERAMEEAREETIRRHST - Company's Prosperity Together

BNAL  BFEASTHAIGSK

B4.2  Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when Overcoming Difficutties Together, Joining
discovered. Hands with Excellent Employees to Lead the

B42 HARBREREAREREBELMERNSR o Company's Prosperity Together

BNAL BFEAESTRAIGSK
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A\

General
disclosure and

key performance

indicators
-REER
RRENEE

B. Social
B.#g

B5. Supply Chain
Management
Bo. fEH#ER

Description

i

General disclosure

—REE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

BRUERORERLERRAR -

Environmental, Social and Governance Report &iE » # @R ERRE

Disclosure Sections or Explanation

KESHIEE

Solid Foundation of Development Established
in a Fair and Equitable Manner and through
Compliance Operation

RIRE  ARELETHRRE

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.
Bo.1 HMEEINMEERMA -

Solid Foundation of Development Established
in a Fair and Equitable Manner and through
Compliance Operation
DIRE - ARECETERRA

B5.2  Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored.

Bo.2 HMAMERMERNED  mERTEBENNMLENR
B NREBRTRERRA o

Solid Foundation of Development Established
in a Fair and Equitable Manner and through
Compliance Operation

AVAL - A HEEEPRRRE

B5.3  Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

Bo.3 AR MRS MRONRE AL e mBAER - LA
REBRTRER %

Solid Foundation of Development Established
in a Fair and Equitable Manner and through
Compliance Operation
DIRE - ARELETERRE

B5.4  Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

Bo4 HMEREMERRRESRRRERLRBNER - R
BRRTREENE -

Solid Foundation of Development Established
in a Fair and Equitable Manner and through
Compliance Operation

RIRE ARELETYRRE

China East Education Holdings Limited o, MER A H A ERBR LT
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General
disclosure and

key performance

indicators
-REER
RRENEE

B. Social
B.#g

B6. Product
Responsibility
B6. EmEf

Description

i

General disclosure
—HRE

Information on:

@
(o)

the policies; and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating o health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress

REMREERNREORERRS RS  BERABSEAR

HRCR AR
@ BRIk
) BTHERTABEATZNEEAEREANER -

Disclosure Sections or Explanation

KESHIEE

Dream Building with Craftmanship, Talents
Cultivated to Become Competent Technical
Backbone/Solid Foundation of Development
Established in a Fair and Equitable Manner
and through Compliance Operation

EOEE - AT BERNES,/ DTR
I AREEETERRE

Due to the nature of the Group’s business,
abelling matters relating to the products and
services provided are not applicable to the
Group
ARARENZXBIE - ARFREERT
RENEEEHHASE ER

B6.1

B6.1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.
PEREERERASTRZ 2 REFEAMARKNE S
lit, @

This item is not applicable to the Group as
the Group’s business does not involve the
manufacture of products
ARARERB IS REREE - IEHA
EB ER

B6.2

B6.2

Number of products and services related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.
REBNERRIRHERA A URELAE -

Dream Building with Craftmanship, Talents
Cultivated to Become Competent Technical
Backbone

EOEE  BREATBARMES

B6.3

B6.3

Description of practices related to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.
R R REAAEERRNER -

Solid Foundation of Development Established
in a Fair and Equitable Manner and through
Compliance Operation

RIRE ARELETERRE

B6.4

B6.4

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.
BB ERTRRREREIKE o

This item is not applicable to the Group as
the Group’s business does not involve the
manufacture of products
ARARERBAS REREE - WEHA
£B ER

B6.5

B6.5

Description of consumer information protection and privacy
policies, and how they are implemented and monitored.
BUREEERRRRAELE - REBRTRERS
% o

Dream Building with Craftmanship, Talents
Cultivated to Become Competent Technical
Backbone

EOES - BEATBERNES
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General
disclosure and

key performance

indicators
-REER
RRENEE

B. Social
B.#g

B7. Anti-corruption

Description

i

General disclosure

—REE

Information on:

@  thepolicies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BN 9% REFRAREN -

@ BER

) BFHETABEAYEHEEEZERAGNER -

Environmental, Social and Governance Report &iE » # @R ERRE

Disclosure Sections or Explanation

KESHIEE

Solid Foundation of Development Established
in a Fair and Equitable Manner and through
Compliance Operation

DIRE - ARECETERRE

B7.1  Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees during

Solid Foundation of Development Established
in a Fair and Equitable Manner and through

B7. kA5 the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases. Compliance Operation
Bl RERBAHETAREEESRLVCELNESFARY |ATAL AREELEERRE
B ENEEN
B7.2  Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Solid Foundation of Development Established
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored. in a Fair and Equitable Manner and through
B72 lbhEERRERER N REBRTRERLE Compliance Operation
DAL ARELETHRRE
B7.3  Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors Solid Foundation of Development Established
and staff. in a Fair and Equitable Manner and through
B7.3 HilMESRE LRENRESE Compliance Operation
RYIRE ARELEFERRE
General disclosure Mutual Assistance, and Relentless Practice
—fHRER of Social Responsivility
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the TEIEE  AMTRETEER
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the communities” interests.
AR E2ERRRSEMEHERENRRAZKEDEZR
B8, Communty | 3 55 g% -
Investment - ; ; ; )
B, MG B8.1  Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental Mutual Assistance, and Relentless Practice

concemns, needs of labour, health, culture and sports).
B3 EiEBEE(HE REFH LIFK BR X
-85

of Social Responsibility
TERY EMMEBITHEEE

B8.2  Resources contributed (e.g. money and time) to the focus
area.

B8.2 EZIEEMEBAARWMEHAEH) o

Mutual Assistance, and Relentless Practice
of Social Responsibility

TEMRY - EMTRETHERE
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Directors’ Report E=&# & O

The Board is pleased to present its report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022.

INCORPORATION AND LISTING OF THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated in Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 4 October 2018 under
the Companies Law of Cayman Islands and the shares of the
Company (the “Shares”) were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 12 June 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the operation of vocational training education
services. Details of the activities of the principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

RESULTS AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 188 in this annual report.

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year and its
likely future development and outlook, important events affecting
the Company that have occurred since the end of the financial
year, an analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators, details regarding the Group’s
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group, and the Group’s key relationships
with stakeholders as required under Schedule 5 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) are set out
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” of
this annual report and which also constitute part of this report.

EFEEMAREERE R AEEHE2022
FI2AMBLFRZEERGAMBR
%o

RRB ZEMEM L

RAFR2018F10 H4ABEREHE AR
FERESHEAMKIAEREERE R
AR e R2019%F6 8128 © A RAIWRG
(T3 ) TERE SR P MR T ©

FREHK
RRRB/REEBAT  AEEX2EHE

BEREHERY - EXEMBARMNE
B BERAF Rz A P IFRRMES2 -

REREBEE

ANEFEEE2022F12 A31 A IFFE R LA
R ARFRE1SSEMNGAEBRENEMEE
IREEE °

BRAARERFAXHORFERLEA
BARRERLAR BV REFEREDH

ENFEARTINEREM - UMK
BYEROMAREFANKE - BN
SEETUHAKRBEELASARENEME
REZFROBERARAEE BN G AEE
MEZMEERSRE RGN (FEENE
622F) I REMMREHN A F R T FEH
o [BERETwREINIRIEEELY
HIEE - BIMBRARE 8D °
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The following list is a summary of certain principal risks and
uncertainties facing by the Group:

o our business and results of operations depend on the level of
tuition fees we are able to charge and our ability to maintain
and raise the level of tuition fees.

o our business is heavily dependent on the market recognition
of our brand and reputation and any damage to our
reputation would materially and adversely affect our business.
Negative publicity concerning our schools or our Group may
adversely affect our reputation, business, growth prospect
and our ability to recruit qualified teachers and staff.

° we face intense competition from existing players and
industry consolidation in the PRC, which could lead to
adverse pricing pressure, reduced operating margins, loss
of market share, departures of qualified employees and
increased capital expenditures.

° we may expand our school network through acquisitions or
cooperation with third party partners and may not be able to
successfully execute such expansion strategy.

The above is not an exhaustive list. Investors are advised to make
their own judgment or consult their own investment advisors before
making any investment in the Shares.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to fulfilling social responsibility, promoting

employee benefits and development, protecting the environment
and giving back to community and achieving sustainable growth.

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ ERAHEERER QT

TERBRARERE

AT RASEEENE T 28RN THE
TREME -

o BMMENRAYEEMAREMT
U ER 2R K T A R B AP A R
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o HMMEBRAIRE LEETSER
fmpe kB ENRR - YRMABEN
EEEAESHRMNEHEKE
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% RRARERFIHEE S ERHED
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The revenue attributable to the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s consolidated total
revenue for the year.

The purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s consolidated total
purchases for the year.

None of the Directors nor any of their close associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) nor any Shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the number of
issued Shares) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and/or five largest suppliers during the year.

DIVIDEND

At the Board meeting held on 23 March 2023, the Board
proposed the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.2 (approximately
RMBO0.179) per ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2022. The aforesaid proposed payment of final dividend
is subject to approval of the Shareholders at the 2022 AGM to
be held on Thursday, 25 May 2023. Subject to the approval of
Shareholders at the 2022 AGM, the aforesaid proposed final
dividend is expected to be paid on or around Thursday, 29 June
2023.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the Shareholders by the reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

If the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holdings, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of
any rights in relation to the Company’s Shares, they are advised to
consult an expert.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of changes in the share capital of the Company during

the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

FREFRHER

AEBFEARLKREPAERARBEGEAEE
HZAFE A HAABADTRI0% -

AEBEARLAKEEEMERBEGAE
BOAREE S HHRBAREDNI0% °
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AREFPR/SERAREETHEEENE

AL o
2
B

MR2023F3A23HETHEESCH
EESEEREE2022612A31HILFE
IREERE B ZRRE®mIR0.25 T (WAR
¥60.17970) » Ll IR R EIR BB
PR A R 202345 A25H (2 H8iM) 17
K2022F R RIAF ARG EHEAE o AR ER
Q022 F WHIAF ARG EHLER - FiliiEs
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Movements in reserves of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2022 are set out in the note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

Our reserves available for distribution to the Shareholders consist
of share premium and retained profits. Under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands and subject to compliance with the Articles
of Association, the share premium account may be applied by the
Company for paying distributions or dividends to the Shareholders
if immediately following the date on which the distribution or
dividend is proposed to be paid, we will be able to pay off our
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. As of 31
December 2022, the Company’s reserve available for distribution to
equity holders amounted to approximately RMB2,678 million.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has approved and adopted a dividend policy (the
“Dividend Policy”), pursuant to which the Company may declare
and distribute dividends to the Shareholders to allow Shareholders
to share the Company’s profits and for the Company to retain
adequate reserves for future growth.

The declaration, distribution and amount of dividend is subject to
the absolute discretion of the Board, after taking into account, inter
alia, the Group’s operations, business and future development
plans, liquidity position, our future operations and earnings, capital
requirements and surplus, financial condition, working capital
requirements and other factors that the Board consider relevant.
The distribution of final dividend of a financial year will be subject to
the approval of the Shareholders, but the amount of dividend shall
not exceed the recommendation of the Board.

Subject to the aforesaid factors, the Board plans to maintain

distributing not less than 30% of the distributable profit of the
relevant financial year of the Group as dividend.
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Declaration, recommendation or distribution of any dividend is
subject to all relevant applicable laws and regulation of Cayman
Islands and the Articles of Association. The Board will continually
review the Dividend Policy and reserve the right in its sole and
absolute discretion to update, amend and/or modify the Dividend
Policy at any time. The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute
a legally binding commitment by the Company that dividends will
be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate the
Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wu Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Xiao Guoqing (Deputy chairman)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Junbao
Mr. Lu Zhen

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement

Dr. Zhu Guobin

Dr. Zang Yunzhi

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Wu Wei,
Mr. Wu Junbao and Dr. Zhu Guobin, shall retire by rotation and,
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual written confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service contract
and each of the Non-executive Directors has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term commencing from
the date of his/her appointment/re-designation as an Executive
Director/Non-executive Director which shall be for a period of three
years since the listing date, and shall be automatically renewed for
successive periods of three years (always subject to re-election
as and when required under the Articles of Association). The term
of each of the service contracts/letter of appointments shall end
when the service contract/letter of appointment is terminated in
accordance with the terms and conditions thereof or by either party
giving to the other party not less than three months’ prior notice in
writing.

Each of our Independent Non-executive Director has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial period of one
year since the listing date or his/her date of appointment, and shall
automatically renewed for successive period of one year (subject to
re-election as and when required under the Article of Association)
which may be terminated in accordance with the terms and
conditions of thereof or by either party serving on the other party a
prior written notice of not less than one month.

Save as aforesaid, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, chief executives and their associates of the Company in
the shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which (i) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (i) were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (iii) were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, and adopted by the Company
were as follows:

Interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company:

ESNESNERRAR

M2022F12H31H » AREIMESE - 2
TN B REBE ARARRQ A SE 1048
BOEE (ERRBAF LRGN ((ESFRE
BREI]) EBXVED) B - ABEER D R ES
FHER ()VIREFE S KRG GO EXVEET
RESHEAME NN AT R ZFT (BIER
BESRAEERIESHEEIRRES
ZRERRKE 2GR 5 (i) iREE S R
B1&HIZE 36216785 NszikFre & e i
(i) IR IE AN A &) 2 B AN _E T AR A B 8% 1 0
BIEESFRIAE AN R R R AT s &
KEERINAT

AR TR FIARRBRR 1 Ho S -

Interests in Shares Interests in Percentage of

RipER underlying Shares the Company’s
Corporate Personal pursuant to issued Long/
interest interest share options share capital Short position

REBBREL EARRERT
ARER BARE  HERGOER BRANBE AL /%R
Mr. Wu Junbao (Note 7) 721,792,602 - - 33.164% Long position
RIERFEEH21) HE
Mr. Wu Wei (Note 2) 490,361,609 - - 22.530% Long position
RERE W22 HE
Mr. Xiao Guoging (Note 3) 437,993,495 - - 20.124% Long position
BB (H523) HE
Mr. Lu Zhen (Note 4) - - 872,510 0.040% Long position

BB (W)

e
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Notes:

Mr. Wu Junbao holds the entire issued share capital of Wu Junbao
Education Company Limited (“Wu Junbao Education”) and is
therefore deemed to be interested in the 721,792,602 Shares held
by Wu Junbao Education under the SFO.

Mr. Wu Wei holds the entire issued share capital of Wu Wei
Education Company Limited (“Wu Wei Education”) and is therefore
deemed to be interested in the 490,361,609 Shares held by Wu Wei
Education under the SFO.

Mr. Xiao Guoqing holds the entire issued share capital of ZhongAn
Education Company Limited (formerly known as “Xiao Guoging
Education Company Limited”) (“ZhongAn Education”) and is
therefore deemed to be interested in the 437,993,495 Shares held
by ZhongAn Education under the SFO.

Mr. Lu Zhen holds share options of 872,510 Shares. Details of the
share options are set out in the section titled “Equity-settled Share
Option Schemes” below.

Interests of the Company’s Directors and chief executives in

associated corporations of the Company:

Registered capital

Name of associated Capacity/
Name corporation Nature of interest
HE HEEE AR B4 BRENE

Mr. Wu Junbao

RERTE

Mr. Wu Wei

RERE

Mr. Xiao Guoqging

BEEXLE

Anhui Xinhua Education
Group Co., Ltd.

ZHEFEHE KE
BRAA

Anhui Xinhua Education
Group Co., Ltd.

TR EHE SR
BRARA

Anhui Xinhua Education
Group Co., Ltd.

TR EHE LR
BRAT]

Beneficial owner

BEmlEBA

Beneficial owner

‘ﬂﬂﬂi}

T EA A

Beneficial owner

EDEAA
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Save as disclosed above and in the section of “Equity-settled Share
Option Schemes” below, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors, chief executives and their associates of the Company
had any interest and short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning part XV of SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted two share option schemes on 7 December
2018 (“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and 21 May 2019
(“2019 Share Option Scheme”) respectively (collectively referred
to as “Share Option Schemes”) for the purpose of giving
eligible participants an opportunity to have a personal stake in
our Company and help motivate them to optimise their future
performance and efficiency to our Group and/or to reward them for
their past contributions, to attract and retain or otherwise maintain
on-going relationships with such eligible participants who are
significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial
to the performance, growth or success of our Group. The Share
Option Schemes were adopted before the effective date of the new
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The Company will comply with the
new Chapter 17 in accordance with the transitional arrangements
for the existing share schemes.

The Share Option Schemes do not specify any minimum holding
period and/or performance targets as a condition for the exercise
of an option but subject to the rules of the Share Options Schemes.
The Board is empowered with the authority to determine granting
of an option on a case by case basis taking into account of the
relevant factors as the Board in its sole discretion considers
appropriate. For details of the vesting period of the Share Option
Schemes, please refer to note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

The consideration payable on acceptance of the option granted to
an grantee under the respective Share Option Schemes is HK$1.00
which is payable no later than 28 days from the offer date.

The number of Shares that may be issued in respect of the Share
Option Schemes during the year ended 31 December 2022
divided by weighted average number of Shares for such year is
approximately 1%.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continuead)

Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the Company has
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme are 135,244,720 Shares, representing
approximately 6.2% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of this annual report. There was no option available for
grant under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme at the beginning
and the end of the year ended 31 December 2022. The total
number of Shares available for issue under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is 113,041,498 Shares, representing approximately
5.2% of the total issued Shares as at the date of this annual report.

Subject to the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the
Board shall be entitled to offer the grant of any option to subscribe
for Shares granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme for the time being subsisting to any persons who satisfy
the following eligibility criteria as the Board may in its absolute
discretion select:

(@ any current or former executive director of, manager of,
headmaster of, dean of, or other employee holding an
executive, managerial, supervisory or similar position in any
member of the Group, any current or former full-time or part-
time employee, or a person for the time being seconded to
work full-time or part-time for any member of the Group;

(b)  a current or former director or proposed director (including
an independent non-executive director) or current or former
manager of any member of the Group; and

(c) an associate (which shall have the same meaning ascribed to
it under the Listing Rules) of any of the persons referred to in
(a) to (b) above.

The basis of eligibility shall be determined by the Board from time
to time.

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders of the Company and
the termination provisions in the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme,
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on the date of adoption, provided
that no option shall be granted on or after the listing date of the
Company. The period during which an option may be exercised will
be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, except no
option may be exercised more than 10 years after the date it was
offered, being the date of the Board resolution approving the grant
of such option, which must be a business day. The remaining life of
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is approximately five years and
eight months.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) DR A E R R ES S (2

B RN RS AT B RE AT B AR IR
T BEESEEN @) BN AR E AT EAE
SR B B E (o) T B HAEARS (S B
B A5 EWAH) MEAEME - ABRES
2 ERISREBENTMAERALTREZER
B ARAARREEEEENRERE
REESESETHWEE (MBI HRED
SABRMDEE) B -

Subject to the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, our
Board shall be entitled at any time between (a) the adoption date
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and (b) the listing date
(including the former but excluding the latter) to offer the grant of
an option to any eligible person as the Board may in its absolute
discretion select to subscribe at the subscription price which shall
be determined by the Board of the Company for such number
of Shares as our Board may (subject to the maximum number of
Shares available for subscription) determine.

BRARBEENBRETE T HATTENRE

Details of the share options outstanding under Pre-IPO Share

Option Scheme were as follows: IRBESFIBAT -
Approximate
No. of shareholding
No. of options percentage of
options exercised/ No.of  the underlying
granted cancelled/ options shares for
No. of duringthe  lapsed during outstanding the options
options yearended  the year ended at in the share
Exercisable Exercise  outstandingat ~ 31December 31 December 31 December capital of
Date of grant period price 1 January 2022 2022 2022 2022 the Company
HKD
RBE  REZARF
B 2022F 1283181 A2022F FREES
022%1A18 12A%BL  EEREAR/ 128318 BfEALF
RTEN EEART /%M ATEH el
Sl EE ] %8 g E MERESE BREHA EREHA BaE
v
2019712
to
2029/6/11
2019574128
Mr. LuZhen 2018/12/7 )
BEfE 018F12R7H  2029F6A11H 2.25 872,510 - - 872,510 0.04%
2019712
to
2029/6/11
2019577128
Other employees 2018/12/7 3
HitEE N18F12A7A 2009F6A11H 225 116,146,988 - (17840000 114,362,988 525%
Total
At 117,019,498 - (17840000 115235498 529%
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2022, 1,784,000 options HiiE :  BEZE2022F12831HIEFE » E17(E

were exercised. The weighted average closing price of the Shares 1,784,00017 BERRAE o AR M INAE 19
Y 8 EZ BT A A A e

5287 °

immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised
was HK$5.2 per Share.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continuead)

Pursuant to the 2019 Share Option Scheme, the Company can
issue options so that the total number of Shares that may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2019 Share
Option Scheme are 217,900,000 Shares, representing 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company upon listing and approximately
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
this annual report. There were 217,573,000 options available for
grant under the 2019 Share Option Scheme at the beginning and
the ended of the year ended 31 December 2022. The total number
of shares available for issue under the 2019 Share Option Scheme is
217,684,180 Shares, representing approximately 10% of the total
issued Shares as at the date of this annual report.

Our Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer options to subscribe
for such number of Shares in accordance with the terms set out in
the 2019 Share Option Scheme to:

(i) any executive director of, manager of, headmaster of, dean
of, or other employee holding an executive, managerial,
supervisory or similar position in any member of our Group,
any proposed employee, any full-time or part-time employee,
or a person for the time being seconded to work full-time or
part-time for any member of our Group;

(i)  a director or proposed director (including an independent
non-executive director) of any member of our Group;

(iy  adirect or indirect shareholder of any member of our Group;
(iv)  asupplier of goods or services to any member of our Group;

(v)  a customer, consultant, business or joint venture partner,
franchisee, contractor, agent or representative of any member
of our Group;

(vij a person or entity that provides design, research,

development or other support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional or other services to any member of our Group;
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continuead)

(vii) an associate of any of the persons referred to in paragraphs (i)
to (vi) above; and

(vii) any person involved in the business affairs of the Company
whom our Board determines to be appropriate to participate
in the 2019 Share Option Scheme.

Pursuant to the amendments to the Listing Rules with effect from
1 January 2023, the eligible persons under the 2019 Share Option
Scheme is subject to Rule 17.03A of the Listing Rules.

The maximum number of Shares issuable under the 2019 Share
Option Scheme to each eligible participant within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the Shares in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Board, the 2019 Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years from the date of adoption. The
remaining life of the 2019 Share Option Scheme is approximately
Six years.

The subscription price shall be such price determined by the Board
at its absolute discretion and shall be no less than the highest of: (a)
the closing price of Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the
Stock Exchange for the 5 business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a Share on the date of
grant.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continuead)

Details of the share options outstanding under 2019 Share Option

Scheme were as follows:

Date of grant

RFA

Employes 2019/6/12
8 2019464128

Total

=1

Exercisable
period

7R

2019/6112

to

2029/6/11
2019567128

pay
==

200964118

Exercise
price
HKD

e
B

Closing
price

per share
immediately
before

the date

of grant
HKD

2
BFRAH
SRUHE

oy

NA
TER

LA RE A5 S Y B R M AT 8 (2

2019F A HERT &I T R RTTEM B ES
BT

Approximate
No. of shareholding
No. of options percentage of
options  exercised/ No. of the underlying
granted  cancelled/ options shares for
No.of  duringthe lapsedduring outstanding the options
options  yearended the year ended at  inthe share
outstandingat 31 December 31 December 31 December capital of
1 January 2022 2022 2022 2022  the Company
REE
20025
REZ 1283181
B 022% EER R02E  RRERE
N2F1A1E 12AAL B/ 12838 RAERLR
RORH  EERRT EE/ RN RTEH  RANRE
BREHE NEREHE  BRERR  BREHER  BOREMM
111,180 - - 111,180 0.005%
111,180 - - 111,180 0.005%

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2022, no option were

exercised.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests or short positions of the
persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, in
the shares and underlying shares as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO are as

Directors’ Report E=&# & O

EFERR

2022512 A31H - REBEA R RIRIEES
MHAE 5B 33615 F B R R BT
8 A TAL(RRARESHEBITRAE
BRON AR Bl 7 S AB R AR (0 ¥ B BV A

follows: SOABMT ¢
Percentage of
the Company’s
Capacity and Number of issued Long/Short
Name nature of interest shares held share capital position
HAERABRE BT
=t B RkEREE iR EE RAB DL 3873
Wu Junbao Education (Note 1) Beneficial interest 721,792,602 33.164% Long position
RERBE (Hit1) kol o S0y
Wu Wei Education (Note 2) Beneficial interest 490,361,609 22.530% Long position
REHE Wit2) Btk e
ZhongAn Education (Note 3) Beneficial interest 437,993,495 20.124% Long position
HLHE (H:F3) B S0y
Ms. Zhou Jiaju (Note 1) Spousal interest 721,792,602 33.164% Long position
AR% 2+ (H1iF1) [T e
Ms. Cheng Jing (Note 2) Spousal interest 490,361,609 22.530% Long position
BE T (Wit2) BB g e
Ms. Wei Zhiling (Note 3) Spousal interest 437,993,495 20.124% Long position
EER LT (W3 Fo B TR
Notes: Wiz -
1. Wu Junbao Education, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Junbao, is 1. RERHUE (AREREEZEER) AR

the beneficial owner of approximately 33.164% of the shareholding
in our Company. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wu Junbao and Ms. Zhou
Jiaju (spouse of Mr. Wu Junbao) are deemed to be interested in all of

the shares held by Wu Junbao Education.

2. Wu Wei Education, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Wei, is the 2.
beneficial owner of approximately 22.530% of the shareholdings in
our Company. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wu Wei and Ms. Cheng
Jing (spouse of Mr. Wu Wei) are deemed to be interested in all of the
shares held by Wu Wei Education.

NARIBB.164%RIENERBA A © RIR
BHERBEEY  REREERAREX
T (RERTEDME) WAR AR RERY
BFSBETERN P A -

REHRE (BHRELXEZ2EHRAB) BARF
#922.530%IENEREA A © RIZFE S
EHEGKD  RELEREBHELL(RE
EEMRB) WRARREBELEMFERN
AR EARER o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes: (continueq)

3. ZhongAn Education, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Xiao Guoging, is
the beneficial owner of approximately 20.124% of the shareholdings
in our Company. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Xiao Guoging and Ms. Wei
Zhiling (spouse of Mr. Xiao Guoqing) are deemed to be interested in
all of the Shares held by ZhongAn Education.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person,
other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, had
interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING OF THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Mr. Wu Junbao, Wu Junbao Education (“Controlling
Shareholders”), Mr. Wu Wei, Wu Wei Education, Mr. Xiao Guoging
and ZhongAn Education (collectively as the “Undertaking Parties”
and each as a “Undertaking Party”), have entered into the Deed
of Non-competition on 21 May 2019 in favour of the Company,
pursuant to which the Undertaking Parties have jointly and severally
and irrevocably undertaken with the Company (for itself and for
the benefit of its subsidiaries) that it or he would not, and would
procure that its or his controlled entities (except any members
of the Group) would not, during the restricted period set out
below, directly or indirectly, either on its or his own account or in
conjunction with or on behalf of any person, company (enterprise or
corporate entity), partnership or associate (whether of an economic
nature), among other things, carry on, participate or be interested
or engaged in or hold (in each case whether as a shareholder,
partner, agent, employee or otherwise) any business which is or
may be in competition with the business of any member of the
Group (the “Restricted Business”) to the extent such competition
would materially and adversely impact the operations and financial
position or prospects of the Group.

The “restricted period” stated in the Deed of Non-competition
refers to the period during which (i) the Shares remain listed on
the Stock Exchange; (i) in relation to each Undertaking Party, the
relevant Undertaking Party or any of its/his associates still holds
directly or indirectly an equity interest in our Company; and (iii) the
Undertaking Parties and/or their respective associates jointly or
severally are entitled to exercise or control the exercise of not less
than 30% in aggregate of the voting power at general meetings of
the Company.

Under the Structured Contracts (as defined in the Company’s
prospectus dated 30 May 2019 (the “Prospectus”)), Mr. Wu
Junbao, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Xiao Guoging, as registered
Shareholders, and Mr. Ge Xiaoliang, as a school sponsor of Nanjing
Culinary Technical School (F 7 %L+ T 24) ("Nanjing School"),
also provided certain non-competition undertakings in favour of the

Company.

The Company has received and the Independent Non-executive
Directors have reviewed the confirmation from the Undertaking
Parties in respect of their compliance with the terms of non-
competition undertaking for the year.

BRI RN A 5T R

2019565 H21H » RIEBEREE - RERH
B(EZERRR]) - REXE  REHE -
HEELEERTRHE (HBEREEHA
[BFEH ) UARRARA/E AL TR FH
BB RGBSR HFERS BT
Bl mAAR (RERS RAEMK B QT
Fles) F & RTXAEZREIEME - W
BEFFEHREEMNESE R BRRK
AIREREATHEE - AET2 W KR
EEPTIEHINE 8 (REBEMKE AR
SN T Bk EE BT R SRR M
AT RAI(ESIAFEE) - GERH
EHE N (ERES AKEME) - (KA
BIE) AT B BT B ATk Al gL B AN R
FRIKERFINERBRBFNES([Z
RHIZERK])  IRNEREBRERINEL
A (EEBEATETHUARE - 588 A -
RE - EESEAM S D) ZRBIFE o

S RIE ALY [ 52 R BIEARE 45 () B 24
FEEG P EEV AR ¢ (WL B AR E -
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STRUCTURED CONTRACTS

Please refer to the section headed “Structured Contracts” in
the Prospectus for the major terms of and reasons to enter into
Structured Contracts and other details. For the year ended 31
December 2022, the Board had reviewed the overall performance
of the structured contracts and believes that the Group had
complied with the structured contracts in all material respects.

Qualification Requirement

Pursuant to the Regulation on Sino-Foreign Cooperation in
Operating Schools ((FF#E A REFE R INE EREKA)), the
Implementing Measures on the Regulation on Sino-Foreign
Cooperation in Operating Schools ({FR oM 1EIF GBI B M E))
and the Management Measures on the Sino-Foreign Cooperative
School Running regarding Vocational Skills Training ({F 94 1E
BRI EE IR IEXL)), the foreign investor in Sino-foreign
joint venture schools offering training on vocational skills must be
a foreign educational institution with relevant qualification and that
provides high quality education (the “Qualification Requirement”).

None of the implementation regulations related to the Qualification
Requirement was updated for the year ended 31 December
2022. For details of the efforts and actions made by the Group in
accordance with the Qualification Requirement, please refer to the
section headed “Structured Contracts” in the Prospectus.

Foreign Investment Law (“FIL”)

On 15 March 2019, the National People’s Congress approved
the FIL which have come into effect on 1 January 2020. The FIL
has replaced the foreign investment legal foundation in the PRC
consisting of three laws: the Sino-Foreign Equity Joint Venture
Enterprise Law, the Sino-Foreign Cooperative Joint Venture
Enterprise Law and the Wholly Foreign-Invested Enterprise
Law. For details of the FIL, please refer to the section headed
“Regulations” in the Prospectus. For details about the impact and
potential consequences of the FIL, please also refer to the section
headed “Structured Contracts” in the Prospectus.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

1

Financial assistance

On 15 September 2022, the Company and each of Mr.
Wu Junbao, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Xiao Guoging entered
into a loan framework agreement (the “Loan Framework
Agreement”), respectively, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to, through its designated lending subsidiary(ies),
make available to the receiving companies to be designated
by Mr. Wu Junbao, a Non-executive Director of the Company,
Mr. Wu Wei, the Chairman and an Executive Director of the
Company and Mr. Xiao Guoging, the Vice-chairman and an
Executive Director of the Company, a RMB revolving loan
facility in a maximum daily balance (excluding the accrued
interests) of RMB80 million each, respectively, at an interest
rate of 7% per annum for the period from 15 September
2022 to 31 March 2024. Such Loan Framework Agreement
will provide a better return on the Group’s temporarily surplus
cash resources which is beneficial to the Group and the
Shareholders as a whole.

The maximum amount of the aforesaid transaction between
the Group and Mr. Wu Junbao, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Xiao
Guoging was RMB80,000,000 respectively for the year ended
31 December 2022. (note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements). For details of the financial assistance, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 15 September
2022,
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

@

Structured Contracts

As disclosed in the paragraph headed “Structured
Contracts — Background of the Structured Contracts” in
the Prospectus, relevant laws and regulations restrict the
operation of vocational education and vocational training
institutions to Sino-foreign cooperation ownership, in addition
to imposing qualification requirements on the foreign owners.
Further, it is expected that the possibility of government
approval for establishing and operating a vocational education
and vocational training institute in the PRC by way of Sino-
foreign ownership in the foreseeable future is very low. As a
result, the Group, through our wholly-owned subsidiary, Hefei
Xinhua Chuangchi Education Management Co., Ltd. (the
“WFOE”), our PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities and other
parties, have entered into the Structured Contracts such
that we can conduct our business operations indirectly in the
PRC through our PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities while
complying with applicable PRC law and regulations. The
Structured Contracts, as a whole, are designed to provide our
Group with effective control over the financial and operational
policies of our PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities, to the
extent permitted by PRC law and regulations, the right to
acquire the equity interest in and/or the assets of our PRC
Consolidated Affiliated Entities and/or the school sponsors
interest in Nanjing School after the listing through the WFOE.
As we operate our education business through our PRC
Consolidated Affiliated Entities, which are controlled by their
respective school sponsors and we do not hold any direct
equity interest in our PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities,
the Structured Contracts were entered into on 30 November
2018 pursuant to which all material business activities of
our PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities are instructed
and supervised by our Group, through the WFOE, and the
relevant economic benefits arising from such business of the
our PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities are transferred to our
Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

@

Structured Contracts (continued)

The Structured Contracts consist of a series of agreements,
collectively, the exclusive management consultancy and
business cooperation agreements, the exclusive call option
agreements, the equity pledge agreement, the powers of
attorney, the accounts receivable pledge agreement, the
school sponsors’ or capital contributors’ rights entrustment
agreement and the school sponsors’ or capital contributors’
powers of attorney, each of which is an integral part of the
Structured Contracts. See “Structured Contracts” in the
Prospectus for details of major terms of these agreements.

In view of the Structured Contracts, we have applied to the
Stock Exchange for, and the Stock Exchange has granted,
a waiver from strict compliance with (i) the announcement,
circular and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
transactions contemplated under the Structured Contracts
pursuant to Rule 14A.105 of the Listing Rules, (i) the
requirement of setting an annual cap for the transactions
under the Structured Contracts under Rule 14A.53 of the
Listing Rules, and (i) the requirement of limiting the term
of our Structured Contracts to three years or less under
Rule 14A.52 of the Listing Rules, for so long as our Shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange subject however to the
following conditions:

(@ No change without Independent Non-executive
Directors’ approval

No change to the Structured Contracts will be made
without the approval of the Independent Non-executive
Directors.

(b)  No change without independent Shareholders’ approval

Save as described in paragraph (d) below, no change
to the agreements governing the Structured Contracts
will be made without the approval of our Company’s
independent Shareholders.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

@

Structured Contracts (continued)

(b)

No change without independent Shareholders’ approval
(continued)

Once independent Shareholders’ approval of any
change has been obtained, no further announcement
or approval of the independent shareholders will
be required under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
unless and until further changes are proposed. The
periodic reporting requirement regarding the Structured
Contracts in the annual reports of our Company will
however continue to be applicable.

Economic benefits flexibility

The Structured Contracts shall continue to enable our
Group to receive the economic benefits derived by
our PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities through (i) our
Group’s option, to the extent permitted under PRC
laws and regulations, to acquire all or part of the equity
or school sponsor’s interest held by the registered
Shareholders and/or the school sponsors of Nanjing
School, as the case may be, at the lowest possible
amount permissible under the applicable PRC laws and
regulations, (i) the business structure under which the
net profit generated by our PRC Consolidated Affiliated
Entities is substantially retained by our Group, such that
no annual cap shall be set on the amount of service
fees payable to WFOE by our PRC Consolidated
Affiliated Entities under the exclusive technical service
and management consultancy agreements, and (jii) our
Group’s right to control the management and operation
of, as well as, in substance, all of the voting rights of our
PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities as appointed by
the registered Shareholders in our PRC Consolidated
Affiliated Entities or by the school sponsors of Nanjing
School, as the case may be.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

@

Structured Contracts (continued)

(d)

Renewal and reproduction

On the basis that the Structured Contracts provide an
acceptable framework for the relationship between our
Company and its subsidiaries in which our Company
has direct shareholding, on one hand, and our PRC
Consolidated Affiliated Entities, on the other hand, that
framework may be renewed and/or reproduced upon
the expiry of the existing arrangements or in relation
to any existing or new wholly foreign owned enterprise
or operating company engaging in the same business
as that of our Group which our Group might wish
to establish when justified by business expediency,
without obtaining the approval of the Shareholders,
on substantially the same terms and conditions as
the existing Structured Contracts. The directors, chief
executives or substantial shareholders of any existing
or new wholly foreign owned enterprise or operating
company (including branch company) engaging in the
same business as that of our Group which our Group
may establish will, upon renewal and/or reproduction
of the Structured Contracts, however be treated as
connected persons of our Company and transactions
between these connected persons and our Company
other than those under similar Structured Contracts
shall comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. This
condition is subject to relevant PRC laws, regulations
and approvals.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

©)

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Director have reviewed and
confirmed the continuing connected transactions set out

above are:
1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

2. on normal commercial terms or better; and

3.  entered into in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

Our Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
Structured Contracts and confirmed that () the transactions
carried out during the year ended 31 December 2022 have
been entered into in accordance with the relevant provisions
of the Structured Contracts, have been operated so that
the profit generated by the PRC Consolidated Affiliated
Entities has been substantially retained by the Group, (i) no
dividends or other distributions have been made by the PRC
Consolidated Affiliated Entities to the respective holders of
equity or school sponsor’s interest which are not otherwise
subsequently assigned or transferred to the Group, and
(iii) the Structured Contracts and if any, any new contracts
entered into, renewed or reproduced between the Group
and the PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities during the year
ended 31 December 2022 under paragraph (d) above are
fair and reasonable, or advantageous, so far as the Group
is concerned and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

)

Confirmation of auditors of the Company

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”,
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the HKICPA. The external
auditor issued its unqualified letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided to the
Stock Exchange in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules.

The Company’s auditors also carried out procedures on
the transactions pursuant to the Structured Contracts and
confirmed that the transactions have received the approval
of the Directors, have been entered into in accordance with
the relevant Structured Contracts and that no dividends or
other distributions have been made by our PRC Consolidated
Affiliated Entities to the respective holders of equity or school
sponsor’s interest which are not otherwise subsequently
assigned or transferred to our Group.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related parties transactions undertaken in the

normal course of business are set out in notes 20 and 31 to the
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consolidated financial statements in this annual report, which also
constitute continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules. These continuing connected transactions have complied

with the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the Directors,
the substantial Shareholders or the management Shareholders of
the Company or any of their respective associates has engaged
in any business that competes or may compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group or has any other conflict
of interests with the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2022 were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate granted to any director or their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or were the Company or any of its holding
companies, fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Company’s directors, their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Non-exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions” in this report, none of the Directors nor
any entity connected with the Directors had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party subsisting during or at the end of the year ended 31
December 2022.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Non-exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions” and the transactions as disclosed in
notes 20 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report, no Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
have any contract of significance with the Company or its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2022.

No contract of significance, including contracts of significance
for the provision of services, has been entered into among the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders
or any of their subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December
2022.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2022.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code for dealing in securities of
the Company by the Directors. The Company has made specific
enquiry of all Directors and all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing
Shareholders.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Save for the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the 2019 Share

Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and subject to the applicable
laws and regulations, the Directors, secretary and other senior officers
of the Company at any time, whether at present or in the past, and
the liquidator or trustees (if any) acting or who have acted in relation to
any of the affairs of the Company and everyone of them, and everyone
of their heirs, executors and administrators, shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them, their or any of their heirs, executors or
administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices or trusts; and none
of them shall be answerable for the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults
of the other or others of them or for joining in any receipts for the sake
of conformity, or for any bankers or other persons with whom any
moneys or effects belonging to the Company shall or may be lodged
or deposited for safe custody, or for insufficiency or deficiency of any
security upon which any moneys of or belonging to the Company
shall be placed out on or invested, or for any other loss, misfortune or
damage which may happen in the execution of their respective offices
or trusts, or in relation thereto: provided that this indemnity shall not
extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may
attach to any of said persons.

The Company has taken out liability insurance to provide
appropriate coverage for the Directors.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Hung Ka Hai,
Clement, Dr. Zhu Guobin and Dr. Zang Yunzhi. The main duties
of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in providing an
independent review of the completeness, accuracy and fairness
of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 of the Group, as well as the efficiency and
effectiveness of the Group’s operations and internal controls.
The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022,
including the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group. The Audit Committee is in the opinion that the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the
statutory requirements and that adequate disclosures have been
made in the annual report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming annual general meeting will be held on Thursday,
25 May 2023. For the details, please refer to the notice of the
annual general meeting which will be published and dispatched
to the shareholders of the Company as soon as practicable in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and the
Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(@  For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 22 May 2023 to Thursday, 25 May 2023 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company may be registered, for the purposes of ascertaining
Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting,
all share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Service Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 19
May 2023.
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(b)  For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 1 June 2023 to Tuesday, 6 June 2023 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares of the
Company may be registered, for the purposes of ascertaining
Shareholders’ entitlement for the proposed final dividend. The
record date for the proposed final dividend shall be Tuesday, 6
June 2023. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend,
all share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday,
31 May 2023.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Pursuant to the waiver obtained from the Stock Exchange, based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
public float of at least 20.0024% and 20.1817% of the Company’s
issued Shares from the date of listing to 4 July 2019, being the
date of issue of additional Shares upon exercise of over-allotment
options, and from such date to the date of this report respectively.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
A summary of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and of

the consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years, is set out on page 308.
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AUDITOR ZEER

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu shall retire in the forthcoming annual =g e FEMR A AT T AN EERERA

general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re- FRELRAE  UREERLKEEEEE
appointment. A resolution for their re-appointments as auditor of F-mMEERRAFAG LHRERE
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general = BEFE AN BIRIZEED

meeting.

By order of the Board EEEGW

China East Education Holdings Limited FERAFHEZERERAT

Wu Wei RE

Chairman TE

Hong Kong, 23 March 2023 EH > 202343 523H
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA EAST EDUCATION
HOLDINGS LIMITED

(FEEFHEERERAA)

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
East Education Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 188 to 307, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022 and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter
BREXSE
QOccurrence of revenue recognition in relation to tuition fees

A HEEABAN AR

We identified revenue, referring to note 6 of the
consolidated financial statements, as a key audit matter
due to its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and volume of transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

TR AS RAREZEEIHNEHEE2022F
12ABBILFEFEUBREERFENEEMN - F2
B4R e BTSRRI TG ©

Tuition fees are generally collected in advance at
the enrollment or at the beginning of each school
year for courses over one year. Tuition fees received
from students but not earned are initially recorded in
contract liabilities, and then recognised over the relevant
period of the applicable courses. Revenue is one of
the key performance indicators of the Group. Given
the significant balance and volume of transactions
processed, we therefore consider the revenue
recognition as a key audit matter.

BE RN ABR BB —FORESBFRBRLRA
IWER - (e BAWEIERRINEEBYTCHEREHE
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RIBUIER . — c ERERERETETISE - 1T
E UL G WA FERIR BB EIZFIE -

The accounting policy of revenue recognition and
analysis of revenue are included in notes 4 and 6 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.
WAFER KA S ITBI G 5T R 9 BB 4R & MRk
BizE4 K6 -

RRERSEEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RITHNERNTEEBRELSR

Our procedures in relation to revenue recognition of
tuition fees included:
TTEBREBRAER 2 EZEFEE

= obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of Group’s key internal controls relating to revenue
recognition process;

- TEEME ESEERABRIBEEENERA
EPEERIRRGT B SIEERAK

— on a sample basis, verifying the existence of the
students in the financial year by checking the
attendance records and the student register

system;
- EERELHCHENMBATMASMERER MK
FEBAERTER

- on a sample basis, checking the supporting
documents of tuition fees received from students;

- HEREESRLRIRMBEEEAN

= performing recalculation of the amount of contract
liabilities and revenue recognised during the year;
and

-  BFERFERAERNEHNEERKRASRE &

- performing analytical procedures to assess the
reasonableness of revenue recognised during the

year.
- WIoMER - UFHEREARRHKRARE R
15 o
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ FERAHBFERER LT

Hitp&E#

BERAERAHEMENASE - HEH
BRFERMECER  ETBREAMT
R MATTRRUL B 2 X BRI SR o

AITHGRAMBREANELL TRERM
B AT T HEME R ZR AN

HEERE SR

AATERGAMBHRAME - ATTHE
TREBBLMER  FLBeR T  TEE
EMEE BEAMBRRIATEER
BIETTROBABEASN -8 &
UFHEBEBAHRBRL - ERAITEHAITH
TR MRATRBEMEMBERER
ol ATHREREXFE - HEEHE
RITRBERFRE -

EERAEENGEVBRRAEZE
(53

BERRIZEFARARBEEBGTHMAE
M 2 BB S AR R BB R B ED
ZBEBRERELEEMN QTSR E
REVBRRARESZTR /B L E ML
B BHRR T FERRRFFRERMER
ZEARERERA 2 REBEH -

EREEEVHHRRE  EFAEN
i BERERFELENEN  YEERB
MATHRBERFSELLARNER UK
ERFBELEGHER BRIFEXEFE
® BEEEFR|UFILLE - HAIEEM
ERHEBERTE -

NN
/AT

pe
8]

=l == .
EEEEE

1= m B

BEEBEMBREBIE -



Independent Auditor’s Report (continued) ¥& 37 #% &l R & (&) O

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continuead)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ FERAHBFERER LT

BRBMRAERGRE M BEBRREAREZEE

(&,

o FHEESMEASHBERMNBREER
fEh gt AR REER NS E
M o

s HEERABELESTEMNGE
e R - IRIBAISMERRR -
RERBFHEERFHRIBENBHNE
RTHEEN - MAlgeY BERERE
REHENBNEARR ° MRATT
RRFEERNTHEEN - IAVER
THENRE P IRFEBEHREUE
HBRPNAEREEETRI - B
HEBRBEERTRE - ABRAITH
BA - ATNEREENEEAITH
BB E BB IEARGHERE
& e A REFEMFHBRAIEE
¥ BERETRMESELE -

o  HERAMBRRHEERIIHmSA
RBENMAT  BREEEER AR
EUBHmRELT DA RRBEARZHM
FH-

e B ERETERIEBIINGG
BEXEDED  BENEZEE - N
HREVBHRRERER - ATRE
BE  EEMHTREEZ - A17E
HAITHERERAERE -

RIS ERZHE - BRZH  BEAF
RREREZR  BRATEEZHREZER
P BB I B (AT BN R B R I8 [ E 7T
TEA -



Independent Auditor’s Report (continued) 38 37 #% 2 &l ¥R & (4) O

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Wong Shun Yu.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income &4 E&R 2 ElER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12 A31ALLEE

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE
NOTES 2022 2021
MIE 20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTTT

Revenue A 6 3,819,022 4,139,700
Cost of revenue AR (1,927,958) (2,027,540)
Gross profit EF 1,891,064 2,112,160
Other income and expenses E A K S 7 107,405 130,857
Other gains and losses E s & B 18 8 135,751 (52,299)
Selling expenses SHERE (946,341) (988,265)
Administrative expenses THFAX (512,159) (541,756)
Research and development expenses i35 F 2 (21,527) (30,797)
Finance costs TSR AR 9 (156,171) (161,123)
Profit before tax FRATREF 498,022 468,777
Income tax expense FriSHi 2 10 (131,450) (166,611)
Profit and total comprehensive FRHEF R EEW AR

income for the year 11 366,572 302,166
Earnings per share GRAR 14
- Basic (RMB cents) —EXKARES) 16.85 13.79
- Diluted (RMB cents) —mEARESD) 16.69 13.28
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position & & B &k R &

As at 31 December 2022
® 2022412 A31H

As at 31 December

M12H31H
NOTES 2022 2021
MIE 20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Non-current assets FkRBEE
Property and equipment LIEYS & 15 2,615,242 1,934,515
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16 2,424,806 2,322,911
Deferred tax assets EENIRE = 17 5,496 5,772
Deposits paid for acquisition of WHEEE T M EfZe
leasehold lands 86,159 27,000
Deposits for rental Heke 22,233 23,506
Deposits for utilities and others KEE N HAM RS 3,426 7,963
5,157,362 4,321,667
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 18 71,625 65,134
Trade and other receivables Z 5 R HE M EWGRIE 19 331,095 275,300
Other financial assets HEihemEE 20
— measured at fair value through — AR EBEFTEIWE
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) AE=((UAAEE
STEYETAER]) 638,644 612,268
— measured at amortised cost — IR A F T E 80,000 =
Tax recoverable AU B B R 3,136 5,834
Time deposits EHAITE SR 21 1,755,477 2,143,226
Cash and cash equivalents Re KReEEY 21 1,435,498 2,212,294
4,315,475 5,314,056
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk HAFERFIR 22 683,580 676,006
Tax liabilities HIEAE 80,266 90,994
Lease liabilities HEBE 23 381,873 387,774
Contract liabilities EHEE 24 1,186,574 1,390,853
2,332,293 2,545,627
Net current assets REEETFE 1,983,182 2,768,429
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEZAERREEE 7,140,544 7,090,096
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued) =& Bk & (&)

As at 31 December 2022 (continued)
72022512 31 8 (&)

As at 31 December

M12H31H
NOTES 2022 2021
MIE 20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTTT

Non-current liabilities ERBAS
Lease liabilities HEEaE 23 1,414,040 1,305,514
Contract liabilities AHEE 24 21,420 40,751
Government grants BT 488 B 6,006 5,101
1,441,466 1,351,366
Net assets EEFE 5,699,078 5,738,730

Capital and reserves ERRf#E
Share capital &N 25 192 192
Reserves e 5,698,886 5,738,538
Total equity ERBE 5,699,078 5,738,730

The consolidated financial statements on pages 188 to 307 were HNFE188EI07THM AR MR KEES
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 ER2023F3 A23H M IR - WH

March 2023 and signed on its behalf of: TALTRABESE :
Wu Wei Xiao Guoqing
R HEE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity ZR&EZE B X

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE2022F12A31BILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company
NG 2PN A
Share-
based  Statutory
Share Share Capital  payments surplus  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
MR
REBN
ke RGEE EAREE  XORE EEESEE BEEN At
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARBTT AR%TT ARETR ARETT AR%Tr

(note a)

(Hizka)
At 1 January 2021 202151R1H 193 3,904,959 166,947 165,481 234,007 1578451 6,040,038
Profit and total comprehensive income AT K 2 E Iz

for the year g = = = — - 302,166 302,166
Recognition of equity-settled share- B IAER £ E KR

based payments (note 26) S (Fit26) - - - 56,180 - - 56,180
Issue of new shares upon T R R

exercise of share options AR (BiFE25() K

(note 25(i)) & (note 26) (Fiz+26) 1 35,840 - (21,500 = = 14,341
Repurchase and cancelation of shares B2l R 513

(note 25(i) (BirE2siii) @ (186,791) - - - - (186,793
Transaction costs attributable to BELEHEROESLR

repurchase and cancellation of SRA

shares - (205) - - - - (205)
Dividend distribution (note 13) REA TR (F7E13) - (486997) - = - - (486,997)
Transfer g% = = - = 34096 (34,09) -
At 31 December 2021 R2021E12A318 192 3,266,306 166,947 200,161 268,103 1,846,521 5,738,730
Profit and total comprehensive income £ A Jt 2 E Kz

for the year ek - - - - - 366572 366,572
Recognition of equity-settled share-  FERIAER £ E MR

based payments (note 26) F A (MizE26) - - - 42,906 - - 42,906
Issue of new shares upon PR BT

exercise of share options AR (D (k25 &

(note 25(v)) & (note 26) (Fifz%26) - 8,940 - (5,417) - - 3,523
Dividend distribution (note 13) REAIR (H313) - (452,653) - - - - (452,653)
Transfer a5 - - - - 4,282 (4,282) -
At 31 December 2022 12022F 128318 192 2,823,093 156,947 237,650 272,385 2,208,811 5,699,078
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued) fr & B2 B % (a)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)
BE 2022612 A31 BILEE (&)

Note:

(@)

Pursuant to the relevant laws in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”), the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC shall make
appropriations from after-tax profit to non-distributable reserve funds
as determined by the management of the relevant PRC subsidiaries.
These reserves include: (i) general reserve of the limited liabilities
companies and (i) the development fund of schools.

For PRC subsidiaries with limited liability, they are required to
make annual appropriations to general reserve of 10% of after-
tax profits as determined under the PRC laws and regulations
at each year-end until the balance reaches 50% of the relevant
PRC entity’s registered capital.

According to the Implementation Rules of the Law for
Promoting Private Education of the PRC ({/# A R A1
ERAB REEEMHIEH])), it is required for for-profit private
school to appropriate to development fund of not less than
10% of the net income of the relevant school as determined in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in
the PRC. The development fund shall be used for construction
or maintenance of the school or procurement or upgrading of
educational equipment. When the development fund is used,
the reserve will be transferred back to retained profits directly.

China East Education Holdings Limited o FERAHBERER AT
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ZREHREHRER

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Interest income from time deposits
and bank balances
Interest income from entrusted loans
Depreciation of property and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Release of asset-related government grants
Losses (gains) on disposals of property and
equipment
(Gains) losses from termination of lease
agreements
Losses (gains) on other financial assets
measured at FVTPL
Equity-settled share-based payments
expense
Unrealised net foreign exchange
(gains) losses

Operating cash flow before movements
in working capital
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and other receivables
Decrease in deposits for utilities and others
(Decrease) increase in trade and other

payables

Decrease in contract liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid

Net cash from operating activities

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE2022F12A31BILEE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARET T
REEE
FRATEF 498,022 468,777
FAEIEE -
BTSN 156,171 161,123
TR R IRITAE S
FEMA (61,266) (53,667)
ZEERF EWA (2,341) (22,161)
MR EETE 319,486 313,527
FREEENE 315,359 306,959
BNEENRBABNREE (1,816) (5,182)
k- EYNE )
E5 18 (fas) 9,263 (344)
K IERE R (WEs) B1E
(3,691) 280
AR BEET ABEA
HibemEERE (W) 2,109 (21,300)
LA S H MR D AERER
XAFRX 42,906 56,180
REIRE H (W) BT
(208,650) 47,128
LEECEBRIMNLE
Ren= 1,065,552 1,251,320
FEE (6,491) (8,884)
B 5 I E At fE R IR AN (33,945) (67,954)
REE R EAMIZSH D 4,537 28
B 5 R H bR FRIE
CRiA) 380 (45,119) 28,463
ERNaERY (223,610) (18,229)
KEEENRS 760,924 1,184,744
BERFTEE (139,204) (206,891)
K TRENFTSIR & F 5 621,720 977,853
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued) ZRE R &7

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)
BE 2022612 A31 BILEE (&)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Interest received from time deposits B E BifF SR R 8R1 T
and bank balances EHRFE

Interest received from entrusted loans WEE T E TS
Proceeds on disposals of property

and equipment

HEMEMRENEHIA

Purchases of property and equipment EEMENEE
Purchases of leasehold lands HEMHE L
Deposits paid for acquisition WEAET HHENES
of leasehold lands
Payments for right-of-use assets ERREEENK
Payments for rental deposits iR AN
Withdrawl! of rental deposits RRHEZRe
Purchases of other financial assets BEHEMOREE
Redemptions of other financial assets EREMEREE
Placement of time deposits TE BRTF 5/ A5 5K
Withdrawal of time deposits HREUE 77K
Deposits paid for development B HELES
Withdrawal deposits paid for development B HERe

Asset-related government grants
Net cash used in investing activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from exercise of share options

Payments on repurchase and
cancellation of shares

BB ERBBFHE

REAZSIAHESFR
BMEEE
1L BB SR
B R R SR AR oD 153K

Transaction costs attributable to repurchase  B&[E1 & 7 $EA% 1D
and cancellation of shares (R 5

Payment on dividend paid EERIEISCREN

Repayments of lease liabilities BEEHEaE

Interests paid on lease liabilities

Net cash used in financing activities

HERBENAE
RMEEBFARS TR

BER @)

Year ended 31 December

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ~ F¥38 & RIREZEY
of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes MR E

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the ~ FXRIFE MRS ZEY
year, representing bank balances and cash (BNR1TTHEB LR S)

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ FEIRAHRBERERD T

ReMReEEBMRDFE

HZ12A31BLLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREFTT
39,416 46,416
2,341 22,161
4,076 4,022
(951,367) (763,059)
(5,209) (248,468)
(86,159) (27,000)
(12,735) (6,434)
(2,316) (3,800)
2,657 4172
(2,198,501) (3,695,937)
2,090,016 3,995,247
(1,898,033) (2,526,835)
2,374,751 2,591,481
- (28,560)
- 8,568
2,721 416
(638,342) (627,610)
3,523 14,341
- (186,7993)
- (205)
(452,653) (486,997)
(274,554) (241,408)
(156,171) (161,123)
(879,855) (1,062,185)
(896,477) (711,942)
2,212,294 2,972,325
119,681 (48,089)
1,435,498 2,212,294




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 Bt ¥ & Kzt

GENERAL INFORMATION

China East Education Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and registered
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands on 4
October 2018. Its shares have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 12 June 2019 (the “Listing”). Its ultimate
controlling parties are Mr. Wu Junbao, Mr. Wu Wei and
Mr. Xiao Guoqing, collectively referred as the “Controlling
Equity Holders”. The registered office of the Company is
located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and the principal
place of business in PRC is No. 1009 Xuelin Road, Vocational
Education Town, Yaohai District, Hefei City, Anhui Province,
the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are mainly engaged in the
operation of vocational education institutions. Details of the
subsidiaries are disclosed in note 32. The Company and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (‘RMB”), which is the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
{ZE2022F 12 A31 ALEFE

—REHR

FRERSHEZERER AR ([ED
B1)R2018F 10 A4BIREFREHS
(RELEY (F22%) ER SRS
N RERRBREMERAR c HIRH B
201956 H12HRERBEAHER S
FrER A ([HRA]) EREM(TE
M) o H&Efl 7 BREREE -
REEREREBEELE (HEAEE
ERBEE]) - ARTWEMFEE
{72 Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands & A B £ Z &
EHURI R B HE S ETE SR
BN 2 MR 100955 °

KRR —FIEEERAF o XAQF]
MEARNFEXRFENELLH
EREHE - BRANBRARMNFER
BERMIEE32 c AR E REMB ARG
BRIAEH] -

HFEUBHRIAARE ([ARE]) 2

5 MARBRARBREKBAT
BIREE -
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations requirement,
the Company is restricted to independently or jointly operate
most of vocational and training business. In preparation for
the Listing, the Group has entered into a series of contractual
arrangements with the Controlling Equity Holders to maintain
and exercise the control over the operation of Anhui Xinhua
Education Group Co., Ltd. (Z#EEHE EEBR A T)
(“Anhui Xinhua Education”), and to obtain all of its entire
economic benefits (the “Contractual Arrangements”). The
Contractual Arrangements were entered into by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, Hefei Xinhua Chuangzhi
Education Management Co., Ltd. (AE#ZERIEH A EEA
R~ 8] (“Xinhua Chuangzhi”) with Anhui Xinhua Education,
Nanjing Culinary Technical School (MR 78+ T 21)
(“Nanjing Culinary”), the Controlling Equity Holders and
Mr. Ge Xiaoliang, which, effective from 30 November 2018,
enable Xinhua Chuangzhi and the Group to:

° exercise effective financial and operational control over
Anhui Xinhua Education and Nanjing Culinary;

° exercise equity holders’ voting rights of Anhui Xinhua
Education and Nanjing Culinary;

° receive substantially all economic returns generated
by Anhui Xinhua Education and Nanjing Culinary in
consideration for the business support, technical and
consulting services provided by the Group;

° obtain an irrevocable and exclusive right to purchase
the entire equity interest in Anhui Xinhua Education
and Nanjing Culinary from the Controlling Equity
Holders and Mr. Ge Xiaoliang at nil consideration or a
minimum purchase price permitted under PRC laws
and regulations. The Group may exercise such options
at any time until it has acquired all equity interests and/
or all assets of Anhui Xinhua Education and Nanjing
Culinary. In addition, Anhui Xinhua Education and
Nanjing Culinary are not allowed to sell, transfer, or
dispose any assets, or make any distributions to its
equity holders without prior consent of the Group; and

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ FERAHBFERER LT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 434 B %8R = M 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
{ZE2022F 12 A31 ALEFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 Bt #3R XK MizF (&)

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

° obtain a pledge over the entire equity interest of Anhui
Xinhua Education and Nanjing Culinary from the
Controlling Equity Holders and Mr. Ge Xiaoliang as
collateral security for all of the amounts Anhui Xinhua
Education and Nanjing Culinary due to the Group
and to secure performance of the Controlling Equity
Holders’ and Mr. Ge Xiaoliang’s obligations under the
Contractual Arrangements.

Consequently, the Company regards Anhui Xinhua Education
and Nanjing Culinary as indirect subsidiaries.

The following balances and amounts of the Anhui Xinhua
Education and its subsidiaries and Nanjing Culinary were
included in the consolidated financial statements:

Revenue 1 ON

Profit before tax TR A A
Non-current assets ERBEE
Current assets MENVE B
Current liabilities wBBE
Non-current liabilities EMBEEME

2.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE2022F12A31BILEE

REMBERREIEE (&

s HERBSREARBERT
ERMBHLZRENEHE RBER
REREEAE R ER - F
RRBNEHE MR TR
NAEBEMAEREBNERE
R UHEREBREDFE AR
EEREEBITEANLHT
AT

At - ARBB LRI ERS LR
RHEGREENEAR -

THRBHERE REMBLRNE
RRZEANERNSRERAGRSNHE
HERA

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BILEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARBTT

3,699,841 3,994,769
325,934 499,653

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETT

4,522,196 3,669,826
1,579,840 2,208,996
1,747,002 1,850,589
1,423,927 1,338,354
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R R M 3k (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfiling a Contract
Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2018-2020

Amendments to HKFRSs

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the Insurance Contracts'
October 2020 and February
2022 Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 (2020)°
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies'
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates!

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction'

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R R M 3k (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets in
paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 Income Taxes so that it no
longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, for leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities, the
Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to the relevant
assets and liabilities separately. Temporary differences on
initial recognition of the relevant assets and liabilities are
not recognised due to application of the initial recognition
exemption.

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group will
recognise a deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary difference can be utilised) and a
deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable temporary
differences associated with the right-of-use assets and the
lease liabilities.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (continued)

The amendments are effective for the Group’s annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2028.
As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities which are subject to
the amendments amounted to RMB1,790,645,000 and
RMB1,795,913,000 respectively, in which the Group will
recognise the related deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities of RMB404,555,000 and RMB411,947,000
respectively. The cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments will be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings (or other component
of equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 44 Bt 16 3R & Ki st (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 45 Bi #3R R i zF (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

41 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair
value and a valuation technique that unobservable
inputs is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so that at
initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 44 Bt 16 3R & Ki st (@)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

41

4.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when
the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from

its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R R M 3k (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee
when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not
the Group’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to
give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other
vote holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

o any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Group has, or does not have, the
current ability to direct the relevant activities at the
time that decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 Bt #3R XK MizF (&)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

4.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R R M 3k (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.

Contract liabilities represent the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to the students for which the Group
has received tuition fees and fees for ancillary services
from the students.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 44 Bt 16 3R & Ki st (@)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of the Group’s efforts or inputs (mainly representing
teaching staff costs, rental expenses and depreciation
of school premises) to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the
satisfaction of that performance obligation, that best
depict the Group’s performance in transferring control
of goods or services.

Tuition fees are generally paid in advance at the
beginning of each courses, and are initially recorded
as contract liabilities. The portion of tuition payments
received from students but not earned is recorded as
contract liabilities. Amounts which will be earned within
one year is reflected as a current liability and those
which will be earned beyond one year is reflected as a
non-current liability.

Leases
Definition of a lease
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract

conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

Definition of a lease (continueq)

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from
business combinations, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component and are accounted for by applying other
applicable standards.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of staff apartments that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12 A31ALLFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4, HEVBBRRNERELERERS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT STBUR (8)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 42 BRGFBKR#E

Leases (continued) HE (&

The Group as a lessee (continued) AEFEZFRHAL (B)

Right-of-use assets EHREEE

The cost of right-of-use asset includes: FREEERNKABSRE

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease e HEBEWUNIES
liability; 58

e any lease payments made at or before the o AR B B ZATEL A
commencement date, less any lease incentives FEHBAENF  BREAE
received; and WHEESR: &

e anyinitial direct costs incurred by the Group. o AEBEANTMIBE

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any 155 PR B B K AN R AR (] R 5T

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and MERBERBERE @ WA

adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities and EBENEMNEFREELH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R R M 3k (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4, HEVBEBRRNEREERERS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT STBUR (8)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 42 BEREFHEE

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continueq)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that
date. In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 Bt #3R XK MizF (&)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continueq)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The lease payments are fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes
in market rental rates following a market rent
review, in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continueq)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 44 Bt 16 3R & Ki st (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE2022F12A31BILEE

O

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4., HEUBBRRNEREEREAE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT SRR ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 42 BRGFBKR#E
Leases (continued) HE (&
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEFEZFRHAL (B)
Lease modifications (continued) HEm1E2L ()

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset.

When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R R M 3k (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as government
grants in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic
and rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 Bt #3R XK MizF (&)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Employee benetfits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit
schemes and and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.
Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are

measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at
the grant date.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 45 Bi #3R R i zF (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments transactions
(continued)

Share options granted to employees (continueq)

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share-based
payments reserve). At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment
of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
payments reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payments reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payments reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 Bt #3R XK MizF (&)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

4.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 45 Bi #3R R i zF (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
be reversed in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
each reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 Bt #3R XK MizF (&)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the
initial recognition exemption. Temporary differences
arising from subsequent revision to the carrying
amounts to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities
and lease modification that are not subject to initial
recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss.

4.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 434 B %8R = M 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property and equijpment

Property and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the supply of services or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under
construction as described below). Property and
equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management,
including costs of testing whether the related assets
is functioning properly and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at
initial recognition. To the extent the allocation of the
relevant payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in
the consolidated statement of financial position. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 Bt #3R XK MizF (&)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items of property and equipment other than
properties under construction less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Research and development expenses

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

When no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Impairment on property and equipment and right-of-
use assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there
is any indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if

any).

4.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R R M 3k (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property and equipment and right-of-
use assets (continued)

The recoverable amount of property and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be established, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount
of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 44 Bt 16 3R & Ki st (@)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property and equipment and right-of-
use assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with
the recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating
units. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash generating unit
or the group of cash-generating units) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit or the group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R R M 3k (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position include:

(@ cash, which comprises of cash on hand and
demand deposits, excluding bank balances that
are subject to regulatory restrictions that result in
such balances no longer meeting the definition of
cash; and

(b)  cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose
of meeting short-term cash commitments rather
than for investment or other purposes.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make
the sale include incremental costs directly attributable
to the sale and non-incremental costs which the Group
must incur to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 Bt #3R XK MizF (&)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

4.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates

to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 Bt #3R XK MizF (&)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“‘FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R R M 3k (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continueqd)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

()  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 44 Bt 16 3R & Ki st (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE2022F12A31BILEE

O

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4., HEUBBRRNEREEREAE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT STBCR (8)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 42 BRGFBKR#E
Financial instruments (continued) THITA (&)
Financial assets (continued) THEEE)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial THEEMSIEFEENE
assets (continued) (&)
(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL (continued) (i) MAAREEEFTSIEARE
=S REE (&)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any dividend earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains
and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit losses (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including trade and other receivables, deposits for
rental, deposits for utilities and others, other financial
assets measured at amortised cost, time deposits
and bank balances) which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting dates to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R R M 3k (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after each reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions
at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognised is based on significant increases in
the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 Bt #3R XK MizF (&)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at each reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R R M 3k (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

()  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 Bt #3R XK MizF (&)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i)

(i)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R R M 3k (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i)

(v)

Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

(@  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

(o) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted
to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries
are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 44 Bt 16 3R & Ki st (@)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continueq)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights. The ECL on trade
receivables are assessed individually, based on
the past default experience of the debtor, general
economic conditions of the industry in which the
debtors operate and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort at the
end of each year.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R R M 3k (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade and other receivables, deposits for rental
and deposits for utilities and others where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 44 Bt 16 3R & Ki st (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definition of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

All financial liabilities including trade and other payables
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R R M 3k (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the management of the Group is
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the management of
the Group has made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continueq)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies (continued)

Contractual Arrangements

The Group conducts a substantial portion of the business
through Anhui Xinhua Education and Nanjing Culinary in the
PRC due to regulatory restrictions on foreign ownership in the
Group’s schools in the PRC. The Group does not have any
equity interest in Anhui Xinhua Education or Nanjing Culinary.
The management of the Group assessed whether or not the
Group has control over Anhui Xinhua Education and Nanjing
Culinary based on whether the Group has the power over
Anhui Xinhua Education and Nanjing Culinary, has rights
to variable returns from its involvement with Anhui Xinhua
Education and Nanjing Culinary, and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over Anhui Xinhua Education
and Nanjing Culinary. After assessment, the management
of the Group concluded that the Group has control over
Anhui Xinhua Education and Nanjing Culinary as a result
of the Contractual Arrangements and other measures and
accordingly, the assets, liabilities and their operating results
of Anhui Xinhua Education and Nanjing Culinary are included
in the consolidated financial statements for both years or
since the respective dates of establishment, whichever is the
shorter period.

Nevertheless, the Contractual Arrangements and other
measures may not be as effective as direct legal ownership
in providing the Group with direct control over Anhui Xinhua
Education, Nanjing Culinary and uncertainties presented by
the PRC legal system could impede the Group’s beneficiary
rights of the results, assets and liabilities of Anhui Xinhua
Education and Nanjing Culinary. The management of the
Group, based on the advice of its legal counsel, considers
that the Contractual Arrangements among Xinhua Chuangzhi,
Anhui Xinhua Education, Nanjing Culinary, the Controlling
Equity Holders and Mr. Ge Xiaoliang are in compliance
with the relevant PRC laws and regulations and are legally
enforceable.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of each reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of property and equipment and right-
of-use assets

Property and equipment and right-of-use assets are stated
at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the
Group has to exercise judgment and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
or any indicators that may affect the asset value; (2) whether
the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections
and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset
(including right-of-use assets), the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the assets belongs, including allocation of corporate assets
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, otherwise recoverable amount is determined at
the smallest group of cash generating units, for which the
relevant corporate assets have been allocated. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates or
the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the recoverable amounts.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of
property and equipment and right-of-use assets were
RMB2,615,242,000 and RMB2,424,806,000 (2021:
RMB1,934,515,000 and RMB2,322,911,000) respectively,
details of which are disclosed in notes 15 and 16 respectively.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is mainly engaged in the provision of vocational
education services in the PRC.

Revenue represents service income from tuition fees and
service fees less sales related tax, and is recognised over
time.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligation for contracts with customers

The majority of the contracts for provision of vocational
education services are for periods of one year or less. As
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to
these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

The Group’s operating segments are based on information
prepared and reported to the chief operating decision
makers (“CODM”), the board of directors of the Company,
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment. The Group is organised into the following
segments:

(@ New East Culinary Education: providing comprehensive
culinary training programs to students who pursue a
career in becoming professional chefs;

(b) Xinhua Internet Technology Education: providing a
wide range of information technology-related training to
students;

(c) Wontone Automotive Education: providing hands-on
auto repair skill training as well as practical knowledge
of automobile commerce;

(d)  Omick Education of Western Cuisine and Pastry:
offering a variety of courses, including baking, desserts,
western cuisines, bartending and barista training;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 434 B %8R = M 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

(e) Wisezone Data Technology Education: providing short-
term programs to junior college and university students
who have already had the basic theoretical knowledge

and seek to further develop relevant practical skills;

(f) Cuisine Academy: providing people with culinary skill
training on small-class settings and/or individual classes

that are delivered on an one-on-one basis; and

(@  Other miscellaneous businesses.

These segments are the basis on which the Group reports its

segment information.

The management of the Group assesses the performance of
the operating and reportable segment based on the revenue
and gross profit for the year of the Group as presented
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The accounting policies of the
reportable segment are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies described in note 4. Segment results represent the
profits earned by each segment and excluding certain other
income and expenses, other gains and losses, corporate
administrative expenses and income tax expense. No analysis
of the Group’s assets and liabilities is regularly provided to
the management of the Group for review. Inter-segment sales

are charged at cost plus approach.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by operating and reportable segments for the years

ended 31 December 2022 and 2021:
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
EHZE2022512 831 AILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. WARDIBER(E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z20002F 12831 HIFF/E
Omick
Xinhua Education Wisezone
New East Internet Wontone  of Westem Data Other
Culinary ~ Technology ~ Automotive ~ Cuisineand  Technology Cuisine  miscellaneous
Education Education Education Pastry Education Academy  businesses  Elimination Total

#i5n #i# EE  ERIER  EEEROT
RHAE BRAE RELE] ERHE AR ZHER  AMRERE i aif
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARWTR  ARMTr  ARBTR ARBTR  ARMTR  ARWTR  ARETR ARBTR

Revenue BA
External sales ShipiE 1,891,673 741,599 718,355 204,326 39,654 56,548 76,867 - 3,819,022
Inter-seqment sales APmE - - - - 3,892 - 106,024 (109,916) -
Segment revenue DEUA 1,891,673 741,509 718,355 204,326 43,546 56,548 182,891 (109,916) 3,819,022
Results |
Seqment esufs 5888 435801 84,304 24628 (66,051) 4044 9857 (57,428) - s
Unallocated AR
Otherincome and expenses B RARRR 63,002
Other gains and losses Ak RER 135,751
Comorate adminstratie ~ ATTHER

£X0enses (116,902)
Profit before tax g 498,022
Income tax expense FERRR (131,450)
Proft for the year EiaH 36,572
Other segment information £ 7 544
Depreciationof property ~ MERRENE

and equipment 128,611 75,825 65,717 34,062 1,900 4,939 8,432 - 319,486
Depreciation of igft-ofuse ~ EFREAENRE

assets 126,205 5,446 76,227 32,901 4,089 9,431 6,970 - 315,359
Addtons of propertyand ~ FRENERRGE

equipment 224,581 127,645 109,450 3414 1,307 1,005 546,150 - 1,013,552
Acitions o ight of e asses 2B AR s e 1 805 - 1980 87,564 - e
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12 A31ALLEE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. WARDBER(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bt Z2021F 12831 H I F/Z
Omick
Xinhua Education Wisezone
New East Intemet Wontone of Westemn Data Other
Culnary ~ Technology Automotive ~ Cuisine and Technology Cuisine  miscellaneous
Education Education Education Pastry Education Academy businesses Elimination Total
Vil i EA BKBER  ERERO

THAE  BMME NEMR BRME MOEIBM XNBR AWEERE B3 &if
RMBOO  RMBOO  RMBOD  RWBOOD  RMBOOO  RVBO  RVBO  RVBOO  RMBOD
AERTT  ARRTT  ARETT  ARETR ARBTR ARETm ARETR ARRTR ARMER

Revenue BA
External sales e 2,082,286 791,481 634,722 431,029 43,681 74,261 82,234 - 4,139,700
Inter-seqment sales APmEE - - - = 7649 = 104450 (112,099 -
Segment revenue AHMA 2,082,286 791,481 634,722 431,029 51,330 74,261 186,084 (112,099) 4,139,700
Results |
Segment resuls P 163238 147847 22977 398 (19,676) 177% (18502) - 558,542
Unallocated i)
Otherincome and expenses ~ ERARRR 82,578
Other gaing and losses AR RER (52,299)
Comorateadmiisratie  ARTHER

expenses (120,044)
Proft before tax GEIE 468,777
Income tax expense FERRx (166,611)
Prof fo the year ERER 302,166
Other segment information £ 7 8544
Depreciatonof property ~ MIERRENE

and equipment 116,709 69,120 78310 37,364 1,89 5,367 4761 - 313521
Depreciation of igft-of-use ~ (EFRIEAENE

assets 123,626 62428 69975 212 6,772 9740 2,97 = 306,959
Addtions of propertyand  FENERF

equipment 178475 163,36 162,852 16,097 2,074 785 322,348 - 835,987
Additions ofight-of-use assets iIEREEE 32768 5,306 110646 2,134 42 - 17075 - 700833
Geographical information Hbie &
The Group primarily operates in the PRC. Substantially all of NEBTFTEATEBREER - NEFH
the non-current assets of the Group are located in the PRC. BRIEDIETBEEHNNFE o
Information about major customers EHEFrEXEHER
No single customer contributed over 10% or more of total NE 2 2022F K2021F12A31H 1E
revenue of the Group during the years ended 31 December FE WESE-ZHhAREBAWRA
2022 and 2021. HI10%8¢ A F o
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7.

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES 7.

Asset-related government grants

B B AR RA RO BT 8 B

Unconditional government grants EAR BT RD

Interest income from FBWARE

— time deposits and bank balances — TE BF R R BRI T4 R

— entrusted loans —LFEER

Others Efth

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8.

(Losses) gains from changes in fair value LA AR EBEET T ABLR
of other financial assets measured at BEMESREEN AR
FVTPL BEEZH . (BB W

(Losses) gains on disposals of property  H & ¥13E N &AM (B18) Wes
and equipment

Gains (losses) from termination of lease 4 |FFE U zs (E518)

agreements

Net foreign exchange gains (losses) P& i e zs (B518) F 58

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12 A31ALLFE

HA A R B

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T AREETIT

1,816 5,182

41,687 43,097

61,266 53,667

2,341 22 161

295 6,750

107,405 130,857
HiE R EE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILLEE

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
(2,109) 21,300
(9,263) 344
3,691 (280)
143,432 (73,663)
135,751 (52,299)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BBAEAE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEESBEZMERX 156,171 161,123

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FREHBAX

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (‘EIT”) R B S ATER ([ EMEHR)

- Current tax — BIHARE IR 130,230 166,347

— Under provision in prior years —BAFERETR 944 676
Deferred tax expense (credit) (note 17)  #ELEFIBF S GR%) (iaE17) 276 412)

131,450 166,611

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and RATIAREESEETTMKY - &
China East Education Investment Limited (FEISR 5B R E B EREERAR R EB %
B R A7) was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the mae ((EBETREE ) TMRK
“BVI”) that are tax exempted as no business carried out in the o AATEREESHRENEESRD
Cayman Islands and BVI under the tax laws of the Cayman REEMRRER  HoORIBREMSE
Islands and the BVI, respectively. ENEBARAEERE  ARFR

FRRABERERHRRHM -

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) EERNER TGt E 2022412 A31
of the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31 HIFEE (GRS F1216.5%7%
December 2022. The subsidiaries of the Company operating (20214 : 16.5%) 51 & o A AFIR
in Hong Kong did not have tax assessable profit during both EEBEBLCHEB AT R MEEE I E
years. FESRBLRF o
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, pursuant
to the Enterprise Income Tax Law and Implementation
Regulations of the Law of the PRC, the applicable tax rate
of PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2021: 25%), except for certain
subsidiaries entitled to different preferential tax rates.

Beijing Langjie Technology Co., Ltd. (1t FREAEERIF AR A 7))
was qualified as a High and New Technology Enterprise and
enjoyed the preferential tax rate of 15% (2021: 15%) during
the year.

Certain subsidiaries of the Company are entitled to the
preferential tax rate of 15% (2021: 15%) because they are
located in the western region of the PRC. Details are set out
below:

Name of subsidiary
MEBAREHE

Chengdu New East Culinary Vocational Training School Co., Ltd.

BXERET IR 7 R AL B R R AR DI B R AA R A A
Chengdu Wisezone Technology Co., Ltd.
REBEEE REHER AR
Chengdu Wontone Automobile Vocational Training
School Co., Ltd.
P A& T IR B R R B AR A )
Sichuan Xinhua Computer Institute
M)l #hEEK R
Gansu New East Culinary Vocational Training School
HERIN R TSR
Guiyang City New East Culinary Secondary Vocational School
EGTATRA REEPEREER
Guiyang City Xinhua Computer Secondary Vocational School
EETMHETHPZREER
Guiyang New East Culinary Institute
EISHR A TEER
Guizhou Xinhua Computer Institute
BEMESIKER
Guizhou Wisezone Technology Co., Ltd.
EMEFEERBRBERAA

For the year ended 31 December 2022
(Z=2022F 12 A31 BIEFE

10. FIB8HEX (&

REBZE2022F12A31BLLFE -
BIE R B RS TUE & H B 5
Bl - PEE AR AEA R A25%
(20214 : 25%) * HEE TIER 2R
MAZETRAEETEMME R RIR
4h o

I RBAGEREBRARREANTIEE
BBt ET ZE15%HE R
K (20214 : 15%) ©

HRARRNE T B QSR
FREAESmE  WEEEZE15%
(20214F : 15%) BRI K - FI5E

FIT

Starting date
HB2s B

1 January 2011

Expiry date
ZIHARHA

31 December 2030

20111 A1H 2030% 12 A31H
1 January 2016 31 December 2030
201651 A1H 2030F12 831 H

1 January 2011

20111 A1H
1 January 2011
201151 A1H
1 January 2015
201551 A1H
1 January 2011
201141 318
1 January 2011
20111 A1H
1 January 2011
201141 A1H
1 January 2011
201151 A1H
1 January 2016
20161 A1H

31 December 2030

2030412 A31H
31 December 2030
2030%F 12 A31H
31 December 2030
203012 A31H
31 December 2030
2030F12A31H
31 December 2030
2030%F 12 A31H
31 December 2030
203012 A31H
31 December 2030
2030F12A31H
31 December 2030
2030% 12 A31H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 434 B %8R = M 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

10.

{Z 20225 12 A31 HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Certain subsidiaries of the Company are entitled to the
preferential tax rate of 15% (2021: 15%) because they are
located in the western region of the PRC. Details are set out
below: (continued)

Name of subsidiary
MEARER

Guiyang Xinhua Internet Technical School

EGMETRART2R

Guiyang New East Culinary Technical School

BEISHR A TERTIER

Hohhot City New East Technical School

WP AERF T HTER 7 B L2

Hohhot City New East Culinary Vocational Training School

e R 5 T 7 R 7 2 BT B SR B B AR

Ningxia New East Vocational Training School

EENRTBEREIISRR

Shaanxi New East Culinary Training School Co., Ltd.

PREEFTSR 75 = AR R 2R AR A A

Shaanxi Xinhua Computer Software Training School Co., Ltd.

PRI E T BB ERBER A A

Xi'an Wontone Automobile Vocational Skills Training School
Co., Ltd.

A SR EBEREEINIERERAA]

Xinjiang New East Culinary School

BT R R R

Yunnan Wontone Automobile Repair Vocational Training School

EEERAUEBEEIIER

Yunnan New East Culinary School

EEFR A TEER

Yunnan New East Culinary Vocational Training School
EETR T R AR R IR IR

Yunnan Xinhua Computer Vocational Training School
TR EEMBEEIRR

Chongqing City New East Culinary Vocational Training Institute
BEMR A T8 80120

Chongqing Xinhua Computer Vocational Training School
EENEERMBEEYIER

Chonggqing City Xinhua Technical School
EETHERTER

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ FERAHBFERER LT

10. FiBHiBX (&

HRARRNE THB QA HEMR
FREAESE  WEEEZE15%
(20214F : 15%) MEBEF K - FI5HE

SIS (&

Starting date
HEIR A HA

1 January 2017
20171 A18

1 January 2016
20161 H1H

1 January 2016
201651 H1H

1 January 2016
201651 A1H

1 January 2017
2017F1A1H

1 August 2011
20118 H1H

1 January 2012
201251 A18

1 January 2014

20141 A1H
1 January 2016
20161 H1H
1 January 2014
201451 A1H
1 January 2015
201541418
1 January 2015
20151 H1H
1 January 2009
200941 H1H
1 January 2012
2012414318
1 January 2011
20111 A1H

1 January 2017
201741 H18

Expiry date
E|H B

31 December 2030
203012 A31H

31 December 2030
203012 A31H

31 December 2030
2030412 A31H

31 December 2030
203012 A31H

31 December 2030
2030F12 A31H

31 December 2030
2030412 A31H

31 December 2030
203012 A31H

31 December 2030

2030412 A31H
31 December 2030
203012 A31H
31 December 2030
2030412 A31H
31 December 2030
2030F12 A31H
31 December 2030
203012 A31H
31 December 2030
2030412 A31H
31 December 2030
2030F12 A31H
31 December 2030
203012 A31H
31 December 2030
2030412 A31H
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
{ZE2022F 12 A31 ALEFE

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Certain subsidiaries of the Company are entitled to the
preferential tax rate of 15% (2021: 15%) because they are
located in the western region of the PRC. Details are set out
below: (continued)

Name of subsidiary
MEBEAREHE

Chengdu New East Culinary Technical School Co., Ltd.
PR EBFT R 7 AR TERBR AR

Chengdu City Shuangliu District Xinhua Technical School Co., Ltd.

AT EREFTERTERER QA

Chengdu Wontone Weilai Technical School Co., Ltd.

PR EBE i A SR TER AR A A

Chengdu Omick Western Pastry Vocational Training School
PR EBERAK 2 PO BB SR R AR IR B AR

Xian New East Culinary Technical School Co., Ltd.
ALHRT ZHARTERER AR

Yunnan Xinhua Computer Secondary Vocational School.
TEFETERPZERXER

Huhehaote City Xinhua Technical School Co., Ltd.
WAESTFER TEREAREE AR

Huhehaote Wontone Automobile Technical School Co., Ltd.
FAESmE R B TERERETAR]

10. FIB8HEX (&

HRARRNE TH B QSR
FREAESE  WEEEZE15%
(20214F : 15%) MEEF K - FI5E

AT : (&

Starting date
HEIR A HA

1 January 2018
201851 A1H
1 January 2018
201851 HA1H

1 January 2018
201851 H1H

1 January 2019
20191 A1H
29 May 2020
202045 A29H
2 June 2020
202056 H2H
25 June 2021
2021F6H25H
11 December 2021
202112 A411H

Expiry date
E|H B

31 December 2030
2080F12A31H
31 December 2030
203012 A31H
31 December 2030
203012 A31H
31 December 2030
2030% 12 A31H
31 December 2030
2030%F 12 A31H
31 December 2030
203012 A31H
31 December 2030
203012 A31H
31 December 2030
2030%F 12 A31H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R R M 3k (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. FrfEBiRAx (&
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the FAFSRAS ATEGEER R EM
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit ZHEWER AT ADE FIEERAT

or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31HLEFE

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

Profit before tax Ga¥pavl 498,022 468,777
Tax at PRC EIT rate of 25% BB R EMRSHTE25%
BNz HIA 124,506 117,194

Tax effect on expenses not deductible N AJ #0754 A Sz FOFR 75 5722

for tax purposes 29,726 42,957
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax 78R H U A BB 75 R 22

purpose (60,984) (12,433)
Under provision in respect of prior years @1 & BE T2 944 676
Tax effect of deductible temporary REER A ENE R =R

differences not recognised Y= 29,157 29,905
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  ARAER T B EIE AV F 75 50 2 48,081 55,149
Utilisation of tax losses previously not 7 B4t AT AR FER KB B 518

recognised (20,762) (29,727)
Tax benefit on research and development iff % F sz #9575 Fl

expenses (3,853) (5,008)
Income tax at concessionary rate REBR R EREH (15,365) (32,102)

131,450 166,611

China East Education Holdings Limited o FERAHBERER AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE2022F12A31BILEE

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 11. FREF

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETR ARETT

Profit for the year has been arrived F Pm I TR R3S I8

at after charging: MR
Directors’ remuneration EEal| 3,483 3,427
Other staff costs HAh B TR
— salaries and other allowances — & K H AR, 1,189,066 1,223,347
— retirement benefit scheme contributions — 3R 4@ FIJ 5T &I 5k 92,341 86,475
— equity-settled share-based payments — AEzS &S E HID LRI SZ

expense 42,560 55,727
Total staff costs BT KA 1,327,450 1,368,976
Depreciation of property and equipment #1% K % & E 319,486 313,527
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 324,851 309,905
Total depreciation meERsE 644,337 623,432
Capitalised in construction in progress £ TR E AL (9,492) (2,946)

634,845 620,486

Auditor’s remuneration 2 25 B 325 B 3,638 3,638
During the year ended 31 December 2022, equity-settled AR S E WA AER R R
share-based payments expense of RMB42,906,000 (2021: AE#42 906,0007T (20214 : AR
RMB56,180,000) were recognised in profit or loss in respect #56,180,0007T) REZ2022F12 A
of share options of the Company. Details of transactions are 1A IEFEFRA AT EIRENEZREA
setoutin note 26. R o 5B E26 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R R M 3k (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12 A31ALLEE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 12. 2 BESTBRABREEMSE
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors 2%

Details of the emoluments paid or payable by the Group to HZE2022F K2021F12 A31HILFE
the directors and chief executive of the Company (including B AEBEENKENARRES R
emolument for services as employee/directors of the group ERTHABZME (BEKAERA
entities prior to becoming the directors of the Company) for RESZAETEEEREES &5
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows: FEBHBRTE BN &) FFIB AT

Equity-settled Retirement

Salaries share-based benefit
Directors and other payments scheme
fees  allowances expense contributions Total
DR EEMN
FER BROAEESD BREF
E20e H At 2R XAREX BHE G &t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARMTR AR®TR ARBTR ARMTR

For the year ended & £20225
31 December 2022 12831HILEE
Executive directors: ~ HITEE

Mr.Wu Wei RELE 322 600 - 22 944
Mr. Xiao Guoging HEELE 322 120 - - 442
644 720 - 22 1,386
Non-executive FNTES
directors:
Mr. Wu Junbao REREE 322 120 - 24 466
Mr. Lu Zhen BEERE 322 - 346 - 668
644 120 346 24 1,134
Independent non- BUEHTES
executive directors:
Mr. Hung Ka Hai, REERE
Clement 321 - - - 321
Dr. Zhu Guobin REDHEEL 321 - - - 321
Dr. Zang Yunzhi mAsET 321 - - - 321

963 - - - 963

China East Education Holdings Limited o FERAHBERER AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 44 Bt 16 3R & Ki st (@)

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors (continued)

Salaries

Directors and other
fees allowances
HER

ESE HitRR
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTIL

For the year ended & Z20215
31 December 2021 12831BLLEE
Executive directors:  #{TE% :

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE2022F12A31BILEE

12. EX - BETHAEREEMS

(&)

ExE

Equity-settled Retirement

share-based benefit
payments scheme
expense  contributions Total
A E )
Bt RETEH RIKAEA
SN ATEIfR Ch

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE  ARETT ARBTL

Mr.Wu Wei RERE 299 600 - 21 920
Mr. Xiao Guoging HBIELE 299 120 - = 419
598 720 - 21 1,339
Non-executive FERITES
directors:
Mr. Wu Junbao RIERFESE 299 120 - 20 439
Mr. Lu Zhen BEELE 299 - 453 - 752
598 120 453 20 1,191
Independent non- BVIFITES
executive directors:
Mr. Hung Ka Hal, HEERE
Clement 299 = = = 299
Mr. Cheung Tsun SRR E S A (72021
Yung, Thomas F5A31BEHD)
(resigned on
31 May 2021) 124 - - - 124
Dr. Zhu Guobin REEB LT 299 - - - 299
Dr. Zang Yunzhi S E T (12021
(appointed on F5A31BER
31 May 2021) ) 175 - - - 175
897 - - - 897

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
paid for their services in connection with the management
of affairs of the Group entities for both years. The non-
executive directors’ and independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were for their services as directors
of the Company.

A EFSIBITE S HMDEREER
MERNREEAEEEREREEM
AR RIS T IASA » LA EFZIZE
MITEE LB IFRTERNHIY
REERARRESHRBE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R R M 3k (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continuead)

Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group did not include
any directors for both years whose emoluments are included
in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the five highest
paid individuals are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits & REAER

Retirement benefit scheme contributions &R &EH &t & 5K

PARE SR 45 HO IR A B
B2 (<52

Equity-settled share-based payment
expense

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals, other
than directors of the Company, are within the following
bands:

12,

AEENARRSFMALTEER
EFEENENES  BRESNZHM
BRHON EXHE - AREREHHA
THFET -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFIT
5,102 7,813
61 64
6,488 9,491
11,651 17,368

RRARBEZRRHFMA L (TEEE
=)NFHMREIT -

Year ended 31 December

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000

1,600,001/ 7L £2,000,000/ 7T
2,000,001/ 72,500,000/ 7T
3,000,001747C 23,500,000/ 7T
3,500,001 7T £4,000,000/ 7T
4,000,001/& 724,500,000/ 7T
5,000,001 7C 25,500,000/ 7T
6,500,001/ 7T 27,000,000/ 7T

BZ12A31ALFE
2022 2021
20224 20214
number of number of
employees employees
EEA" BEAH
2 1
1 —
1 1
1 —

China East Education Holdings Limited o FERAHBERER AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 44 Bt 16 3R & Ki st (@)

12.

13.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the executive directors, non-executive director,
independent non-executive directors, or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

No share option was granted during the year ended 31
December 2022 and 2021. Details of the share option
schemes are set out in note 26.

DIVIDENDS

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,

dividends for ordinary shareholders of the Company
recognised as distribution:

Final dividend for the year ended 31

12,

13.

HZE2021512 31 B IEFEH

December 2021 of HK$0.245 per
ordinary share (2021: HK$0.135 per
share for the year ended 31 December
2020 and special dividend of HK$0.135

REARR B E T AA%0.245

I (20214F : EE2020F
12 H31H IEFEH%0.135
PEIT MBI B SR B AR

per ordinary share) 0.135/%7T)
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final
dividend of HK$0.200 (approximately equivalent to
RMBO0.179) per ordinary share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2022, in an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$436,000,000 (approximately equivalent
to RMB389,466,000), has been proposed by the directors
of the Company at the board meeting held on 23 March
2023 and is subject to approval by the shareholders of the
Company in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE2022F12A31BILEE

EE BETBRAEREEMS
(&
ZER B0 R 18 6 FE Y 3 4B R (E (T 07T
B FMTESE BUFATES
FREZSHFMA LM EAHE -
TERBEIEE MAREE R INARE
RE) BB -

HE20225 202112 A31 B L4
[§ - WEBRERERT - BIRETE
FFIEH M6 ©

BRE
HE20225 2021 E12 A31 B ILF
§ @ AARIEBRENREBERE

DK

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BILEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFIT
452,653 486,997

HwEHE - AR RIESZN2023F3 A
WBARMTHNEFE SR L HEREE
2022912 A31H L FE &% #90.200
BT (KERARKE0.1797T) IR EA
B S - A5F49436,000,00078 7T (415
WA R#389,466,0007T)  HEEGH
FEfERR R R R g AR R R
BT AIER o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R R M 3k (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

13. DIVIDENDS (continued)

A final dividend of HK$0.245 (approximately equivalent
to RMBO0.208) per ordinary share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2021, in an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$533,000,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB452,653,000), was approved by the shareholders of the
Company in the annual general meeting held on 25 May 2022
and paid during the year ended 31 December 2022.

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

Earnings: BH)

Earnings for the purposes of calculating FA{EAHE FAREAR M FEEEF

basic and diluted earnings per share 9 22 )
— attributable to owners of the Company —ANA &% B AEML

Number of shares: B :
Weighted average number of ordinary Bt E &AL
shares for the purpose of calculating AR H T B

basic earnings per share INEEE5 2K
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares #1& /&7 & impk R £
— share options — e

Weighted average number of ordinary ~ F{EzT E &R 12 Z R
shares for the purpose of calculating R AR N9 2
diluted earnings per share

China East Education Holdings Limited o FERAHBERER AT

13.

14.

BB (&

HZE2021F12A31H L FERHKRE
B ER0.2458 T (WERARKE
0.2087T) * & & #J533,000,0007 7T
(SR AR 452,653,0007T) B
202265 H25 ABITHIR R AF RE
A R IR R B I A B 20224
12431 B IEFEIRST o

BRER
ARRRHEEANEEBEREREHER
MEETETER A TEUE

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARBTT

366,572 302,166

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE

2022 2021
20225 20214

2,175,346,583 2,191,911,540

20,500,060 83,698,096

2,195,846,643 2,275,609,636




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 Bt #3R XK MizF (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE2022F12A31BILEE

15. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 15. MERRZME
Leasehold
improvements Furniture Electronic Motor  Construction
Buldings andstructures  and fixtures  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HEME
BFY REHEEE HKBEEKE  ETRG AE fERIR At

RMBO0O ~ RMBOOO ~ RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBI00O
ARETRE  ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR

cosT Ak

At 1 January 2021 R20215151H 423,902 785,870 616,285 404,927 54,057 3347 2320288
Additions HE 14,685 6,496 102,551 58,668 4,102 649,485 835,087
Transfer g5 127,838 73630 s = - (201469) -
Disposals/write-off e /M - (2,977) (13978) (7,74 (1,086) - (25,783)

At 31 December 2021 H2021512/81 R 566,425 863,019 704,858 455,853 57,973 482,364 3,130,492

Additions AE - 16,214 76,281 57,804 732 862431 1,013,552
Transfer b 606,091 181,860 = = = (787,951) =
Disposals/write-off e /M - (29259) (21477) (12,852) (1877) - (65,458)
At 31 December 2022 Ro022F12A318 1172516 1,031,841 759,662 500,895 56,828 556,844 4,078,586
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 January 2021 202151 E1R 141,585 96,371 353,142 272,824 40633 - 904,555
Provided for the year FRifE 24,204 127,366 97,831 57,431 6,695 = 313,527
Eliminated on disposals/ &€ /#ishEs##

write-off - (2,977) (11,481) (6,835) 812 - (22,105)
At 31 December 2021 20215124318 165,789 220,760 439,492 323420 46516 - 119977
Provided for the year FREfE 31927 127,687 97479 58,027 4,366 = 319,486
Eiminated on disposals/ & /#ishEs¥8

write-off = (20927) (18,522) (11513) (1,157) = (52,119)
At 31 December 2022 12020512 A31 8 197,716 327,520 518 449 369,934 49725 - 14633
CARRYING VALUES e
At 31 December 2022 12020512 A31 8 974,800 704,321 241213 130,961 7,103 556,844 2,615,242

At 31 December 2021 H20215 1231 H 400,636 642,259 265,366 132,433 11,467 482364 1934515
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

15. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15.

The above items of property and equipment other than
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line
basis, after taking into account their estimated residual value,
at the following useful life:

Buildings 20-40 years

Leasehold improvements Shorter of lease term or 3-5 years
Structures Shorter of lease term or 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years

Electronic equipment 3-5 years

Motor vehicles 4-8 years

As of 31 December 2022, the Group is in the process of
obtaining title deeds of buildings with carrying value of
RMB541,505,000 (2021: RMB236,289,000).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 434 B %8R = M 5 ()

B R R AT BRI R T2 LASME
BB E TSR A FERRRE R
E - R REEE -

BT
HEMEEKE

ETRE
8

i

/

205405
T3 ESF
(A mE A%
HHEASk155F
(AR K& B%E)
3E5EF
3E5F
AZEBF

HZE2022%12A318 » AEBEEE
ERERIEFEEZBOMER - BEE
FHEREERAR541,505,0007T
(20214 : AR¥#236,289,0007T) °

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. EAEEE
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
HELH HEWHE &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR¥T T AR¥T T
As at 31 December 2022 A2022F12831H
Carrying amounts IREE 634,161 1,790,645 2,424,806
As at 31 December 2021 7A2021F12831H
Carrying amounts SREE 616,454 1,706,457 2,322,911
For the year ended HZE2022F12H831H
31 December 2022 IEFEE
Depreciation charge TEEH 14,503 310,348 324,851
Capitalised in construction in FEIBEN
progress (9,492) - (9,492)
5,011 310,348 315,359
For the year ended HZE2021F12H31H
31 December 2021 IHFE
Depreciation charge mEER 5,885 304,020 309,905
Capitalised in construction in FREIBENME
progress (2,946) - (2,946)
2,939 304,020 306,959

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ FERAHBFERER LT



16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Expense relating to short-term leases £ HATH SRR

Total cash outflow for leases HERMR R B

Additions to right-of-use assets from RNEGAREE
- new leases of lands in the PRC — BT T EE
- new leases of properties inthe PRC ~ —FRE#FEHEE

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
terminated certain lease agreements of leased properties. The
Group derecognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of approximately RMB34,555,000 and RMB38,246,000,
respectively, resulting in gains on termination of approximately
RMB3,691,000.

For both years, the Group leases various properties, including
the teaching buildings, dormitory buildings and offices for
its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
term of 1 to 20 years (2021: 1 to 20 years). Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies
the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable. There are no enforceable
extension and termination options in lease contracts.

The leasehold lands are amortised on a straight-line basis
over a period of 50 years, which is based on the lease terms
or estimated by the management with reference to the normal
terms in the PRC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 44 Bt 16 3R & Ki st (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE2022F12A31BILEE

16. FHEEE(Z

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETIT
8,461 11,360
459,446 672,593
32,209 381,654
429,092 328,179
461,301 709,833

NEE2022F12A31BIEFE - K
SEKRIEEEMENE THERS -
TEBRIIBEREAREENARE
34,555,000t M HEBEBEH AR
38,246,0007T * BHEUEL IFEEWZELD
AR #3,691,0007T °

AEBAMEFEANRESEME
PREYERE BERPAE - DEL
ER% - - MESHUETEHR1E20
F (20214 : 1Z220%F) 5137 » FAHIE
TERET @ WETEER AR
2N 55 B 5 T AR HA I AT R T AT S
HARY - B A 4R E 2 DAE TE 7T LA
TEHNERR - HESHWBERT AR
I THOE B R 4R IR P -

HE T ES0FHIRIRE SR HH -
ZHEDEREREREL2ES
B EREHEESL -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 434 B %8R = M 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

At 31 December 2022, the carrying values of the leasehold
lands of RMB148,043,000 (2021: RMB151,479,000) are
allocated by the government, which have no definite lease
term stated in the relevant land use rights certificates.
However, without the relevant administrative authorities’
permission, the Group cannot transfer, lease or pledge as
security such land use rights allocated by the government.

The Group entered into short-term leases for staff
apartments during the year ended 31 December 2022. As
at 31 December 2022, the outstanding lease commitment
relating to these staff apartments are RMB1,834,000 (2021:

RMB4,278,000).

Leases committed

As at 31 December 2022, the Group entered into new
leases for several properties that are not yet commenced,
with average non-cancellable period ranged from 8 to 20
years (2021: 8 to 20 years), the total future undiscounted
cash flows over the non-cancellable period amounted to

RMB101,468,000 (2021: RMB225,842,000).

Details of the lease maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set

out in notes 23 and 28.

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ FERAHBFERER LT

16. FHEEE(Z

M2022F 128318 - HE LA
A AR 148,043,0007T (20214 :
AR#E151,479,0007T) HBUF O H
WENEE T AREEEREHRE
HAPR o SAT - RASABRETT I R AT
] AEBTEHBN S E8ZET
b AR TE R - M EIRIER
R -

HZE2022F12A831HLEFE * &
SEEREIABIYCHEE -
MR2022F12A31H ' HE TR
EHEENREEEEREAAR
#1,834,0007TC (20214 : AR#
4,278,0007T) °

BEAGENEE

2022F12 A31H » AEBEI &
TYHEFHE  HHER KRS -
mERA FEHREESN F8E20
(20214 : 8 20%F) * MR EEHHA
FRRRARFTRBERELERAR
#101,468,0007T (20214 : ARME
225,842,0007T) °

HEaENHEERHSEHBHIIRN
BfzF23 528 ©
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17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

17.

The followings are the major deferred tax assets recognised

For the year ended 31 December 2022
{ZE2022F 12 A31 ALEFE

ELEREEE

RAFEMBEFREERNERRT

and movements thereon during the current and prior years: HEEEREZHMT -
Asset-related Excess of
government advertising
grants expenses Total
& E AR/ HHES
BN B BN &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREBTT ARBTTT
At 1 January 2021 R2021%1 A1H 874 4,486 5,360
(Charge) credit to profit (#0Fr B) FHAEZ=
or loss (690) 1,102 412
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31H 184 5,588 5,772
Credit (charge) to profit FFAGOBRB) 1B
or loss 56 (332) (276)
At 31 December 2022 R2022%F12A31H 240 5,256 5,496

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. No deferred tax
liabilities regarding the withholding tax has been provided as
the PRC subsidiaries will not declare any dividend to holding
companies outside mainland China in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2022, the Group has unrecognised
deductible temporary differences of RMB463,592,000
(2021: RMB346,964,000). In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, no deferred tax asset is recognised in
relation to such deductible temporary differences as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

BRI B TS HUE © FB20084F 1
A1BEE - A BB A 5 ERE A F)
TSR A IR B A FANTENTE o PA7]
B - R BB A RS E [
H B A HE A SRR IR A B B IR R AR
B AR IEI A HRIELE R TE A
R2022F12A31H - AEEM R
BRANMEREEZEERARK
463,592,0007T (20214 : AR¥E
346,964,0007T) ° RARIEEFRA
B A] Bt 3R FE AR B I A) PR 1R IR
HAMBR TR ML ERZS
AR EREEERRAECHEER
g_ °

Annual Report 2022 « —ZE==F £

O



A\

17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (continued)

18.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

17.

At 31 December 2022, the Group has unrecognised tax
losses of RMB906,947,000 (2021: RMB877,527,000),
among which tax losses amounted to RMB891,514,000
(2021: RMB861,046,000) will expire at various dates
up to and including 2028 and tax losses amounted to
RMB15,433,000 (2021: RMB16,481,000) has no expiry date.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, no deferred

tax assets in respect of tax losses are recognised due to the

unpredictability of future profit streams.

INVENTORIES

School materials and consumables

18.

B RoBREm

China East Education Holdings Limited o FERAHBERER AT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R R M 3k (&)

EEREEE (E)

MR2022F 128318 » KEBEKRHE
R IBEEBAREQ906,947,0007T
(20214 : AR¥877,527,0007T)
Hep - %R ARMS891,514,0007T
(20214 : AR¥861,046,0007T)
R IEB BN E£2028%F (B
FE)IENTRBHIHAREEASA
R#15,433,0007T (20214F : AR#
16,481,0007T) WAEEIHFH - KA A
BEERA  BEHEEBENELERE
B EEARRFEBE T 18 R M

BE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
71,625 65,134




19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 Bt #3R XK MizF (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F 12 A31 BILFEE

19. BEZREMEKRRE

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Trade receivables B 5 WA
— from government (note i) — 2R B BT (B 19,875 24,949
— from others (note ii) — R 8 E b (P Ei) 26,750 24,967
46,625 49,916
Other receivables H At fEUERIR

Prepayments for consumables SHFEMmIEN K 23,701 18,404
Prepayments for rental HETERT 6,827 23,544
Prepayments for services BRASTEL 3R 17,329 16,780
Prepayments for advertisement EETENK 51,569 58,292
Value added tax recoverable AJ U Bl E T 83,994 41,243
Advance to staff M8 TIEHAIE K 8,548 6,718

Interest receivables from time deposits & Ei1F R M SR 1745 #4
and bank balances B FE U R 2, 36,619 14,769
Deposit for development (note iii) 78 my iz (9 =iii) 19,992 19,992
Refundable deposit AREL S 11,520 11,520
Other receivables H e UGRIE 24,371 14,122
284,470 225,384
331,095 275,300

Notes:

G

The amounts represent receivables from the PRC local
governments, which purchased vocational education services
for students.

The amounts mainly represent receivables from customers,
which purchased ancillary services other than vocational
education services.

The amounts represent the deposits paid to the PRC local
government authority for the development of Chengdu Xinhua
Future Vocational Skills Training School Co., Ltd. (A &P#TZE
RIREEZE R LI BRI AR A A)). The deposits will be repaid
based on the progress of the project development.

As at 1 January 2021, trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to RMB48,601,000.

HBFIRE R B h BT B A2
L REEREHE RE N EEFR -

i. AEFEEIERXEBFFPEE®RD
IR (T RIEREHE IR &

A °

il AR IR R E ) B B R R HE R R
ERREEIBERERAFTS N
WHBN#ENERS - REFRE
THARENERRE -

R2021%F1 818 - KERFPAHME
S ERGRIE A AR ¥48,601,0007T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R R M 3k (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for credit losses presented based on the invoice
dates:

Within 3 months 3EAA
Over 3 months but within 12 months
Over 1 year 1F A E

In the opinion of the management of the Group, all of the
trade receivable balances at the end of each year which have
been past due over 90 days are not considered as in default
as these are contributed by PRC local governments with
extremely low credit risks. The management of the Group
considered that the impairment loss was insignificant as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
amounts are considered recoverable at the end of each year
and no impairment loss on ECL is recognised during both
years. Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 28.

China East Education Holdings Limited o FERAHBERER AT

3fE A LA B2 A A

19. B RHEMBWRIEE

AT RZREZAHZINE 5 RUK
IR (IS EEIRER) RE DT

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
29,094 31,147
16,471 17,634
1,060 1,135
46,625 49,916

AEEERERE  REFRAHHE
B0 H KIFT A B 5 FE WG IE A RR I R
WARRER - BE B Bl BT
Z FERBEGE - AREEEER
SRIAWARBEBRNEE - ZERIER
RARKE - BRAMESE B ERE
RIEHEEEBEBRNRERSE A%
EERERAZREEBRT TEKX -
B 5 kb U IR R E R E 5 E
FHTEE28 ©
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20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 20.

AR REEFTELF ARG
M E i £ B & 2 (P D
— AR IR (M R

Other financial assets measured
at FVTPL (note i)
— Structured deposits (note ii)
— Unqguoted fund investments (note 28)

B SH AT ER A S
BE

Other financial assets measured at
amortised cost
— entrusted loans to related parties
(note iii) (Bf i)

Notes:

Details of the fair value measurement for other financial assets
measured at FVTPL are set out in note 28.

ii. The structured deposits are short-term investments issued
by banks and financial institutions with no predetermined or
guaranteed return and are not principal protected. These
financial assets are with expected rates of return (not
guaranteed), depending on the market price of underlying
financial instruments, including listed shares, bonds,
debentures and other financial assets.

. On 15 September 2022, the Group and each of Mr. Wu
Junbao, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Xiao Guoqging entered into a
loan framework agreement, pursuant to which the Group
agreed to, through its designated lending subsidiary(ies),
make available to the receiving companies to be designated
by Mr. Wu Junbao, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Xiao Guoging a RMB
revolving loan facility in at a maximum daily balance (excluding
the accrued interests) of RMB80,000,000 each, at an fixed
interest rate of 7% per annum.

—EREREES (H5E28)

— AR RENZREER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE2022F12A31BILEE

HitemaE
As at 31 December
M12H831H

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBT T
293,929 249,966
344,715 362,302
638,644 612,268
80,000 -

PEE

UAABEFELFABENEM
SREENAREBETENFER
HRFIEE28 o

i BRITRESREBRTHEBIETK
REIARSRE LR RANFE
HERE  ZEeREEAFEND
HHEEBRTA(BRELMED &
% EREREMEREE) NTS
BIRTE

il.  M2022F9A15H @ REBERE
RIEEE - REEERHBELES
BRIV EFERRE - Bt - A%
EREEBREETERNEARM
REREE REXERBEEL
EEAREEZWRARIRETHR
miES (T RIEETFR) AARKE
80,000,0007T 2 A REEIRE 7@k
& EEFFERT% o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

21.

Notes: (continued)
ii. (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, pursuant to the
loan framework agreement, the Group provided entrusted
loans of RMB80,000,000 each to Anhui Xinhua Investment
Group Co., Ltd. (X EREALEEFRAF) (“Xinhua
Investment Group”), a company controlled by Mr. Wu Junbao,
Anhui Guoyuan Trading Co., Ltd. (Z#ERZ 5B A 7))
(“Anhui Guoyuan Trading”), a company controlled by Mr. Wu
Wei and Anhui Xinhua Holdings Group Investment Co., Ltd. (%
BETEEREBERE AR AR]) (“Xinhua Holdings Group”), a
company controlled by Mr. Xiao Guoging, respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, the amounts represented an
entrusted loan provided to Xinhua Holdings Group, with the
principal amount of RMB80,000,000, and will be matured
on 24 November 2023. The entrusted loans provided to
Xinhua Investment Group and Anhui Guoyuan were settled
in December 2022. The details of the entrusted loans were
constituted as continuing connected transactions pursuant
to the Listing Rules, details of which were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 15 September 2022.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/TIME DEPOSITS

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits and
short term deposits for the purpose of meeting the Group’s
short term cash commitments, which carry interest at market
rates range from 0.45% to 4.05% (2021: 0.45% to 1.75%).

Time deposits carry interest at prevailing market rates from
0.89% to 5.23% per annum (2021: 0.89% to 3.85% per
annum) with original maturity of more than three months.

Except for time deposits with carrying amounts of
RMB607,423,000 and RMB443,645,000 (2021:
RMB572,320,000 and RMB507,506,000) denominated in
HK$ and US$ as at 31 December 2022, respectively, all of
the other time deposits are denominated in RMB.

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ FERAHBFERER LT

20.

21.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 434 B %8R = M 5 ()

Hitb EBEE ()

Bt : ()

ii. (&

REE2022F12 831 ILEE -
BREFER G  AEEHRIA
B REREEZESOQALZEHT
EREEEBRAR([HERESE
E]) REEEEHOQFLZHE
BFESBRAR(ZHEREZES])
R BB S AR FI M A R R RGT
EEREBREARAR ([FEE
BRER]) D RREZTERARE
80,000,0007T, °

MR2022%F12A318 * ZHKBE AR
HIFELEREENZTER - &
¢ 5 A ARES0,000,0007T © R
2023F11 A24 B B8 - ZERET
HERASERZRERNELE
REMN2022F 12 A/E(E - TREER
BRI R E TR AR R E RS
R - WHEHKAQE H I A20224F
9R15HMALE -

RERASEEY EHEFER

RekReEFBVRIEANRMERSE
ERHR AR ERFERREE
K BNHN0.45% 2 4.05% (2021 4F
0.45%%1.75%) KT IS F KEHE. o

EHFRIRIBITMISF A E0.89%
£5.23% (20214 : FF|E0.89% =
3.85%):T B - ¥IREIHE ARG =1(E
ﬂ °

BRI 2022F 12 A1 B REER
AR®607,423,000t k AR #E
443,645,000 (20214« AR
572,320,0007T & A R#507,506,000
T 2 EHTE R BIAB T RETLE
BN - B EMTERTFRIEARKE
FHE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12 A31ALLFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22, B RHMEMNRE

As at 31 December

MA12H31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Trade payables B S e FIE 116,354 136,222
Payable for property and equipment EISE S ANE S 206,251 153,558
Value added tax and other taxes payable 3 {EF Kz £ th & (< F5 7% 5,934 7,626
Payroll payable JEN S & 196,727 206,537
Discretionary subsidies received REEAUWERBYIE AL

on behalf of students 30,715 40,216
Miscellaneous deposits received from  [A1E 4 IR ER R HEIEIR &

students — within 12 months — 128 AR 79,904 86,790
Other payables HfhpE R ERIE 47,695 45,057

683,580 676,006

The credit period of trade creditors is normally 90 days. The ZoEEANEEERT A90H ° B
following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented TAERBREQHZ2NE 5 ENIE
based on the invoice dates: HERES DA -

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETT

Within 90 days 90H A 116,354 136,222
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

23. LEASE LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities payable:
Within one year
Within a period of more than one year
but not more than two years
Within a period of more than two years
but not more than five years
Within a period of more than five years

Less: Amount due for settlement with
12 months shown under
current liabilities

Amount due for settlement after 12 months
shown under non-current liabilities

HESEENTE:
1R

i1 FEAZR2FNEREA

B2 FETZREFHEREA

HRiBsFHHIEA

o M2{E A RBIEAAER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R R M 3k (&)

MEBGINRBRERT)

PM2{E A& BB B 4B

23. HHEAE
As at 31 December
M12A31H

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
381,873 387,774
337,670 328,091
639,560 693,314
436,810 284,109
1,795,913 1,693,288
(381,873) (387,774)
1,414,040 1,305,514

SBGINFERBDAERT)

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to
lease liabilities range from 4.3% to 12.75% (2021: from 5.4%

to 12.75%).

24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Tuition fees and service fees
Less: current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

24,

S8 MRGE
B OREIRE
FRBEE

As at 1 January 2021, the current and non-current portion
of contract liabilities amounted to RMB1,384,697,000 and

RMB65,136,000 respectively.

China East Education Holdings Limited o FERAHBERER AT

BANHEaENNETSESEE
RN F4.3%FE12.75% (2021 4F -
5.4%%12.75%) °

EHEE
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARETIT
1,207,994 1,431,604
1,186,574 1,390,853
21,420 40,751
MR2021F1HA1HB A0 AE
MEBRIERBLI DA AEAR
#1,384,697,0007T & AR

65,136,0007T °
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24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued)

25,

The contract liabilities as at 1 January 2021 and 31
December 2021, amounted to RMB1,384,697,000 and
RMB1,390,853,000 respectively, were recognised as revenue

during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022.

SHARE CAPITAL

Ordlnary shares of HK$0.0001 each

Authorised:

At 1 January 2021, 31 December
2021 and 31 December 2022

Issued:

At 1 January 2021

Issue of new shares upon the
exercise of share options

Shares repurchased and cancelled

At 31 December 2021

Issue of new shares upon the
exercise of share options

At 31 December 2022

Notes:

GR0.000E T EER

EE

2021 E1A1H » 20214
12318 k2022412 A31

B
BRT:
12021%F1A1H

RITERERERZITHRG

O R HEORG
M2021%12A31H

IR RS B THR G

202241231 H

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE2022F12A31BILEE

24. EHEE(E

7202141 818 k2021412 531
H - AR#1,384,697,000C AR
#1,390,853,0007T K& A B E 5 Bl
REZE2021F 2022612318 1k

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 4
October 2018 with an authorised share capital of HK$380,000
divided into 3,800,000,000 shares with a par value of

HK$0.0001 each.

FREBERBBA ©
25. B
Shown in the
consolidated
Number of Share financial
Notes shares Capital statements
it OEE BA  BERGEERRE
HK$ RMB'000
BT ARETTL
3,800,000,000 380,000
2,195,103,706 219,510 193
i 7,144,096 714 1
i (27,566,000) (2,756) @)
2,174,681,802 217,468 192
v 1,784,000 178 -
2,176,465,802 217,646 192
BfaE :

ANRAER2018F10 4B ERSE
S - JAEMRA /380,000
T » 9 £3,800,000,00088 817
FIREEA0.00017 T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 434 B %8R = M 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

25. SHARE CAPITAL (continueq)

Notes: (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, 7,036,186
and 107,910 share options were exercised at subscription
prices of HK$2.25 and HK$11.25 per share (approximately
equivalent to RMB1.91 and RMB9.36 per share) respectively,
resulting in the issue of 7,144,096 ordinary shares of par value
of HK$0.0001 each in the Company. These shares rank pari
passu with other shares in issue in all respect.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
repurchased its own ordinary shares through the Stock
Exchange as follows:

25. BRA&(E

MiaE - (%)

Price per share

REE2021F12A831BIEEE -
7,036,186 % 107,910 B A #EH
BT 2.257% 7T K 11.257 70 (49
EREBRARE1IIITRARE
9.367T) REEEITHE - UBAQR]E
17X 1E0.00017 7T 2 7,144,096
BREBAY o WERMES H EHEE
BB TIRD F B RIS HATL -

HE2021F12A318 EFE * AR
A5 A A P B K & B Ak a0
T

No. of ordinary FRER

Month of shares Highest Lowest  Aggregate consideration paid
Repurchase BeAHG LmREE 1) & BRERE

HK$ HK$ HK$ RMB Equivalent

BT BT BT ARKEE
July 7H 8,998,500 10.34 9.53 88,531,560 73,940,000
August 8H 4,953,000 7.81 7.50 38,014,365 31,697,000
October 10A 464,500 7.50 7.50 3,483,750 2,863,000
November 114 13,150,000 7.37 6.80 94,628,065 78,293,000
Total = 27,566,000 224,657,740 186,793,000

The above ordinary shares were cancelled after repurchase.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, share options
were exercised at a subscription price of HK$2.25 per share
(approximately equivalent to RMB2.01 per share), resulting
in the issue of 1,784,000 ordinary shares of par value of
HK$0.0001 each in the Company. These shares rank pari
passu with other shares in issue in all respect.

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ FERAHBFERER LT

it ERRBUARB O RSN

BZE2021F12A81H LFE - AR
FBARBEES - HERED
AR EE] EWESR

REE2022F12A31HILFE - B
IR 2. 2578 T REBETE (XD
HERBRARK2.017T) @ UK
ANAEIEITEIREEO0.0001B T2
1,784,00008 A% o LLERMES
FEEEBBEBETRGEAREM

fir o
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26.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted two share option schemes,
namely pre initial public offering share option scheme (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and post initial public
offering share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
(collectively referred as the “Schemes”).

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant
to a resolution passed on 7 December 2018 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to eligible employees,
including directors of the Company, its subsidiaries and
consolidated affiliated entities, to subscribe for shares in the
Company.

According to the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme,
options granted must be taken up within 28 days from the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1.00. The maximum
number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise of all
options granted under the Schemes and any other schemes
of the Group, shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date on which dealings in the shares
first commence on the Stock Exchange, excluding shares
which may fall to be issued upon the exercise of any over-
allotment option granted by the Company.

The options may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme at any time during the
exercise period determined by the board of directors, which
shall in any event not be more than ten years from 12 June
2019 (being the date of the Listing).

26.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
(Z=2022F 12 A31 BIEFE

BREE

ARRERAMARBRETE - IS
RAFRERN BRI ((BRAH
BRENBRESE]) NERRFREE
BEBEET S ([RERERTE]) (s
~IZEE)) -

BRARBERBRETE

RIER2018F 12 A7HBIBA—IER
BREMBERAARBEEMBRES
g ZtEEEZEEEEBEERESR
(BIEARREA - B AR RERE
BEREE)REALGMRRY -

WRIE B IR A % & AR B RT &1 AV 1%
R R E R AR B HE
28R MERY - X EAX1.00
BT © REBEZFA B A KBTI E
b & BI3 H HO PR A B AR i JE T T R B AT
ERITHRERNEE A XTEEE
BB RFAENBRARZE HE#
TN EN10% @ NEEARFRLEH
LA B RR A AP S T T (2 B ] BE 3R 1T HY
Bedn o

BREATNESSETNITFERAST
A EREE RN ARE SR B REST
EERATE - EBRUEATEERE
20196120 (A1 £ B ) #e5++
¢ °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 434 B %8R = M 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
{ZE2022F 12 A31 ALEFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 26. BRESE(E

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) BRAREERIBRERTE (E

On 7 December 2018, 135,244,720 options were granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, assuming that the

MR2018F12A78 » RIEEHXAH
BEFBEREFIARLENBRES
135,244,72010  (BREERMLEITE
R o IR E X AR SR ERER
B 2 BBIRENTTFEEAFR2.25
B BETMARERERBEEN
20% °

Capitalisation Issue are completed. The exercise price for
the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is HK$2.25 per share, which is 20% of the final offer
price per share on the date of the Listing.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows: BN ARBRFBOT

Percentage of
the options to

Option Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period be vested
HEBEN
B IR REBH SEAE TEERAR BRERDL
The Pre-IPO 7 December 2018 7 December 2018 12 July 2019 10%
Share Option ~ 11 July 2019 ~ 11 June 2029
Scheme 2018512 A7H 2018F12A7H 201947 H12H
BRAREE ~2019F7A11H ~20294F6 H11H
AIBBRSHEETE] 7 December 2018 7 December 2018 31 December 2020 10%
~ 31 December 2020 ~ 11 June 2029
2018F12A7H 201812 H7H 202012 A31H
~20204F12A31H ~20294%6H11H
7 December 2018 7 December 2018 31 December 2021 10%
~ 31 December 2021 ~ 11 June 2029
20185 12A7H 2018512 HA7H 2021%F12A31H
~20219F12A31H ~2029F6H11H
7 December 2018 7 December 2018 31 December 2022 10%
~ 31 December 2022 ~ 11 June 2029
2018F12A7H 2018F12A7H 202212 A31H
~2022F12A31H ~20296H11H
7 December 2018 7 December 2018 31 December 2023 10%
~ 31 December 2023 ~ 11 June 2029
2018512 A7H 20184512 HA7H 2023512 H31H
~2023%F12A31H ~20294F6 H11H
7 December 2018 7 December 2018 31 December 2024 10%

2018F12H7H

~ 31 December 2024
2018128 7H
~2024%12 A31H

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ FERAHBFERER LT

~ 11 June 2029
2024412 A31H
~2029%6 8118
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
{ZE2022F 12 A31 ALEFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 26. BRESHEI(E

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

(continued)
Percentage of
the options to
Option Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period be vested
HEBEN
i IR R A FEEE TEHIAE BRETDL
7 December 2018 7 December 2018 31 December 2025 10%
~ 31 December 2025 ~ 11 June 2029
2018512H7H 2018512 A7H 2025512 H31H
~2025%12 H31H ~2029F6H11H
7 December 2018 7 December 2018 31 December 2026 10%
~ 31 December 2026 ~ 11 June 2029
20185 12HA7H 2018512 A7H 202612 A31H
~20265F12H31H ~2029F6H11H
7 December 2018 7 December 2018 31 December 2027 10%
~ 31 December 2027 ~ 11 June 2029
2018F12A7H 201812 H7H 202712 A31H
~2027412 A31H ~2029%6H11H
7 December 2018 7 December 2018 31 December 2028 10%

2018F12A7H

~ 31 December 2028
2018512 A7H
~2028F12A31H

T
S

5
i
s
T
e

| ()

BRENARBBIFENT (8

~ 11 June 2029
2028F12 A31H
~2029%F6H811H

The fair value of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was
determined at the date of grant using the Black-scholes
option pricing model (the “Black-scholes model”).

The Black-scholes model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options are based on the
directors’ best estimate. Expected volatility was determined
by using the historical volatility of comparable company’s
share prices with discounts for lack of marketability. Changes
in variables and assumptions may result in changes in the fair
value of the options.

BERARBEEEBRESENAAE
BT H B HiER A Black-scholes Hf
R E187 ([Black-scholest&E H |)

BE -

Black-scholes& %Y 2R {4 5T HA 7 /9
NREE - FTEBREAR BERA
AMEERBRRDERESNRER
5t o TEERR IR A AT LL A AR D B4
B SEORIBIT RGBS It EE - B8
BETR - SEOBEALBESE
G
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 434 B %8R = M 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
ZE2022F 12 A31BILFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant to a
resolution passed on 21 May 2019 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to eligible employees, including directors
of the Company, its subsidiaries and consolidated affiliated

entities, to subscribe for shares in the Company.

According to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the
number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which
options granted and may be granted to any individual in any
12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company’s issued share capital from time to time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet
to be exercised shall not exceed 30% of the issued share
capital from time to time. The options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors of the
Company in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital
and with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 at the date of
each grant must be approved in advance by the Company’s

shareholders in general meeting.

The options granted must be taken up within 28 days from
the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1.00. The exercise
price is determined by the directors of the Company, and
will not be less than the higher of (i) the par value of the
Company’s shares; (ii) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the offer date; and (jii) the average closing price of
the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately

preceding the offer date.

On 12 June 2019, 327,000 options were granted under the
Share Option Scheme and the exercise price is HK$11.25

per share.

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ FERAHBFERER LT
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE2022F12A31BILEE

26.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The Share Option Scheme (continued)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

26. MBRERE(E

BT 8 ()

BN ARBBREE

Option Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period
MR BHAH SRR TR
The Share 12 June 2019 Immediately vested 12 June 2019
Option Scheme ~ 11 June 2029
Bt 2019F6A128 MARE 2019F6F12H
~2029%6H11H
12 June 2019 12 June 2019 12 June 2020
~ 11 June 2020 ~ 11 June 2029
2019F6H12H  2019F6H12H 202056 H12H
~2020%6A11H ~2029%6A11H
12 June 2019 12 June 2019 12 June 2021
~ 11 June 2021 ~ 11 June 2029
2019F6H12H  2019F6A12H 20216 H12H
~202156H11H ~2029%6 A 11H
* In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value @

of 327,000 share options granted on the date of Listing was
considered insignificant due to the small volume of the options.

Percentage of
the options to
be vested
SHEEH
BRERSL

33%

33%

34%

RAREERE R ETBHAME
H1327,00007 EREH A R BEER
BREHE N MEIE BB IEK °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
The Share Option Scheme (continuead)

As at 31 December 2022, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Schemes was 115,346,678 (31 December 2021:
117,130,678). The following table disclosed movements of
the Company’s options granted under the Schemes for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021:

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B Z202251283310 1L EE

Date of Exercisable Exercise
Name of grantee grant period price

RRALS RHAH TSR 1@
HKS
BT

Director

Bz

-Lu Zhen 7 December 2018 12 July 2019 ~ 11 June 2029 2.25
-z 018F12A70  201987R120~202056 5118

Employees 7 December 2018 12 July 2019 ~ 11 June 2029 2.25
|
2018F12A78  2019F7A12H~202056A11A

12 June 2019 12 June 2019 ~ 11 June 2029 1.2
201956/ 128 2019%66A128~202956A11H

Exercisable as at 31 December 2022
2022512 A1 BRI F471E

Weighted average exercise price

EFATEE

China East Education Holdings Limited o FERAHBERER AT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R R M 3k (&)

26. BRIEE(E
BERRHERTE (B)
MN2022%12HA318 - B@AREZSE
SEIERE RSB T AR 2 B
Z 1 & B A115,346,6780% (20214
12H318 : 117,130,6788%) ° T
BEAEZE2022F 2021412318 1
FE - ARAIREBEZESTERENE
& #E 2 SEYEMR -
QOutstanding Exercised Outstanding
as at during the as at
1/1/2022 year 31/12/2022
120225 2022
1B18 12B31R
HATE RERLTE MARITE
872,510 - 872,510
116,146,988 (1,784,000 114,362,988
111,180 = 111,180
117,130,678 (1,784,000) 115,346,678
34,052,190
HK$2.26 HK$2.25 HK$2.26
2.6/ 2058 22687
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26.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The Share Option Scheme (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BZE2021F12A31HLEE
QOutstanding Exercised QOutstanding
Date of Exercisable Exercise asat during the asat
Name of grantee grant period price 1/1/2021 year 31/12/2021
20215 20015
1A1E 12R31A
G INGE RitiRE BEsE 1R RAITE RERTTE WARITE
HKS
e
Director
S
- LuZhen 7 December 2018 12 July 2019 ~ 11 June 2029 2.25 872,610 - 872,510
-E& 018F12A78  2019%7A128-2029%6A118
Employees 7 December 2018 12 July 2019 ~ 11 June 2029 225 128,183,174 (7,036,186) 116,146,988
fE8
2018F12A7H 201987 A12R~2029%6 4118
12 June 2019 12 June 2019 ~ 11 June 2029 1.2 219,090 (107,910) 111,180
201964128 2019F67120~2029F6 4118
124,274,774 (7,144,09%) 117,130,678
Exercisable as at 31 December 2021
RO E12A31 BEF178 22,520,442
Weighted average exercise price HK$2.27 HK$2.41 HK$2.26
METEEE 22THTL 4B 22687
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the weighted B ZE202212A31HIEFE - AA
average closing price of the Company’s shares immediately AR N EEEREETE B Ba
before the dates on which the options were exercised was B NEF W T E AFRS.20% T
HK$5.20 per share (2021: HK$17.81 per share). (20214 : Hi&17.81%87T) ©
As at 31 December 2022, the weighted average remaining M2022F12A31H - BIRESRTE
contractual lives of the share options is 6.45 years (2021: 7.45 X INFEF 15 F B8R 56.454F (2021 4F -

years).

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE2022F12A31BILEE

26. MBRERE(E

BT 8 ()

7.45%F) o
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26.

27.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The Share Option Scheme (continuead)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
recognised total expenses of RMB42,906,000 (2021:
RMB56,180,000) in relation to the shares options granted by
the Company under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and
Share Option Scheme.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Group, issued share capital,
retained profits and other reserves as disclosed in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

China East Education Holdings Limited ¢ FEIRAHRBERERD T

26.

27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 45 Bi #3R R i zF (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

R8I (F
BT 8(B)

REE2022F12A31BILFE » K
SERRSMERNRFRE XA
SRR 8 KB RAER B T
A& 80 A 2 48 58 B A R 542,906,000
JL(20214F + AR¥56,180,0007T) °

ErEBREE

AREBEEEEERAERAEEER
RIS L - AR EBEIERKE
PR 8 B ST 18 2 B R R B K [ 3
AEENBEBEROBEFERT T

@o

REBNEREBOEEAESED
KPR R B A EAS 2
B BTN R BRI R B A -

AAREEFFFMAERNEE - 1F
BB —HD  EFEEEELAKA
REZEBEAHBNRR - RIEES
MEEER - ARERBEBIKNK
B BITHR R R B A KRBT
ERBEEREEHATHELRBELR
&R o
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A.

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets PHEE

Financial assets at FVTPL AR EBEFTET T AELZE
NeREE

Financial assets at amortised cost LA SSR At EN S RIEE

Financial liabilities TEEE

Amortised cost B SERR

Lease liabilities HEaE

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
deposits for rental, deposits for utilities and others,
trade and other receivables, other financial assets, time
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
payables and lease liabilities. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management of
the Group manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the management
policies remain unchanged from prior year.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE2022F12A31BILEE

28. €@MTH

A ERTAMER

As at 31 December

MW12H31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
638,644 612,268
3,444,309 4,504,026
480,919 461,843
1,795,913 1,693,288

B. TREREREEZENMBE

AEENFEERIAGEE
ZREMEKGIE - Hitb & &
BE THEX HekBe
EEY  BEHREMENKIE

NHEBE ZEERMIAN
HEREMTHRE - HZES
BT EFMNRRSETSR
n (¥R RENERERE)
%_EH ErEgEsRER - &
28 LR AT 1K o 5 TR B ) R R K
RTX - AEEEREEER
EEZERRE - ABREEAR
BOLERBGE S - %S

BT ABMANERRERBER

B EEFERRFTE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022F12A31BILEE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

B. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

() Market risk

(a)

28. &R IEA(E

B. =rEREIRBZFNMBERGE

) TEEE

Currency risk (a) E#mEE
Certain of the Group’s time deposits, cash AEEETEHT
and cash equivalents, other receivables, FoBHakReE
other financial assets measured at FVTPL B - H WK
and other payables are denominated in H -HthemI
HK$ and US$, which expose the Group B -FBBRBEAAE
to foreign currency risk attributable to the Bt ABEFTEZ
fluctuations in the exchange rates of US$/ HivemEERAE
HK$ against RMB, the functional currency ftb JE {5 R I8 DA S 7T
of the respective group entities. RETEE  EX
SEEEEETS
BILEARE (1%
EEEBEEE)
B FEE 2R B 35 K AY
SNEE RS o
The carrying amounts of the Group’s RImEBH @ A%
monetary assets and monetary liabilities at BEEMEERAE
the reporting date that are denominated in 2 BRE B A INIE BT
foreign currencies are as follows: (ELUNNE
Assets Liabilities
BE aE
2022 2021 2022 2021
2022F 20214 20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT AR®BTRT ARETET
HK$ BT 963,134 1,112,776 167 153
us$ E 942,941 1,027,869 - -

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. How